
 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
June 23, 2016 

7:00 p.m. 
                
Welcome to the meeting of your Fayette County Board of Commissioners. Your participation in County government is 
appreciated. All regularly scheduled Board meetings are open to the public and are held on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each 
month at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Call to Order 
Invocation by Commissioner Charles Rousseau 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Acceptance of Agenda 
 
 
PROCLAMATION/RECOGNITION: 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
1. Public Hearing of Ordinance 2016-07 to amend the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110., Art. I, Sec. 110-3, Art. 

IV.,Sec. 110-145 and Sec. 110-146., Art. V., Sec. 110-169, Sec. 110-173(3), and Sec. 110-174., concerning the proposed 
Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District and Overlay Zone. 
 

2. Public Hearing of the proposed Color and Brick Palette Resolution for the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District and Overlay 
Zone. 
 

3. Public Hearing of Resolution 2016-06 to amend the Land Use Element Text and Future Land Use Plan Map of the Fayette 
County Comprehensive Plan for the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District in the area of the Intersection of State Route 74, 
State Route 85 and Padgett Road. 

 

4. Consideration of Petition No. 1250-16, Ron Zappendorf, Owner, request to rezone 2.45 acres from C-H to M-1 to allow for an 
auto repair, paint and body shop located in Land Lots 200 and 201 of the 5th District and fronts on SR 85 North with one (1) 
Condition. 

 

5. Consideration of Petition No. 1256-16. Claudine B. Morris, Christine B. Thornton, & Betty S. Shubert, Owners and Randy 
Boyd, Agent request to rezone 100.967 acres from A-R to R-50 to develop a single-family residential subdivision with 68 lots 
located in Land Lots 104 of the 7th District and fronts on Dogwood Trail. 

 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Charles W. Oddo, Chairman 
Randy Ognio, Vice Chair 
David Barlow 
Steve Brown 
Charles D. Rousseau 

 

FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
Steve Rapson, County Administrator 

Dennis A. Davenport, County Attorney 
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 

Tameca P. White, Chief Deputy County Clerk 

 

140 Stonewall Avenue West  
Public Meeting Room 

Fayetteville, GA 30214 



Agenda 
June 23, 2016 
Page Number 2 

 

In accordance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, accommodations are available for those who are hearing impaired and in need of a 
wheelchair.  The Board of Commissioners Agenda and written material for each item is available on-line through the County’s website at 
www.fayettecountyga.gov. This meeting will be telecast on Comcast Cable Channel 23 and on the internet at www.livestream.com . 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
6. Approval of the appointment of Peachtree City Battalion Chief Chad Matheny and re-appointment of Peachtree City Assistant 

Chief Kevin Baggett to the Office of Emergency Medical Services Regional 4 Council for a two (2) year term expiring on June 
30, 2018. 
 

7. Approval of staff's recommendation of the maintenance agreement between Fayette County and Motorola for 
the 800 MHz ASTRO Simulcast System and to authorize the Chairman to sign the renewal contract, in the amount of 
$539,196.47 for the term of July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017. 

 
8. Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into a $312,500 Subgrant Agreement with the Atlanta Regional Commission 

(ARC) for an update to the Fayette County Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) and to authorize the Chairman to sign 

the agreement.  

 
9. Approval of a request from Peachtree City to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement with Fayette County to share costs, 

not to exceed $14,987.50, for maintenance work on the pedestrian bridge along Redwine Road near the entrance of the 
Preserves Subdivision and to authorize the Chairman to sign the agreement. 

 

10. Approval of staff's recommendation to add Flowers Field subdivision to Fayette County's Street Light Program. 
 

11. Approval of the June 7, 2016 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes. 
 

OLD BUSINESS: 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
12. Consideration of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Commissioners David Barlow and Steve 

Brown and Mr. Scott Wolfe to nominate Donald Sission, Taya Scott and Dr. Loida Bonney to the Fayette County Hospital 
Authority for appointment. 
 

13. Consideration of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Commissioners David Barlow and Steve 
Brown and Mr. Scott Wolfe to nominate Dr. Mark Morehart, Therol Brown and James Oliver, Jr. to the Fayette County 
Hospital Authority for appointment. 

 
14. Consideration of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Commissioners David Barlow and Steve 

Brown and Mr. Scott Wolfe to nominate Timothy Etson, Sr., Lavonia Stepherson and Charles Oddo to the Fayette County 
Hospital Authority for appointment. 

 

15. Consideration of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Chairman Charles Oddo and Commissioner 
Charles Rousseau to nominate Charlie Cave, Robert Johnson, Samuel Patton, Heather Cap and Donna Rosser to the 
Fayette County Public Arts Committee to serve a term of one (1) year beginning June 1, 2016 and expiring May 31, 2017. 
 

16. Consideration of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Chairman Charles Oddo and Commissioner 
Charles Rousseau to nominate Jeffrey Mellin, Roshier Sbaja, Tina Brown, Donna Thompson, Vicki Turner and Richard 
Brown to the Fayette County Public Arts Committee to serve a term of two (2) years beginning June 1, 2016 and expiring 
May 31, 2018. 

 

http://www.fayettecountyga.gov/
http://www.livestream.com/


Agenda 
June 23, 2016 
Page Number 3 

 

In accordance with the Americans With Disabilities Act, accommodations are available for those who are hearing impaired and in need of a 
wheelchair.  The Board of Commissioners Agenda and written material for each item is available on-line through the County’s website at 
www.fayettecountyga.gov. This meeting will be telecast on Comcast Cable Channel 23 and on the internet at www.livestream.com . 

 

17. Consideration of the City of Fayetteville annexation of 29.63 acres east of Price Road Estates Subdivision, and the rezoning 
of said property from R-40 (Single-Family residential) to RTHC-PUD (Residential Townhouse Condominium). 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS: 
 
ATTORNEY’S REPORTS: 
 
COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS: 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 

http://www.fayettecountyga.gov/
http://www.livestream.com/


COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Type of Request:

Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina, Director

Public Hearing of Ordinance 2016-07 to amend the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110., Art. I, Sec. 110-3, Art. IV.,Sec. 
110-145 and Sec. 110-146., Art. V., Sec. 110-169, Sec. 110-173(3), and Sec. 110-174., concerning the proposed Starr’s Mill Historic 
Overlay District and Overlay Zone.

This request was originally presented at the May 26, 2016 Board of Commissioners (BOC) meeting.  The Board unanimously approved to 
to bring this item back to the June 23, 2016 BOC meeting. This item is for the public hearing of Ordinance 2016-07 to amend the Fayette 
County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110., Art. I – In General.  Sec. 110-3. –Definitions, Art. IV. - District Use Requirements,  Sec. 
110-145. and Sec. 110-146., Art. V. - Conditional Uses, Non-conformances, Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone, and Commercial 
Development Standards, Sec. 110-169. Conditional Use Approval., Sec. 110-173. - Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone. (3) General 
State Route Overlay, concerning the proposed Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District and Overlay Zone. 

The Staff and Planning Commission restarted this project in July of 2015 to review and recommend Land Use Plan amendments and 
related Zoning Ordinance amendments for the area at the intersection of State Route (SR) 74, SR 85 and Padgett Road.  This project 
was initiated in response to a request from property owners at the intersection and the four lane widening on SR 74. Both Staff and the 
Planning Commission recommend approval of the proposed amendments. Please note: Planning Commission minutes provided for 
Resolution 2016-06 also serve as backup for this request.

Approval of Ordinance 2016-07 to amend the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 110., Art. I, Sec. 110-3, Art. IV.,Sec. 110-145 
and Sec. 110-146., Art. V., Sec. 110-169, Sec. 110-173(3), and Sec. 110-174., concerning the proposed Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay 
District and Overlay Zone.

Not applicable.

Yes May 26, 2016

Yes

Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Yes

Yes

Thursday, June 23, 2016 Public Hearing #1



 

Redline version  

Ordinance 2016-07 

 



1 
 

COUNTY OF FAYETTE 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

ORDINANCE NO. 

2016 - ___ 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 110 OF THE CODE OF FAYETTE 

COUNTY PERTAINING TO THE COUNTY’S ZONING ORDINANCE; TO PROVIDE 

FOR ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS; TO PROVIDE FOR ADDITIONAL ZONING 

DISTRICTS; TO AMEND THE CONDITIONAL USE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE 

LIMITED COMMERCIAL (2) ZONING DISTRICT; TO PROVIDE FOR AN HISTORIC 

DISTRICT OVERLAY ZONE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 

COUNTY, GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ADOPTED PURSUANT TO THE 

AUTHORITY THEREOF THAT THE CODE OF FAYETTE COUNTY PERTAINING 

TO THE COUNTY’S ZONING ORDINANCE BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. By adding definitions to Section 110-3 of Article I of Chapter 110 which shall be 

inserted alphabetically within the aforementioned Section 110-3 as follows: 

Art and/or crafts studio means an establishment where an artist’s works are created and 

sold, where pieces by various artists are displayed for sale in a gallery, where customers 

purchase then create their own works (canvas, pottery, glass pieces, sculpture, etc.), a studio with 

classes and/or an art supply store. 

Bakery means an establishment engaged in the preparation and production of baked 

goods for sale and consumption both on and off the premises. 



2 
 

Card, gift, and/or stationery shop means an establishment which sells products such as 

greeting cards, wrapping paper, photo albums, picture frames, items that are suitable gifts or 

souvenirs, desktop office products, paper, calendars, pencils, pens, briefcases, and art/graphic 

supplies. 

Check cashing means an establishment that for compensation engages, in whole or in 

part, in the business of cashing checks, warrants, drafts, money orders, or other commercial 

paper serving the same purpose. 

Clapboard siding means a siding with horizontal boards or the appearance of horizontal 

boards. 

Convenience commercial establishment means an establishment that primarily stocks a 

range of groceries, snack foods, freshly-prepared foods for on and off-site consumption, and 

beverages, and may also provide household items, toiletries, tobacco products, newspapers, and 

the sale of fuel. 

Copy and/or print shop means an establishment engaged in duplicating and printing 

services to individuals and businesses. 

Cornice means a projecting feature surrounding the upper portion of a structure, dividing 

it horizontally for compositional purposes. 

Drive-up facility means a structure or device designed and intended to provide service to 

customers who remain in their vehicles. 

Mail services store means an establishment that provides packaging and mail services 

(both U.S. Postal and private service), provides mailboxes for lease and retail sale of office and 

stationery products. 

Mullion means a heavy vertical or horizontal divider between windows and/or doors. 



3 
 

Muntin means a narrow strip that divides or gives the appearance of individual panes of 

glass in a traditional sash. 

Parapet wall means a wall at the edge of a roof. 

 

Pay-day loan agency means an establishment providing loans to individuals in exchange 

for personal checks as collateral. 

Pawn establishment means any business that loans money on deposit of personal property 

and/or title of ownership. 

Transom means a horizontal opening over a door or window. 

 

Section 2. By deleting Section 110-145 from Article I of Chapter 110 in its entirety as it 

pertains to the Limited Commercial zoning district and by enacting a new Section 

110-145 in Article I of Chapter 110 pertaining to the Limited Commercial (1) 

zoning district to be numbered and to read as follows: 

Sec. 110-145. L-C-1, Limited-Commercial (1) District. 
 

 (a) Intent. The intent of the L-C-1 zoning district is to establish small scale business 

areas which do not generate large amounts of traffic, noise or light.  The L-C-1 zoning district 

includes small retail establishments, personal services, and business and professional offices.  

The L-C-1 zoning district will control architectural character and scale.  The adaptive use of 

existing structures is encouraged when possible. 

 (b) Permitted principal uses. The following permitted principal uses shall be 

allowed in the L-C-1 zoning district: 

  (1) Antique shop, vintage store, thrift/second hand store, consignment store; 

 

  (2) Art and/or crafts studio; 

 

  (3) Bakery; 

 

Deleted: and convenience commercial 

Deleted:   The L-C zoning district would avoid the development of 

strip commercial businesses.



4 
 

  (4) Bank and/or financial institution such as brokerage firm, credit union, 

financial planning, or mortgage brokerage (no Pay-Day Loan, Check Cashing or Pawn 

Establishments); 

   

  (5) Book store; 

 

  (6) Card, gift, and/or stationery shop; 

 

  (7) Cellular phone sales and service; 

 

  (8) Clothing and/or accessories such as belts and suspenders, boots and shoes, 

gloves, hats, jewelry, purses and handbags, ties, scarves, shawls, socks, and stockings, 

umbrellas, or watches; 

   

  (9) Copy and/or print shop; 

(10) Educational/instructional/tutoring facilities, including, but not limited to:  

academic; art; computer; dance; driving and/or DUI; music; professional/business/trade; 

martial arts; and similar facilities; 

  (11) Florist shop; 

 

   

 

  (12) Hardware store; 

 

  (13) Home furnishings and accessories such as area rugs, decorative items, 

cutlery, disware, glassware, lamps, pictures, pillows and tablecloths; 

  (14) Jewelry shop; 

 

   

 

  (15) Mail services store; 

 

Deleted: (5) Barbershop and/or beauty shop;

Deleted: , stationery and/or card shop

Deleted: (9) Dance school and/or studio;

Deleted: (10)

Deleted: (11) Gift shop;

Deleted: (12)

Deleted: (13)

Deleted: (14) Laundry and/or dry clean pickup station;



5 
 

  (16) Medical/dental office (human treatment); 

 

   

 

(17) Office (business and/or professional); 

 

  (18) Personal services, including, but not limited to:  alterations; barber shop; 

beauty salon; clothing/costume rentals; counseling services; electrolysis and/or hair 

removal; fitness center; laundry drop-off/pick-up; locksmith; nail salon; photography 

studio; shoe repair; and tanning salon; and 

   

 

  (19) Restaurant/restaurant takeout and catering. 

 

   

 (c) Conditional uses. The following conditional uses shall be allowed in the L-C-

1 zoning district provided that all conditions specified in article V of this chapter are met: 

   

(1) Single-family residence and accessory structures and uses (see article III 

of this chapter); and 

  (2) Home occupation. 

 

 (d) Regulations. The following regulations shall apply to the L-C-1 zoning district 

in addition to any other applicable regulations. 

  (1) These structures shall maintain a residential character.  Elevation drawings 

denoting compliance with the following requirements shall be submitted as part of the 

site plan  Properties within an Overlay Zone shall comply with the applicable 

Architectural Standards of the Overlay Zone in lieu of the architectural requirements 

below: 

Deleted: (15)

Deleted: (16) Music teaching studio;

Deleted: (16)

Deleted: (18) Photography studio;

Deleted: (18)

Deleted: ; and

Deleted: (19) Shoe repair.

Deleted: (1) Convenience commercial establishment;

Deleted: .



6 
 

  a. A pitched peaked (gable or hip) roof with a minimum pitch of four 

and one-half (4 ½) inches in one (1) foot and shall be of a type and construction 

complementary to the façade.  A pitched mansard roof façade with a minimum 

pitch of four and one-half (4 ½) inches in one (1) foot and a minimum height of 

eight (8) feet around the entire perimeter of the structure can be used if the 

structure is two stories or more or the use of a pitched peaked roof would cause 

the structure to not meet the applicable height limit requirements.  The mansard 

roof façade shall be of a residential character with the appearance of shingles, 

slate or terra cotta; 

  b. All buildings shall be constructed in a residential character of 

fiber-cement siding (e.g., Hardiplank), wood siding, wood-textured vinyl siding, 

brick/brick veneer, rock, stone, cast-stone, or stucco (including synthetic stucco); 

  c. Framed doors and windows of a residential character. To 

maintain a residential character, large display windows shall give the appearance 

of smaller individual panes and framing consistent with the standard residential 

grid pattern for doors and windows; 

  d. Accessory structures shall maintain the same architectural 

character of the principal structure, including the pitched peaked (gable or hip) 

roof with a minimum pitch of four and one-half (4 ½) inches in one (1) foot, and 

shall be constructed of the same materials or materials which simulate same.  An 

elevation drawing denoting compliance with this requirement shall be submitted 

as part of the site plan. 

 (2) No outside storage will be permitted. 

 

Deleted: i.

Deleted:  



7 
 

 (3) The lot shall have direct access to an arterial street. 

 

 (4) No drive-through, drive-in, or drive-up facilities allowed. 

 

(e) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the L-C-

1 zoning district shall be as follows: 

 (1) Lot area: 

 

  a. Where public water is available:  43,560 square feet (one acre). 

 

  b. Where public water is not available:  65,340 square feet (1 ½ 

acres). 

 (2) Lot width: 125 feet. 

 

 (3) Front yard setback: 

 

  a. Major thoroughfare: 

 

   1. Arterial: 75 feet. 

 

   2. Collector: 60 feet. 

 

  b. Minor thoroughfare: 55 feet. 

 

 (4) Rear yard setback: 15 feet. 

 

 (5) Side yard setback: 15 feet. 

 

 (6) Height limit: 35 feet. 

 

 (7) Floor to area ratio (gross square footage of site times 0.1 equals square 

footage of structure): The total maximum square footage for all structures combined on 

the lot shall not exceed 10,000 square feet.However, to discourage the development of 

one linear building and to encourage the development of separate clustered buildings on 

the site, the square footage for the structures may be increased by fifteen (15%) percent 

when more than one (1) building is developed.  The distance between structures shall be a 

Deleted: :

Deleted: 8,500



8 
 

minum of  twenty-six (26) feet.  In addition to the area required to facilitate vehicular 

access, each building wall bordering the space between structures shall have a five (5)-

foot landscaped area consisting of five (5) shrubs, two (2) feet tall at planting, per twenty-

five (25) linear feet of building wall. 

 (8) Buffer.  If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R zoning 

district, a minimum buffer of fifty (50) feet adjacent to such lot line shall be provided in 

addition to the required setback (the setback shall be measured from the buffer). 

 (9) Lot coverage limit, including structure and parking area: Sixty (60%) 

percent of the total lot area. 

Section 3. By adding a new section to Article I of Chapter 110 pertaining to the Limited 

Commercial (2) zoning district to be numbered and to read as follows: 

Sec. 110-145.5. L-C-2, Limited-Commercial (2) District. 
 

 (a) Intent. The intent of the L-C-2 zoning district is to establish small scale business 

areas which do not generate large amounts of traffic, noise or light.  The L-C-2 zoning district 

includes small retail and convenience commercial establishments, personal services, and 

business and professional offices.  The L-C-2 zoning district will control architectural character 

and scale.  The adaptive use of existing structures is encouraged when possible.  The L-C-2 

zoning district will discourage the development of a strip commercial building. 

 (b) Permitted principal uses. The following permitted principal uses shall be 

allowed in the L-C-2 zoning district: 

  (1) Antique shop, vintage store, thrift/second hand store, consignment store; 

 

  (2) Art and/or crafts studio; 

 

  (3) Bakery; 

 



9 
 

  (4) Bank and/or financial institution such as a brokerage firm, credit union, 

financial planning, or mortgage brokerage (no Pay-Day Loan, Check Cashing or Pawn 

Establishments); 

  (5) Book store; 

 

  (6) Card, gift, and/or stationery shop; 

 

  (7) Cellular phone sales and service; 

 

  (8) Clothing and/or accessories such as belts and suspenders, boots and shoes, 

gloves, hats, jewelry, purses and handbags, ties, scarves, shawls, socks, and stockings, 

umbrellas, or watches; 

  (9) Copy and/or print shop; 

 

  (10) Educational/instructional/turoring facilities, including, but not limited to:  

academic; art; computer; dance; driving and/or DUI; music; professional/business/trade; 

martial arts; and similar facilities; 

  (11) Florist shop; 

 

  (12) Hardware store; 

 

  (13) Home furnishings and accessories such as area rugs, decorative items, 

cutlery, dishware, glassware, lamps, pictures, pillows and tablecloths; 

  (14) Jewelry shop; 

 

  (15) Mail services store; 

 

  (16) Medical/dental office (human treatment); 

 

  (17) Office (business and/or professional); 

 

  (18) Personal services, including, but not limited to:  alterations; barber shop; 

beauty salon; clothing/costume rentals; counseling services; electrolysis and/or hair 



10 
 

removal; fitness center; laundry drop-off/pick-up; locksmith; nail salon; photography 

studio; shoe repair; and tanning salon; and 

  (19) Restaurant/restaurant takeout and catering. 

 

 (c) Conditional uses. The following conditional uses shall be allowed in the L-C-

2 zoning district provided that all conditions specified in article V of this chapter are met: 

  (1) Convenience commercial establishment; 

 

  (2) Single-family residence and accessory structures and uses (see article III 

of this chapter); and 

  (3) Home occupation. 

 

 (d) Regulations. The following regulations shall apply to the L-C-2 zoning district 

in addition to any other applicable regulations. 

  (1) These structures shall maintain a residential character.  Elevation drawings 

denoting compliance with the following requirements shall be submitted as part of the 

site plan.  Properties within an Overlay Zone shall comply with the applicable 

Architectural Standards of the Overlay Zone in lieu of the architectural requirements 

below: 

  a. A pitched peaked (gable or hip) roof with a minimum of four and 

one-half (4 ½) inches in one (1) foot and shall be of a type and construction 

complementary to the façade.  A pitched mansard roof façade with a minimum 

pitch of four and one-half (4 ½) inches in one (1) foot and a minimum height of 

eight (8) feet around the entire perimeter of the structure can be used if the 

structure is two stories or more or the use of a pitched peaked roof would cause 

the structure to not meet the applicable height limit requirements.  The mansard 



11 
 

roof façade shall be of a residential character with the appearance of shingles, 

slate or terra cotta; 

  b. All buildings shall be constructed in a residential character of 

fiber-cement (e.g., Hardiplank), wood siding, wood-textured vinyl siding, 

brick/brick veneer, rock, stone, cast-stone, or stucco (including synthetic stucco); 

  c. Framed doors and windows of a residential character. To 

maintain a residential character, large display windows shall give the appearance 

of smaller individual panes and framing consistent with the standard residential 

grid pattern for doors and windows. 

  d. Accessory structures shall maintain the same architectural 

character of the principal structure, including the pitched peaked (gable or hip) 

roof with a minimum pitch of four and one-half (4 ½) inches in one (1) foot, and 

shall be constructed of the same materials or materials which simulate same.  An 

elevation drawing denoting compliance with this requirement shall be submitted 

as part of the site plan. 

 (2) No outside storage will be permitted. 

 

 (3) The lot shall have direct access to an arterial street. 

 

 (4) No drive-through, drive-in, or drive-up facilities allowed. 

 

(e) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the L-C-

2 zoning district shall be as follows: 

 (1) Lot area: 

 

  a. Where public water is available:  43,560 square feet (one acre). 

 



12 
 

  b. Where public water is not available:  65,340 square feet (1 ½ 

acres). 

 (2) Lot width: 125 feet. 

 

 (3) Front yard setback: 

 

  a. Major thoroughfare: 

 

   1. Arterial: 75 feet. 

 

   2. Collector: 60 feet. 

 

  b. Minor thoroughfare: 55 feet. 

 

 (4) Rear yard setback: 15 feet. 

 

 (5) Side yard setback: 15 feet. 

 

 (6) Height limit: 35 feet. 

 

 (7) Floor to area ratio (gross square footage of site times 0.1 equals square 

footage of structure):  The total maximum square footage for all structures combined on 

the lot shall not exceed 10,000 square feet.  However, to discourage the development of 

one linear building and to encourage the development of separate clustered buildings on 

the site, the square footage for the structures may be increased by fifteen (15%) percent 

when more than one (1) building is developed.  The distance between structures shall be a 

minimum of twenty-six (26) feet.  In addition to the area required to facilitate vehicular 

access, each building wall bordering the space between structures shall have a five (5)-

foot landscaped area consisting of five (5) shrubs, two (2) feet tall at planting, per twenty-

five (25) linear feet of building wall. 



13 
 

 (8) Buffer.  If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R zoning 

district, a minimum buffer of fifty (50) feet adjacent to such lot line shall be provided in 

addition to the required setback (the setback shall be measured from the buffer). 

 (9) Lot coverage limit, including structure and parking area: Sixty (60%) 

percent of the total lot area. 

Section 4. By deleting paragraph (q) from Section 110-169 of Article V in Chapter 110 

pertaining to the conditional use approval process for convenience commercial 

establishments and by enacting in lieu thereof a new paragraph (q) in Section 110-

169 of Article V of Chapter 110 pertaining to the conditional use approval process 

for convenience commercial establishments to be numbered and to read as 

follows: 

q. Convenience commercial establishment. Allowed in the L-C-2 zoning district. 

  1. Maximum floor area: 3,500 square feet. 

 

  2. Accessory structures, including service area canopies used in conjunction 

with the sale of gasoline, shall maintain the same architectural character of the principal 

structure including the pitched roof, and shall be constructed of the same materials or 

materials which simulate same.  An elevation drawing denoting compliance with this 

requirement shall be submitted as part of the site plan.  Properties within an Overlay Zone 

shall comply with the applicable Architectural Standards of the Overlay Zone. 

  3. Motor vehicle vacuum cleaners shall be located to the side or rear of the 

principal structure. 

  4. Underground storage tanks shall be set back at least twenty (20) feet from 

all property lines. 

Deleted: Facility is limited to the sale of prepackaged food 
products, gasoline, household items, newspapers, magazines, 
sandwiches, and other freshly-prepared foods for off-site 

consumption.  



14 
 

  5. The number of gasoline pumps shall be limited to no more than six (6) 

with a total of twelve (12) pumping stations. 

Section 5. By deleting Section 110-174 from Article V in Chapter 110 pertaining to 

commercial development standards and by enacting in lieu thereof a new Section 

110-174 in Article V of Chapter 110 pertaining to the historic district overlay 

zone to be numbered and to read as follows: 

Sec. 110-174. Historic district overlay zone. 
 

 Starr’s Mill Historic District Overlay Zone at the SR 74, SR 85, & Padgett Road 

Intersection. All property and/or development located at this intersection with nonresidential 

use or zoning as depicted on the Future Land Use Map shall be subject to the following 

regulations, in addition to the zoning district requirements, and other development regulations as 

applicable.  The General State Route Overlay Zone shall not apply to this area. 

 (1) The purpose of the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay Zone at SR 74, SR 85, and 

Padgett Road Intersection is to achieve the following: 

  a. To maintain the historic character of the area; 

 

  b. To control the intensity and aesthetic quality of development at the 

intersection as it is the southern gateway into Fayette County; 

  c. To promote and maintain orderly development for an efficient traffic flow 

in highway corridors; and 

  d. To protect existing and future residential areas outside of the intersection. 

 

 (2) Access.  Access to each nonresidential property and/or development shall 

be from SR 74, SR 85, or Padgett Road.  All access points shall be required to comply with 

Deleted: or



15 
 

Georgia Department of Transportation regulations and/or Fayette County Development 

Regulations, as applicable. 

 (3) Dimensional Requirements. 

 

  a. All parking areas shall be located at least fifty (50) feet from SR 74, SR 

85, or Padgett Road right-of-way. 

  b. Front yard setbacks on SR 74, SR 85, and Padgett Road for all structures, 

including gasoline canopies, shall be one hundred (100) feet. 

  c. Berms for nonresidential districts: Berms when required as a condition 

of zoning, shall be a minimum of four (4) feet in height, and shall be placed to the inside 

of the applicable buffer. 

  d. If the side yard abuts a nonresidential zoning district, all non-structural 

improvements, other than approved access, shall be located a minimum of ten (10) feet 

from the side property line. 

 (4) Architectural Forms and Standards. All new structures shall maintain the 

historical and aesthetic character of the area.  Starr’s Mill was built in the late 1800s and is a 

significant historic resource in Fayette County.  Starr’s Mill is indicative of turn of the century 

architectural character common in rural areas and is a building of influence in this area.  Other 

architectural styles such as One-Part Commercial Block and Two-Part Commercial Block 

associated with this period are acceptable for this overlay zone.  Architectural examples are on 

file in the Planning and Zoning Department. 

 Architectural Review.  An owner/developer may obtain an administrative approval 

for structures by submitting elevation drawings denoting compliance with these architectural 

forms and standards.  Staff review and approval will take place as part of the site plan approval 



16 
 

process.  An owner/developer may exercise an architectural review option for structures within 

the overlay zone.  The purpose of this option is to allow the owner/developer to present a 

creative interpretation of the architectural intent of the overlay zone.  Elevation drawings, 

submitted as part of the site plan approval process, shall be reviewed and considered by the 

Board of Commissioners in a public meeting with a recommendation from the Planning 

Commission and staff. 

 a. Starr’s Mill: Starr’s Mill is a two-story structure with a gable roof.  The 

roof is corrugated metal.  The façade is wood clapboard siding and runs in a horizontal 

pattern.  The structure sits on a stacked stone foundation and stacked stone pillars.  

Windows are wood-framed with a grid muntin pattern.  Doors are also wood-framed.  

The structure has a covered porch with stairs and a wood picket rail banister.  The 

building is red, the stairs, porch framing and banisters are white, the stair landings and 

porch decking are grey and the roof and porch covering is  a grey corrugated metal. 

  1. Roof: Gable roof with a minimum pitch of four and one-half (4 

½) inches in one (1) foot.  Roofing material shall be grey corrugated metal. 

  2. Façade Material: Clapboard siding running in a horizontal 

pattern on all walls.  Acceptable sidings include wood and fiber-cement siding 

(e.g., Hardiplank).  The foundation shall have the appearance of stacked stone.  

Façade colors shall match with the color palette on file in the Planning and 

Zoning Department. 

  3. Doors and Windows: Doors and windows shall have a frame and 

grind muntin pattern as established by Starr’s Mill.  Door and window frames 

shall be white with a minimum width of four (4) inches.  Large display windows 



17 
 

and glass doors shall give the appearance of grid pattern muntins and framing 

consistent with Starr’s Mill.  Grid pattern muntins shall be white.  Large display 

or storefront windows shall have a minimum two (2)-foot high bulkhead (the 

lower panels on which the windows rest) consistent with the Façade Materials 

above. 

  4. Covered Entrance: Covered entrances shall be in character with 

the Starr’s Mill porch consisting of a grey corrugated metal matching the roof of 

the main structure.  A white wood picket rail banister with a minimum height of 

three (3) feet shall extend the full length of the covered entrance with a maximum 

entrance space of three (3) feet.  All support structures shall be white. 

b. One-Part Commercial Block:  A popular commercial design from 

the mid-19th to the early 20th century.  The one-part commercial block is a simple, one-

story box with a flat or shed roof.  Common façade materials consist of brick with 

decorative block, stone, and concrete accents.  The focal point of the front façade is the 

entrance and windows, consisting of a recessed doorway and display windows with a 

transom resting on a bulkhead (the lower panels on which the windows rest) framed by 

pilasters.  Architectural features include a cornice, belt course and parapet wall. 

 1. Façade Material: Brick/brick veneer shall be utilized on all 

walls as the primary façade material comprising a minimum of sixty-five (65%) 

percent of the wall, excluding doors, windows and associated framing.  The brick 

color shall match with one of the colors in the brick palette on file in the Planning 

and Zoning Department.  Painted brick shall not be allowed.  The remaining 

thirty-five (35%) percent of the wall may have the appearance of a contrasting 



18 
 

brick color, rough face decorative block, stone, and/or concrete accents and the 

colors shall match with the color palette on file in the Planning and Zoning 

Department. 

 2. Entrance Doors and Windows: The entrance door and 

window component shall consist of entrance door(s), display windows, door and 

window transoms, and bulkhead.  Door and window frames may be constructed 

with wood, metal, or vinyl.  An anodized silver finish shall not be allowed for 

door and window frames and all colors shall match with the color palette on file 

in the Planning and Zoning Department.  Transoms shall be a minimum of two (2) 

feet high and shall be separated from the windows and door by a mullion width of 

four (4) inches.  A minimum two (2)-foot high bulkhead (the lower panels on 

which the windows rest) consistent with the Façade Materials above shall be 

required. 

 3. Architectural Features: A cornice is required.  The cornice 

shall be a minimum of one (1) foot in height with a minimum projection of four 

(4) inches from the main façade.  The projection may be gradual.  A parapet wall 

is required along the front and side walls of the structure and shall be a minimum 

of two (2) feet in height.  Colors shall match with the color palette on file in the 

Planning and Zoning Department. 

c. Two-Part Commercial Block:  A popular commercial design from 

the mid-19th to the early 20th century.  These buildings have two primary components – 

first floor storefronts (similar in design to a One-Part Commercial Block) and upper 

floors which historically were used for residential or office space.  The focal point of the 



19 
 

first floor is the entrance and windows, consisting of a recessed doorway and display 

windows with a transom resting on a bulkhead (the lower panels on which the windows 

rest) framed by pilasters.  Upper floors have one or more floors of smaller symmetrically-

positioned windows.  Architectural features include a cornice, belt course and parapet 

wall.  Common façade materials consist of brick with decorative block, stone, and 

concrete accents. 

 1. Façade Materials: Brick/brick veneer shall be utilized on all 

walls as the primary façade material comprising a minimum of sixty-five (65%) 

percent of the wall, excluding doors, windows and associated framing.  The brick 

color shall match with one of the colors in the brick palette on file in the Planning 

and Zoning Department.  Painted brick shall not be allowed.  The remaining 

thirty-five (35%) percent of the wall may have the appearance of a contrasting 

brick color, rough face decorative block, stone, and/or concrete accents and the 

colors shall match with the color palette on file in the Planning and Zoning 

Department. 

 2. Entrance Doors and Windows (first floor storefronts): The 

entrance door and window component shall consist of entrance door(s), display 

windows, dor and window transoms, and bulkhead (the lower panels on which the 

windows rest).  Door and window frames may be constructed with wood, metal, 

or vinyl.  An anodized silver finish shall not be allowed for door and window 

frames and all colors shall match with the color palette on file in the Planning and 

Zoning Department.  Transoms shall be a minimum of two (2) feet high and shall 

be separated from the windows and door by a mullion with a minimum width of 



20 
 

four (4) inches.  A minimum two (2)-foot high bulkhead consistent with the 

Façade Materials above shall be required. 

 3. Upper Floor Windows: Upper floor windows shall be 

symmetrically positioned.  All window frames shall match with the color palette 

on file in the Planning and Zoning Department. 

 4. Architectural Features: A cornice is required.  The cornice 

shall be a minimum of one (1) foot in height with a minimum projection of four 

(4) inches from the main façade.  The projection may be gradual.  A belt course 

with a minimum projection of one (1) inch from the main façade shall be required 

between the first floor and the second floor.  A parapet wall is required and shall 

be a minimum of two (2) feet in height.  Colors shall match with the color palette 

on file in the Planning and Zoning Department. 

d. Lighting: 

 

 1. All wall lighting shall consist of period lantern or goose neck 

pendant lighting.  These restrictions shall not apply to wall lighting required by 

the Fire Marshal. 

 2. All pole lighting shall consist of period post top globe, lantern, or 

pendant luminaries with rapid-ship posts. 

e. Within the fifty (50)-foot front landscape area, a wall or fence is required 

to run along a minimum of forty (40%) percent of the frontage.  If a wall, the wall shall 

be a minimum of three (3) feet in height with the appearance of stacked stone.  If a fence, 

the fence shall be a minimum of four (4) feet in height with the appearance of wrought 



21 
 

iron, picket, split rail or horse rail fence.  Fence materials are limited to metal, 

vinyl/plastic, pre-cast concrete and masonry for columns. 

f. Gasoline Canopy. Gasoline canopies shall comply with the following 

requirements: 

 1. Gasoline canopies may be attached to the principal structure as an 

extension of the structure/roof. 

 2. The vertical clearance under the gasoline canopy shall not exceed a 

maximum of eighteen (18) feet in height.  The height of the gasoline canopy shall 

not be more than four (4) feet above the height of the principal structure. 

 3. The gasoline canopy and support structure shall match the 

architectural character, materials, color and roof of the principal structure.  

Gasoline canopies, in conjunction with a convenience commercial establishment 

built in the architectural form of Starr’s Mill, shall have a minimum roof pitch of 

three (3) inches in one (1) foot. 

g. Color Palette: Only those colors indicated on the color palette on file in 

the Planning and Zoning Department shall be allowed for structures.  Any changes to the 

color of structures in this overlay must be submitted to Staff for approval. 

h. The desing of ancillary buildings and sign structures shall be consistent 

with the architectural style and color inherent in the principal structure on the property. 

(5) Landscape Requirements. In addition to the standard requirements of the 

landscape ordinance, the following landscape requirements shall apply to the overlay zone: 

 a. Street Frontage: Landscape area:  Fifty (50) feet along the right-of-

way of SR 74, SR 85, and Padgett Road.  The first twenty-five (25) feet as measured 



22 
 

from the right-of-way is for required landscape planting only.  The remaining twenty-five 

(25) feet may be used for septic system placement; underground stormwater detention 

systems; and the following stormwater management facilities/structures if designed in 

full accordance with the specifications provided in the most current edition of the 

Georgia Stormwater Management Manual; vegetated channels, overland flow 

filtration/groundwater recharge zone, enhanced swales, filter strips, and grass channels.  

Septic systems and stormwater structures shall be exclusive of each other and the 

minimum distance of separation between wastewater and stormwater structures shall be 

established by the Environmental Health Department and the Environmental 

Management Department.  Utilities (including underground stormwater piping) and 

multi-use path connections may be located anywhere within the landscape area. 

 b. Side Yard Landscape Area: Ten (10) feet in depth along the side 

property lines adjacent to a residential district where buffer requirements will apply. 

(6) Use of Existing Structure: When property containing legal conforming or legal 

nonconforming structures, under the current zoning, is rezoned to a nonresidential zoning district 

the dimensional requirements shall be reduced to the extent of, but only at the location of, any 

encroachment by the structures and said structures shall be considered legal nonconforming 

structures. 

(7) Lighting and shielding standards. Lighting shall be placed in a manner to 

direct light away from any adjacent roadways or nearby residential areas. 

(8) Special Locational and Spatial Requirements. 

 



23 
 

 a. No more than fifty (50%) percent of the required parking can be located in 

the front yard along a State Route as established by the front building line of any 

structure located on the site.  Sites with existing parking are exempt. 

 b. No outside storage allowed. 

 

 c. All rooftop heating, ventilation, and air conditioning equipment and 

satellite/communications equipment shall be visually screened from adjacent roads and 

property zoned residential or A-R.  The screen shall extend to the full height of the 

objects being screened. 

Section 6. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the 

Board of Commissioners for Fayette County. 

Section 7. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 

hereby repealed. 

Section 8. If any event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 

shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall 

in no manner affect other sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases of 

this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the section, 

subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional were not a part thereof.  The Board of Commissioners hereby 

declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this Ordinance if it had 

known that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 

 



24 
 

SO ENACTED this ______ day of ____________________, 2016. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 

FAYETTE COUNTY 

(SEAL) 

By:_______________________ 

     Charles W. Oddo, Chairman 

ATTEST:      

 

___________________________ 

Floyd Jones, County Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

 

___________________________ 

County Attorney 



 

Draft  

Ordinance 2016-07 

 



1 
 

COUNTY OF FAYETTE 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

ORDINANCE NO. 

2016 - ___ 

 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 110 OF THE CODE OF FAYETTE 

COUNTY PERTAINING TO THE COUNTY’S ZONING ORDINANCE; TO PROVIDE 

FOR ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS; TO PROVIDE FOR ADDITIONAL ZONING 

DISTRICTS; TO AMEND THE CONDITIONAL USE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE 

LIMITED COMMERCIAL (2) ZONING DISTRICT; TO PROVIDE FOR AN HISTORIC 

DISTRICT OVERLAY ZONE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 

COUNTY, GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ADOPTED PURSUANT TO THE 

AUTHORITY THEREOF THAT THE CODE OF FAYETTE COUNTY PERTAINING 

TO THE COUNTY’S ZONING ORDINANCE BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. By adding definitions to Section 110-3 of Article I of Chapter 110 which shall be 

inserted alphabetically within the aforementioned Section 110-3 as follows: 

Art and/or crafts studio means an establishment where an artist’s works are created and 

sold, where pieces by various artists are displayed for sale in a gallery, where customers 

purchase then create their own works (canvas, pottery, glass pieces, sculpture, etc.), a studio with 

classes and/or an art supply store. 

Bakery means an establishment engaged in the preparation and production of baked 

goods for sale and consumption both on and off the premises. 



2 
 

Card, gift, and/or stationery shop means an establishment which sells products such as 

greeting cards, wrapping paper, photo albums, picture frames, items that are suitable as gifts or 

souvenirs, desktop office products, paper, calendars, pencils, pens, briefcases, and art/graphic 

supplies. 

Check cashing means an establishment that for compensation engages, in whole or in 

part, in the business of cashing checks, warrants, drafts, money orders, or other commercial 

paper serving the same purpose. 

Clapboard siding means a siding with horizontal boards or the appearance of horizontal 

boards. 

Convenience commercial establishment means an establishment that primarily stocks a 

range of groceries, snack foods, freshly-prepared foods for on and off-site consumption, and 

beverages, and may also provide household items, toiletries, tobacco products, newspapers, and 

the sale of fuel. 

Copy and/or print shop means an establishment engaged in duplicating and printing 

services to individuals and businesses. 

Cornice means a projecting feature surrounding the upper portion of a structure, dividing 

it horizontally for compositional purposes. 

Drive-up facility means a structure or device designed and intended to provide service to 

customers who remain in their vehicles. 

Mail services store means an establishment that provides packaging and mail services 

(both U.S. Postal and private service), provides mailboxes for lease and retail sale of office and 

stationery products. 

Mullion means a heavy vertical or horizontal divider between windows and/or doors. 



3 
 

Muntin means a narrow strip that divides or gives the appearance of individual panes of 

glass in a traditional sash. 

Parapet wall means a wall at the edge of a roof. 

 

Pay-day loan agency means an establishment providing loans to individuals in exchange 

for personal checks as collateral. 

Pawn establishment means any business that loans money on deposit of personal property 

and/or a title of ownership. 

Transom means a horizontal opening over a door or window. 

 

Section 2. By deleting Section 110-145 from Article I of Chapter 110 in its entirety as it 

pertains to the Limited Commercial zoning district and by enacting a new Section 

110-145 in Article I of Chapter 110 pertaining to the Limited Commercial (1) 

zoning district to be numbered and to read as follows: 

Sec. 110-145. L-C-1, Limited-Commercial (1) District. 
 

 (a) Intent. The intent of the L-C-1 zoning district is to establish small scale business 

areas which do not generate large amounts of traffic, noise or light.  The L-C-1 zoning district 

includes small retail establishments, personal services, and business and professional offices.  

The L-C-1 zoning district will control architectural character and scale.  The adaptive use of 

existing structures is encouraged when possible. 

 (b) Permitted principal uses. The following permitted principal uses shall be 

allowed in the L-C-1 zoning district: 

  (1) Antique shop, vintage store, thrift/second hand store, consignment store; 

 

  (2) Art and/or crafts studio; 

 

  (3) Bakery; 

 



4 
 

  (4) Bank and/or financial institution such as a brokerage firm, credit union, 

financial planning, or mortgage brokerage (no Pay-Day Loan, Check Cashing or Pawn 

Establishments); 

  (5) Book store; 

 

  (6) Card, gift, and/or stationery shop; 

 

  (7) Cellular phone sales and service; 

 

  (8) Clothing and/or accessories such as belts and suspenders, boots and shoes, 

gloves, hats, jewelry, purses and handbags, ties, scarves, shawls, socks, and stockings, 

umbrellas, or watches; 

  (9) Copy and/or print shop; 

(10) Educational/instructional/tutoring facilities, including, but not limited to:  

academic; art; computer; dance; driving and/or DUI; music; professional/business/trade; 

martial arts; and similar facilities; 

  (11) Florist shop; 

 

  (12) Hardware store; 

 

  (13) Home furnishings and accessories such as area rugs, decorative items, 

cutlery, dishware, glassware, lamps, pictures, pillows and tablecloths; 

  (14) Jewelry shop; 

 

  (15) Mail services store; 

 

  (16) Medical/dental office (human treatment); 

 

  (17) Office (business and/or professional); 

 

  (18) Personal services, including, but not limited to:  alterations; barber shop; 

beauty salon; clothing/costume rentals; counseling services; electrolysis and/or hair 



5 
 

removal; fitness center; laundry drop-off/pick-up; locksmith; nail salon; photography 

studio; shoe repair; and tanning salon; and 

  (19) Restaurant/restaurant takeout and catering. 

 

 (c) Conditional uses. The following conditional uses shall be allowed in the L-C-

1 zoning district provided that all conditions specified in article V of this chapter are met: 

  (1) Single-family residence and accessory structures and uses (see article III 

of this chapter); and 

  (2) Home occupation. 

 

 (d) Regulations. The following regulations shall apply to the L-C-1 zoning district 

in addition to any other applicable regulations. 

  (1) These structures shall maintain a residential character.  Elevation drawings 

denoting compliance with the following requirements shall be submitted as part of the 

site plan.  Properties within an Overlay Zone shall comply with the applicable 

Architectural Standards of the Overlay Zone in lieu of the architectural requirements 

below: 

  a. A pitched peaked (gable or hip) roof with a minimum pitch of four 

and one-half (4 ½) inches in one (1) foot and shall be of a type and construction 

complementary to the façade.  A pitched mansard roof façade with a minimum 

pitch of four and one-half (4 ½) inches in one (1) foot and a minimum height of 

eight (8) feet around the entire perimeter of the structure can be used if the 

structure is two stories or more or the use of a pitched peaked roof would cause 

the structure to not meet the applicable height limit requirements.  The mansard 



6 
 

roof façade shall be of a residential character with the appearance of shingles, 

slate or terra cotta; 

  b. All buildings shall be constructed in a residential character of 

fiber-cement siding (e.g., Hardiplank), wood siding, wood-textured vinyl siding, 

brick/brick veneer, rock, stone, cast-stone, or stucco (including synthetic stucco); 

  c. Framed doors and windows of a residential character. To 

maintain a residential character, large display windows shall give the appearance 

of smaller individual panes and framing consistent with the standard residential 

grid pattern for doors and windows; 

  d. Accessory structures shall maintain the same architectural 

character of the principal structure, including the pitched peaked (gable or hip) 

roof with a minimum pitch of four and one-half (4 ½) inches in one (1) foot, and 

shall be constructed of the same materials or materials which simulate same.  An 

elevation drawing denoting compliance with this requirement shall be submitted 

as part of the site plan. 

 (2) No outside storage will be permitted. 

 

 (3) The lot shall have direct access to an arterial street. 

 

 (4) No drive-through, drive-in, or drive-up facilities allowed. 

 

(e) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the L-C-

1 zoning district shall be as follows: 

 (1) Lot area: 

 

  a. Where public water is available:  43,560 square feet (one acre). 

 



7 
 

  b. Where public water is not available:  65,340 square feet (1 ½ 

acres). 

 (2) Lot width: 125 feet. 

 

 (3) Front yard setback: 

 

  a. Major thoroughfare: 

 

   1. Arterial: 75 feet. 

 

   2. Collector: 60 feet. 

 

  b. Minor thoroughfare: 55 feet. 

 

 (4) Rear yard setback: 15 feet. 

 

 (5) Side yard setback: 15 feet. 

 

 (6) Height limit: 35 feet. 

 

 (7) Floor to area ratio (gross square footage of site times 0.1 equals square 

footage of structure): The total maximum square footage for all structures combined on 

the lot shall not exceed 10,000 square feet.  However, to discourage the development of 

one linear building and to encourage the development of separate clustered buildings on 

the site, the square footage for the structures may be increased by fifteen (15%) percent 

when more than one (1) building is developed.  The distance between structures shall be a 

minimum of twenty-six (26) feet.  In addition to the area required to facilitate vehicular 

access, each building wall bordering the space between structures shall have a five (5)-

foot landscaped area consisting of five (5) shrubs, two (2) feet tall at planting, per twenty-

five (25) linear feet of building wall. 



8 
 

 (8) Buffer.  If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R zoning 

district, a minimum buffer of fifty (50) feet adjacent to such lot line shall be provided in 

addition to the required setback (the setback shall be measured from the buffer). 

 (9) Lot coverage limit, including structure and parking area: Sixty (60%) 

percent of the total lot area. 

Section 3. By adding a new section to Article I of Chapter 110 pertaining to the Limited 

Commercial (2) zoning district to be numbered and to read as follows: 

Sec. 110-145.5. L-C-2, Limited-Commercial (2) District. 
 

 (a) Intent. The intent of the L-C-2 zoning district is to establish small scale business 

areas which do not generate large amounts of traffic, noise or light.  The L-C-2 zoning district 

includes small retail and convenience commercial establishments, personal services, and 

business and professional offices.  The L-C-2 zoning district will control architectural character 

and scale.  The adaptive use of existing structures is encouraged when possible.  The L-C-2 

zoning district will discourage the development of a strip commercial building. 

 (b) Permitted principal uses. The following permitted principal uses shall be 

allowed in the L-C-2 zoning district: 

  (1) Antique shop, vintage store, thrift/second hand store, consignment store; 

 

  (2) Art and/or crafts studio; 

 

  (3) Bakery; 

 

  (4) Bank and/or financial institution such as a brokerage firm, credit union, 

financial planning, or mortgage brokerage (no Pay Day Loan, Check Cashing or Pawn 

Establishments); 

  (5) Book store; 

 



9 
 

  (6) Card, gift, and/or stationery shop; 

 

  (7) Cellular phone sales and service; 

 

  (8) Clothing and/or accessories such as belts and suspenders, boots and shoes, 

gloves, hats, jewelry, purses and handbags, ties, scarves, shawls, socks, and stockings, 

umbrellas, or watches; 

  (9) Copy and/or print shop; 

 

  (10) Educational/instructional/tutoring facilities, including, but not limited to:  

academic; art; computer; dance; driving and/or DUI; music; professional/business/trade; 

martial arts; and similar facilities; 

  (11) Florist shop; 

 

  (12) Hardware store; 

 

  (13) Home furnishings and accessories such as area rugs, decorative items, 

cutlery, dishware, glassware, lamps, pictures, pillows and tablecloths; 

  (14) Jewelry shop; 

 

  (15) Mail services store; 

 

  (16) Medical/dental office (human treatment); 

 

  (17) Office (business and/or professional); 

 

  (18) Personal services, including, but not limited to:  alterations; barber shop; 

beauty salon; clothing/costume rentals; counseling services; electrolysis and/or hair 

removal; fitness center; laundry drop-off/pick-up; locksmith; nail salon; photography 

studio; shoe repair; and tanning salon; and 

  (19) Restaurant/restaurant takeout and catering. 

 



10 
 

 (c) Conditional uses. The following conditional uses shall be allowed in the L-C-

2 zoning district provided that all conditions specified in article V of this chapter are met: 

  (1) Convenience commercial establishment; 

 

  (2) Single-family residence and accessory structures and uses (see article III 

of this chapter); and 

  (3) Home occupation. 

 

 (d) Regulations. The following regulations shall apply to the L-C-2 zoning district 

in addition to any other applicable regulations. 

  (1) These structures shall maintain a residential character.  Elevation drawings 

denoting compliance with the following requirements shall be submitted as part of the 

site plan.  Properties within an Overlay Zone shall comply with the applicable 

Architectural Standards of the Overlay Zone in lieu of the architectural requirements 

below: 

  a. A pitched peaked (gable or hip) roof with a minimum pitch of four 

and one-half (4 ½) inches in one (1) foot and shall be of a type and construction 

complementary to the façade.  A pitched mansard roof façade with a minimum 

pitch of four and one-half (4 ½) inches in one (1) foot and a minimum height of 

eight (8) feet around the entire perimeter of the structure can be used if the 

structure is two stories or more or the use of a pitched peaked roof would cause 

the structure to not meet the applicable height limit requirements.  The mansard 

roof façade shall be of a residential character with the appearance of shingles, 

slate or terra cotta; 



11 
 

  b. All buildings shall be constructed in a residential character of 

fiber-cement siding (e.g., Hardiplank), wood siding, wood-textured vinyl siding, 

brick/brick veneer, rock, stone, cast-stone, or stucco (including synthetic stucco); 

  c. Framed doors and windows of a residential character. To 

maintain a residential character, large display windows shall give the appearance 

of smaller individual panes and framing consistent with the standard residential 

grid pattern for doors and windows; 

  d. Accessory structures shall maintain the same architectural 

character of the principal structure, including the pitched peaked (gable or hip) 

roof with a minimum pitch of four and one-half (4 ½) inches in one (1) foot, and 

shall be constructed of the same materials or materials which simulate same.  An 

elevation drawing denoting compliance with this requirement shall be submitted 

as part of the site plan. 

 (2) No outside storage will be permitted. 

 

 (3) The lot shall have direct access to an arterial street. 

 

 (4) No drive-through, drive-in, or drive-up facilities allowed. 

 

(e) Dimensional requirements. The minimum dimensional requirements in the L-C-

2 zoning district shall be as follows: 

 (1) Lot area: 

 

  a. Where public water is available:  43,560 square feet (one acre). 

 

  b. Where public water is not available:  65,340 square feet (1 ½ 

acres). 

 (2) Lot width: 125 feet. 

 



12 
 

 (3) Front yard setback: 

 

  a. Major thoroughfare: 

 

   1. Arterial: 75 feet. 

 

   2. Collector: 60 feet. 

 

  b. Minor thoroughfare: 55 feet. 

 

 (4) Rear yard setback: 15 feet. 

 

 (5) Side yard setback: 15 feet. 

 

 (6) Height limit: 35 feet. 

 

 (7) Floor to area ratio (gross square footage of site times 0.1 equals square 

footage of structure): The total maximum square footage for all structures combined on 

the lot shall not exceed 10,000 square feet.  However, to discourage the development of 

one linear building and to encourage the development of separate clustered buildings on 

the site, the square footage for the structures may be increased by fifteen (15%) percent 

when more than one (1) building is developed.  The distance between structures shall be a 

minimum of twenty-six (26) feet.  In addition to the area required to facilitate vehicular 

access, each building wall bordering the space between structures shall have a five (5)-

foot landscaped area consisting of five (5) shrubs, two (2) feet tall at planting, per twenty-

five (25) linear feet of building wall. 

 (8) Buffer.  If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R zoning 

district, a minimum buffer of fifty (50) feet adjacent to such lot line shall be provided in 

addition to the required setback (the setback shall be measured from the buffer). 

 (9) Lot coverage limit, including structure and parking area: Sixty (60%) 

percent of the total lot area. 



13 
 

Section 4. By deleting paragraph (q) from Section 110-169 of Article V in Chapter 110 

pertaining to the conditional use approval process for convenience commercial 

establishments and by enacting in lieu thereof a new paragraph (q) in Section 110-

169 of Article V of Chapter 110 pertaining to the conditional use approval process 

for convenience commercial establishments to be numbered and to read as 

follows: 

q. Convenience commercial establishment. Allowed in the L-C-2 zoning district. 

 

  1. Maximum floor area: 3,500 square feet. 

 

  2. Accessory structures, including service area canopies used in conjunction 

with the sale of gasoline, shall maintain the same architectural character of the principal 

structure including the pitched roof, and shall be constructed of the same materials or 

materials which simulate same.  An elevation drawing denoting compliance with this 

requirement shall be submitted as part of the site plan.  Properties within an Overlay Zone 

shall comply with the applicable Architectural Standards of the Overlay Zone. 

  3. Motor vehicle vacuum cleaners shall be located to the side or rear of the 

principal structure. 

  4. Underground storage tanks shall be set back at least twenty (20) feet from 

all property lines. 

  5. The number of gasoline pumps shall be limited to no more than six (6) 

with a total of twelve (12) pumping stations. 

Section 5. By deleting Section 110-174 from Article V in Chapter 110 pertaining to 

commercial development standards and by enacting in lieu thereof a new Section 



14 
 

110-174 in Article V of Chapter 110 pertaining to the historic district overlay 

zone to be numbered and to read as follows: 

Sec. 110-174. Historic district overlay zone. 
 

 Starr’s Mill Historic District Overlay Zone at the SR 74, SR 85, & Padgett Road 

Intersection. All property and/or development located at this intersection with nonresidential 

use or zoning as depicted on the Future Land Use Map shall be subject to the following 

regulations, in addition to the zoning district requirements, and other development regulations as 

applicable.  The General State Route Overlay Zone shall not apply to this area. 

 (1) The purpose of the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay Zone at the SR 74, SR 85, and 

Padgett Road Intersection is to achieve the following: 

  a. To maintain the historic character of the area; 

 

  b. To control the intensity and aesthetic quality of development at the 

intersection as it is the southern gateway into Fayette County; 

  c. To promote and maintain orderly development for an efficient traffic flow 

in highway corridors; and 

  d. To protect existing and future residential areas outside of the intersection. 

 

 (2) Access.  Access to each nonresidential property and/or development shall 

be from SR 74, SR 85, or Padgett Road.  All access points shall be required to comply with 

Georgia Department of Transportation regulations and/or Fayette County Development 

Regulations, as applicable. 

 (3) Dimensional Requirements. 

 

  a. All parking areas shall be located at least fifty (50) feet from SR 74, SR 

85, or Padgett Road right-of-way. 



15 
 

  b. Front yard setbacks on SR 74, SR 85, and Padgett Road for all structures, 

including gasoline canopies, shall be one hundred (100) feet. 

  c. Berms for nonresidential zoning districts: Berms when required as a 

condition of zoning, shall be a minimum of four (4) feet in height, and shall be placed to 

the inside of the applicable buffer. 

  d. If the side yard abuts a nonresidential zoning district, all non-structural 

improvements, other than approved access, shall be located a minimum of ten (10) feet 

from the side property line. 

 (4) Architectural Forms and Standards. All new structures shall maintain the 

historical and aesthetic character of the area.  Starr’s Mill was built in the late 1800s and is a 

significant historic resource in Fayette County.  Starr’s Mill is indicative of turn of the century 

architectural character common in rural areas and is a building of influence in this area.  Other 

architectural styles such as One-Part Commercial Block and Two-Part Commercial Block 

associated with this period are acceptable for this overlay zone.  Architectural examples are on 

file in the Planning and Zoning Department. 

 Architectural Review.  An owner/developer may obtain an administrative staff 

approval for structures by submitting elevation drawings denoting compliance with these 

architectural forms and standards.  Staff review and approval will take place as part of the site 

plan approval process.  An owner/developer may exercise an architectural review option for 

structures within the overlay zone.  The purpose of this option is to allow the owner/developer to 

present a creative interpretation of the architectural intent of the overlay zone.  Elevation 

drawings, submitted as part of the site plan approval process, shall be reviewed and considered 



16 
 

by the Board of Commissioners in a public meeting with a recommendation from the Planning 

Commission and Staff. 

 a. Starr’s Mill: Starr’s Mill is a two-story structure with a gable roof.  The 

roof is corrugated metal.  The façade is wood clapboard siding and runs in a horizontal 

pattern.  The structure sits on a stacked stone foundation and stacked stone pillars.  

Windows are wood-framed with a grid muntin pattern.  Doors are also wood-framed.  

The structure has a covered porch with stairs and a wood picket rail banister.  The 

building is red, the stairs, porch framing and banisters are white, the stair landings and 

porch decking are grey and the roof and porch covering is a grey corrugated metal. 

  1. Roof: Gable roof with a minimum pitch of four and one-half (4 

½) inches in one (1) foot.  Roofing material shall be grey corrugated metal. 

  2. Façade Material: Clapboard siding running in a horizontal 

pattern on all walls.  Acceptable sidings include wood and fiber-cement siding 

(e.g., Hardiplank).  The foundation shall have the appearance of stacked stone.  

Façade colors shall match with the color palette on file in the Planning and 

Zoning Department. 

  3. Doors and Windows: Doors and windows shall have a frame and 

grid muntin pattern as established by Starr’s Mill.  Door and window frames shall 

be white with a minimum width of four (4) inches.  Large display windows and 

glass doors shall give the appearance of grid pattern muntins and framing 

consistent with Starr’s Mill.  Grid pattern muntins shall be white.  Large display 

or storefront windows shall have a minimum two (2)-foot high bulkhead (the 



17 
 

lower panels on which the windows rest) consistent with the Façade Materials 

above. 

  4. Covered Entrance: Covered entrances shall be in character with 

the Starr’s Mill porch consisting of a grey corrugated metal matching the roof of 

the main structure.  A white wood picket rail banister with a minimum height of 

three (3) feet shall extend the full length of the covered entrance with a maximum 

entrance space of three (3) feet.  All support structures shall be white. 

b. One-Part Commercial Block: A popular commercial design from the mid-

19th to the early 20th century.  The one-part commercial block is a simple, one-story box 

with a flat or shed roof.  Common façade materials consist of brick with decorative block, 

stone, and concrete accents.  The focal point of the front façade is the entrance and 

windows, consisting of a recessed doorway and display windows with a transom resting 

on a bulkhead (the lower panels on which the windows rest) framed by pilasters.  

Architectural features include a cornice, belt course and parapet wall. 

 1. Façade Material: Brick/brick veneer shall be utilized on all 

walls as the primary façade material comprising a minimum of sixty-five (65%) 

percent of the wall, excluding doors, windows and associated framing.  The brick 

color shall match with one of the colors in the brick palette on file in the Planning 

and Zoning Department.  Painted brick shall not be allowed.  The remaining 

thirty-five (35%) percent of the wall may have the appearance of a contrasting 

brick color, rough face decorative block, stone, and/or concrete accents and the 

colors shall match with the color palette on file in the Planning and Zoning 

Department. 



18 
 

 2. Entrance Doors and Windows: The entrance door and 

window component shall consist of entrance door(s), display windows, door and 

window transoms, and bulkhead.  Door and window frames may be constructed 

with wood, metal, or vinyl.  An anodized silver finish shall not be allowed for 

door and window frames and all colors shall match with the color palette on file 

in the Planning and Zoning Department.  Transoms shall be a minimum of two (2) 

feet high and shall be separated from the windows and door by a mullion width of 

four (4) inches.  A minimum two (2)-foot high bulkhead (the lower panels on 

which the windows rest) consistent with the Façade Materials above shall be 

required. 

 3. Architectural Features: A cornice is required.  The cornice 

shall be a minimum of one (1) foot in height with a minimum projection of four 

(4) inches from the main façade.  The projection may be gradual.  A parapet wall 

is required along the front and side walls of the structure and shall be a minimum 

of two (2) feet in height.  Colors shall match with the color palette on file in the 

Planning and Zoning Department. 

c. Two-Part Commercial Block:  A popular commercial design from 

the mid-19th to the early 20th century.  These buildings have two primary components – 

first floor storefronts (similar in design to a One-Part Commercial Block) and upper 

floors which historically were used for residential or office space.  The focal point of the 

first floor is the entrance and windows, consisting of a recessed doorway and display 

windows with a transom resting on a bulkhead (the lower panels on which the windows 

rest) framed by pilasters.  Upper floors have one or more floors of smaller symmetrically-



19 
 

positioned windows.  Architectural features include a cornice, belt course and parapet 

wall.  Common façade materials consist of brick with decorative block, stone, and 

concrete accents. 

 1. Façade Materials: Brick/brick veneer shall be utilized on all 

walls as the primary façade material comprising a minimum of sixty-five (65%) 

percent of the wall, excluding doors, windows and associated framing.  The brick 

color shall match with one of the colors in the brick palette on file in the Planning 

and Zoning Department.  Painted brick shall not be allowed.  The remaining 

thirty-five (35%) percent of the wall may have the appearance of a contrasting 

brick color, rough face decorative block, stone, and/or concrete accents and the 

colors shall match with the color palette on file in the Planning and Zoning 

Department. 

 2. Entrance Doors and Windows (first floor storefronts): The 

entrance door and window component shall consist of entrance door(s), display 

windows, door and window transoms, and bulkhead (the lower panels on which 

the windows rest).  Door and window frames may be constructed with wood, 

metal, or vinyl.  An anodized silver finish shall not be allowed for door and 

window frames and all colors shall match with the color palette on file in the 

Planning and Zoning Department.  Transoms shall be a minimum of two (2) feet 

high and shall be separated from the windows and door by a mullion with a 

minimum width of four (4) inches.  A minimum two (2)-foot high bulkhead 

consistent with the Façade Materials above shall be required. 



20 
 

 3. Upper Floor Windows: Upper floor windows shall be 

symmetrically positioned.  All window frames shall match with the color palette 

on file in the Planning and Zoning Department. 

 4. Architectural Features: A cornice is required.  The cornice 

shall be a minimum of one (1) foot in height with a minimum projection of four 

(4) inches from the main façade.  The projection may be gradual.  A belt course 

with a minimum projection of one (1) inch from the main façade shall be required 

between the first floor and the second floor.  A parapet wall is required and shall 

be a minimum of two (2) feet in height.  Colors shall match with the color palette 

on file in the Planning and Zoning Department. 

d. Lighting: 

 

 1. All wall lighting shall consist of period lantern or goose neck 

pendant lighting.  These restrictions shall not apply to wall lighting required by 

the Fire Marshal. 

 2. All pole lighting shall consist of period post top globe, lantern, or 

pendant luminaries with rapid-ship posts. 

e. Within the fifty (50)-foot front landscape area, a wall or fence is required 

to run along a minimum of forty (40%) percent of the frontage.  If a wall, the wall shall 

be a minimum of three (3) feet in height with the appearance of stacked stone.  If a fence, 

the fence shall be a minimum of four (4) feet in height with the appearance of wrought 

iron, picket, split rail or horse rail fence.  Fence materials are limited to metal, 

vinyl/plastic, pre-cast concrete and masonry for columns. 

 



21 
 

f. Gasoline Canopy. Gasoline canopies shall comply with the following 

requirements: 

 1. Gasoline canopies may be attached to the principal structure as an 

extension of the structure/roof. 

 2. The vertical clearance under the gasoline canopy shall not exceed a 

maximum of eighteen (18) feet in height.  The height of the gasoline canopy shall 

not be more than four (4) feet above the height of the principal structure. 

 3. The gasoline canopy and support structure shall match the 

architectural character, materials, color and roof of the principal structure.  

Gasoline canopies, in conjunction with a convenience commercial establishment 

built in the architectural form of Starr’s Mill, shall have a minimum roof pitch of 

three (3) inches in one (1) foot. 

g. Color Palette: Only those colors indicated on the color palette on file in 

the Planning and Zoning Department shall be allowed for structures.  Any changes to the 

color of structures in this overlay must be submitted to Staff for approval. 

h. The design of ancillary buildings and sign structures shall be consistent 

with the architectural style and color inherent in the principal structure on the property. 

(5) Landscape Requirements. In addition to the standard requirements of the 

landscape ordinance, the following landscape requirements shall apply to the overlay zone: 

 a. Street Frontage: Landscape area:  Fifty (50) feet along the right-of-

way of SR 74, SR 85, and Padgett Road.  The first twenty-five (25) feet as measured 

from the right-of-way is for required landscape planting only.  The remaining twenty-five 

(25) feet may be used for septic system placement; underground stormwater detention 



22 
 

systems; and the following stormwater management facilities/structures if designed in 

full accordance with the specifications provided in the most current edition of the 

Georgia Stormwater Management Manual; vegetated channels, overland flow 

filtration/groundwater recharge zone, enhanced swales, filter strips, and grass channels.  

Septic systems and stormwater structures shall be exclusive of each other and the 

minimum distance of separation between wastewater and stormwater structures shall be 

established by the Environmental Health Department and the Environmental 

Management Department.  Utilities (including underground stormwater piping) and 

multi-use path connections may be located anywhere within the landscape area. 

 b. Side Yard Landscape Area: Ten (10) feet in depth along the side 

property lines unless adjacent to a residential district where buffer requirements will 

apply. 

(6) Use of Existing Structure: When property containing legal conforming or legal 

nonconforming structures, under the current zoning, is rezoned to a nonresidential zoning district 

the dimensional requirements shall be reduced to the extent of, but only at the location of, any 

encroachment by the structures and said structures shall be considered legal nonconforming 

structures. 

(7) Lighting and shielding standards. Lighting shall be placed in a manner to 

direct light away from any adjacent roadways or nearby residential areas. 

(8) Special Locational and Spatial Requirements. 

 

 a. No more than fifty (50%) percent of the required parking can be located in 

the front yard along a State Route as established by the front building line of any 

structure located on the site.  Sites with existing parking are exempt. 



23 
 

 b. No outside storage allowed. 

 

 c. All rooftop heating, ventilation, and air conditioning equipment and 

satellite/communications equipment shall be visually screened from adjacent roads and 

property zoned residential or A-R.  The screen shall extend to the full height of the 

objects being screened. 

Section 6. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the 

Board of Commissioners for Fayette County. 

Section 7. All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are 

hereby repealed. 

Section 8. If any event any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 

shall be declared or adjudged invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall 

in no manner affect other sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases of 

this Ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if the section, 

subsection, sentence, clause or phrase so declared or adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional were not a part thereof.  The Board of Commissioners hereby 

declares that it would have passed the remaining parts of this Ordinance if it had 

known that such part or parts hereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 

 

 

 



24 
 

SO ENACTED this ______ day of ____________________, 2016. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 

FAYETTE COUNTY 

(SEAL) 

By:_______________________ 

     Charles W. Oddo, Chairman 

ATTEST:      

 

___________________________ 

Floyd Jones, County Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

 

___________________________ 

County Attorney 



COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Type of Request:

Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina, Director

Public Hearing of Resolution 2016-09 for the purpose of approving the proposed Color and Brick Palette for the Starr’s Mill Historic 
Overlay District and Overlay Zone.

Both Staff and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the proposed Color and Brick Palette for the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay 
District and Overlay Zone. 

PLEASE NOTE: Planning Commission Minutes in the backup for Resolution 2016-06 applies to this Item as well.

Approval of Resolution 2016-09 for the purpose of approving the proposed Color and Brick Palette for the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay 
District and Overlay Zone.

Not applicable.

Yes

Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Yes

Yes

Thursday, June 23, 2016 Public Hearing #2



COUNTY OF FAYETTE 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

RESOLUTION NO. 

2016 - ___ 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 

COUNTY FOR THE PURPOSE OF APPROVING A COLOR AND BRICK PALETTE 

FOR THE STARR’S MILL HISTORIC OVERLAY DISTRICT AND OVERLAY ZONE; 

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSONERS OF FAYETTE 

COUNTY, GEORGIA, AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE 

AUTHORITY OF THE SAME THAT THE COLOR AND BRICK PALETTE FOR THE 

STARR’S MILL HISTORIC OVERLAY DISTRICT AND OVERLAY ZONE IS 

HEREBY ADOPTED AS FOLLOWS: 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County is the duly enacted 

governing authority for Fayette County, Georgia; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County adopted the Starr’s Mill 

Historic Overlay District and Overlay Zone on or about June 23, 2016; and 

 WHEREAS, the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District and Overlay Zone refers to a color 

and brick palette which is on file in the Planning and Zoning Department of Fayette County; and 

 WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County to 

approve the color and brick palette to be on file in the Planning and Zoning Department and to be 

used with the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District and Overlay Zone. 



 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Fayette 

County has reviewed the Color and Brick Palette which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit 

“A” with said Exhibit “A” being incorporated into this Resolution by this reference thereto. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that upon consideration of the Color and Brick Palette 

attached as Exhibit “A”, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County hereby and does so 

approve the Color and Brick Palette attached as Exhibit “A” to be used in conjunction with the 

development of property within the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District and Overlay Zone. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning and Zoning Department is directed to 

keep this Color and Brick Palette on file upon its approval. 

 SO RESOLVED this _____ day of ____________________, 2016. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 

FAYETTE COUNTY 

(SEAL) 

By:_______________________ 

     Charles W. Oddo, Chairman 

ATTEST:      

 

___________________________ 

Floyd Jones, County Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

 

___________________________ 

County Attorney 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overly Color Palette 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overly Color Palette 

2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overly Color Palette 

3 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overly Color Palette 

4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overly Color Palette 

5 
 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overly Color Palette 

6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overly Color Palette 

7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overly Color Palette 

8 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overly Color Palette 

9 
 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overly Color Palette 

10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overly Color Palette 

11 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overly Color Palette 

12 
 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overly Color Palette 

13 
 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay Brick Palette 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay Brick Palette 

2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay Brick Palette 

3 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay Brick Palette 

4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Type of Request:

Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina, Director

Public Hearing of Resolution 2016-06 to amend the Land Use Element Text and Future Land Use Plan Map of the Fayette County 
Comprehensive Plan for the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District in the area of the Intersection of State Route 74, State Route 85 and 
Padgett Road.

This request was originally presented at the May 26, 2016 Board of Commissioners (BOC) meeting.  The Board unanimously approved to 
to bring this item back to the June 23, 2016 BOC meeting. Early in 2016 Staff met with the BOC individually and/or two at a time to brief 
the Commission on the upcoming amendments due to their scope and complexity.  Two suggestions from those meeting were addressed 
in the amendments.  These suggestions were that wood not be allowed for the required fencing as it would require more maintenance 
and could fall into disrepair and become unsightly, and that the ground mounted sign structure match the façade/appearance of the 
principal structure on the lot. 

The Staff and Planning Commission restarted this project in July of 2015 to review and recommend Land Use Plan amendments and 
related Zoning Ordinance amendments for the area at the intersection of State Route (SR) 74, SR 85 and Padgett Road.  This project 
was initiated in response to a request from property owners at the intersection and the four lane widening on SR 74. 

Both Staff and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the proposed amendments. 

The Planning Commission minutes are provided as backup for this request.

Approval of Resolution 2016-06 to amend the Land Use Element Text and Future Land Use Plan Map of the Fayette County 
Comprehensive Plan for the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District in the area of the Intersection of State Route 74, State Route 85 and 
Padgett Road.

Yes

Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Yes

Yes

Thursday, June 23, 2016 Public Hearing #3



COUNTY OF FAYETTE 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

RESOLUTION NO. 

2016 - ___ 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 

COUNTY FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING THE FAYETTE COUNTY 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE ELEMENT TEXT AND THE FAYETTE 

COUNTY FUTURE LAND USE PLAN MAP; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSONERS OF FAYETTE 

COUNTY, GEORGIA, AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE 

AUTHORITY OF THE SAME THAT THE FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE 

PLAN LAND USE ELEMENT TEXT AND THE FAYETTE COUNTY FUTURE LAND 

USE PLAN MAP ARE HEREBY AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County is the duly enacted 

governing authority for Fayette County, Georgia; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County has prepared amendments 

to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Land Use Element text attached hereto as Exhibit 

“A” with said Exhibit “A” being incorporated herein by this reference, concerning the new 

Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District and the Fayette County Future Land Use Plan Map to 

designate areas as Limited Commercial One, Limited Commercial Two, Office and Low Density 

Residential (1 Unit/1 to 2 Acres) in the area of State Route 74, State Route 85 and Padgett Road; 

and 



 WHEREAS, on the 23rd day of June, 2016, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette 

County conducted a public hearing. 

 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of Fayette 

County has reviewed the prepared amendments in Exhibit “A” and does hereby adopt the 

prepared amendments in Exhibit “A” to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Land Use 

Element text concerning the new Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District and the Fayette County 

Future Land Use Plan Map to designate areas as Limited Commercial One, Limited Commercial 

Two, Office, Transportation/Communication/Utilities, and Low Density Residential (1 Unit/1 to 

2 Acres) in the area of State Route 74, State Route 85 and Padgett Road. 

 SO RESOLVED this _____ day of ____________________, 2016. 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 

FAYETTE COUNTY 

(SEAL) 

By:_______________________ 

     Charles W. Oddo, Chairman 

ATTEST:      

 

___________________________ 

Floyd Jones, County Clerk 

Approved as to form: 

 

___________________________ 

County Attorney 





THE FOLLOWING WILL BE ADDED IN ITS ENTIRETY TO THE FAYETTE 
COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, LAND USE ELEMENT, FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AND NARRATIVE, COMMERCIAL  
 
Limited Commercial (One & Two) 
 
This category designates properties where specifically small scale businesses which do not 
generate large amounts of traffic, noise or light are to be located. For more descriptive purposes, 
Limited Commercial land use is subdivided into “Limited Commercial One” and “Limited 
Commercial Two” categories: 
 

Limited Commercial One: This category identifies properties where the L-C-1 (Limited-
Commercial (1) District) is recommended. 
 
Limited Commercial Two: This category identifies property where the L-C-2 (Limited-
Commercial (2) District) is recommended. 

 
SR 74, SR 85, & Padgett Road Intersection (Starr’s Mill Historic District):  This intersection is in 
close proximity to historic Starr’s Mill.  This area represents a newly developing nonresidential 
node where the L-C-1 (Limited-Commercial (1) District) and the L-C-2 (Limited-Commercial 
(2) District) zoning districts are recommended as depicted on the Future Land Use Plan map.  
The C-C (Community Commercial District) and the C-H (Highway Commercial District) are not 
designated for this area.    
 
THE FOLLOWING WILL BE ADDED IN ITS ENTIRETY TO THE FAYETTE 
COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, LAND USE ELEMENT, FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP AND NARRATIVE, FUTURE DEVELOPMENT FACTORS 
 
Historic District  
 
Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District at the SR 74, SR 85, & Padgett Road Intersection:  
Starr’s Mill is a significant historic resource and is identified and discussed in the Natural and 
Historic Resources Element of this Plan.  This Overlay District identifies the county’s goals and 
recommendations for the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District at the SR 74, SR 85, & Padgett 
Road intersection.   Both SR 74 and SR 85 are Major Arterials and serve as commuting routes.  
SR 74 connects to Peachtree City, Tyrone and Interstate 85 to the north.  SR 85 runs through 
Fayetteville to Clayton County and connections to SR 92, SR 314, and SR 279 can be made 
along this route.  The widening of SR 74 from two to four lanes was completed in early 2012.  
As a result of this project Padgett Road was realigned to alleviate its offset from SR 74.   SR 85 
is planned to be widened from two to four lanes in the future. 
 



Historic Resources:  Starr’s Mill is located to the northeast of this intersection on Whitewater 
Creek.  Starr’s Mill is one of the most significant historical structures in Fayette County.  The 
mill and surrounding property containing the mill pond is owned by the Fayette County Water 
System and serves as a water intake location and passive park.  The present mill was built in 
1888 and was central to the Starr’s Mill Community that also contained a post office, stores, a 
church, a cotton gin, and a saw mill.  These facts are discussed in the Natural and Historic 
Resources Element of the comprehensive plan. 
 
Also located at the intersection in close proximity to Starr’s Mill is the Starr’s Mill Baptist 
Church.  It is estimated that the church was constructed in 1887 according to the Natural and 
Historic Resources Element.  The church is owned and utilized by New Hope Baptist Church 
which is located across SR 74.  
 
Existing Development:  Properties at this intersection are residentially zoned and the Future 
Land Use Plan designates these properties as residential.  Most lots contain single-family 
residences with the exception of a lot of approximately eight acres that contains the 
aforementioned Starr’s Mill Baptist Church.  Some of the lots are nonconforming and a few are 
less than one acre in size.  A legal nonconforming commercial structure was removed due to the 
realignment of Padgett Road.   
 
Several single-family residential subdivisions are located in close proximity to the intersection.  
These subdivisions include Mill Pond Manor (R-45), Southmill (C-S), Starr’s Mill Ridge (R-20), 
and Starr’s Mill Estates (R-20).  While Starr’s Mill Estates is zoned for one acre lots, the lots 
range in size from four to eight acres. 
 
Future Development:  Due to the improvements to this intersection through the SR 74 widening 
project and the future widening of SR 85, it is anticipated that property owners at this 
intersection will pursue nonresidential development.   The preferred development pattern is for 
properties closest to the intersection to contain the more intense uses and land use intensity will 
generally decrease in intensity as it moves away from the intersection.  The maintenance of an 
efficient flow of traffic at this intersection is essential.  The historic character of the area should 
be taken into consideration in the development of this area.  
 
The goals of the Starr’s Mill Historic District Overlay at the SR 74, SR 85, & Padgett Road 
Intersection are: (1) maintain the historic character of the area, (2) control the intensity and 
aesthetic quality of development at the intersection as it is the southern gateway into Fayette 
County, (3) maintain an efficient flow of traffic at the intersection, and (4) protect existing and 
future residential areas outside of the intersection. 
 



Recommendations:  The land use of this area associated with this intersection will be depicted 
on the Future Land Use Plan and corresponding Overlay Zone requirements for nonresidential 
development will be added to the Zoning Ordinance.  The nonresidential land use designations at 
this intersection will consist of Limited Commercial One, Limited Commercial Two, and Office.  
Some fringe areas will have a residential land use designation of Low Density Residential (1 
Unit/1 to 2 Acres). The C-C (Community Commercial District) and the C-H (Highway 
Commercial District) are not designated for this area.   
 
THE FOLLOWING WILL BE ADDED IN ITS ENTIRETY TO THE FAYETTE 
COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, FUTURE LAND USE PLAN MAP  
 
Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District and Overlay Zone 

Overlay District (see Fayette County Comprehensive Plan, Land Use Element) 
Overlay Zone (see Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 110-174 Historic District Overlay              
Zone) 

 



1. Discussion of the SR 85 and SR 74 intersection. 
 
Pete Frisina said staff and Planning Commission had worked on land use and zoning for this 
intersection but didn’t finish the project.  He said both State Routes are covered under an overlay 
but what we wanted to do was create a different overlay just for the four (4) corners.   
 
Chairman Graw asked Pete Frisina to explain the concept of overlay zoning. 
 
 
 
Page 8   
July 16, 2015 
PC Meeting 
 
Pete Frisina said an overlay zoning overlays the base zoning of a property with addition 
regulations to maintain certain standards over all of the properties for consistency such as a 
highway corridor which could cover setbacks, architectural character, etc.  He added that every 
State Route has an overlay zone and some are specific and others are covered under the General 
State Route Overlay.  He said our approach was to look at the four (4) corners with an overlay 
specific to those four (4) corners and remove them from the State Route Overlays.  
 
Chairman Graw said the northwest corner is #1, the northeast corner is #2, the southwest corner 
is #3 and the Southeast corner is #4.  He said if he remembers correctly, there is a triangular 
piece of property on the corner # 4 that is owned by GDOT. 
 
Pete Frisina said he thinks that is correct and he would ask Phil Mallon if that is still correct.  He 
said the triangle is the area of the old road bed of Padgett Road.  He added that there is a power 
line that runs to the south of corner #3 which creates a good demarcation for a separation 
between a residential and nonresidential land use.  He stated that approximately four (4) acres on 
corner #1 were discussed as Commercial.   
 
Brian Haren asked if there was some sort of detention pond on corner #3. 
 
Pete Frisina said from the aerials its looks like a small wetland or manmade pond. 
 
Chairman Graw asked were the new subdivision is located in this area. 
 
Pete Frisina said Southmill is to the west of SR 85. 
 
Chairman Graw asked how far back from the road had we discussed commercial zoning going. 
 
Pete Frisina said we discussed the four (4) parcels at the intersection and there are two (2) lots 
containing houses between this commercial area and Southmill Subdivision where Office could 
be appropriate. 
 
Chairman Graw if we should continue with commercial all the way to Southmill. 



 
Brain Haren said the office area would be a transition from commercial to residential. 
 
Chairman Graw asked what we had proposed on corner #2. 
 
Pete Frisina said that corner is a special situation as there is an existing church with a parking lot 
on this corner and it is close to Starrs Mill.  He stated that we don’t want something there that 
will detract from the historic character of Starrs Mill.  He said it was discussed that an adaptive 
reuse of the church would help maintain the historic character but he didn’t know if the age of 
the building would preclude it from meeting current building standards. 
 
Page 9   
July 16, 2015 
PC Meeting 
 
Al Gilbert said the church believed that given its proximity to Starrs Mill that if the County 
purchased the church it could be used in conjunction with Starrs Mill to create a park. 
 
Chairman Graw asked if we had discussed taking the commercial to the large parcel behind the 
church. 
 
Pete Frisina said he didn’t think we had proposed commercial for that parcel and we had 
discussed limiting the commercial uses on corner #2 because of Starrs Mill. 
 
Brian Haren said there is a conservation area and path being discussed for the Starrs Mill and 
north along Whitewater Creek and last thing he would want to see is a path and canoeing route 
terminating into a convenience store and he agrees that we need to protect corner #2 in terms of 
what goes in there and how it looks. 
 
Chairman Graw said we talked about a turn of the century character for the buildings at this 
intersection. 
 
Al Gilbert said something similar to the architectural character of downtown Senoia. 
 
Brian Haren said Starrs Mill is one of the most photographed mills in Georgia. 
 
Arnold Martin said the mill dictates the period architectural character we want at the intersection. 
 
Pete Frisina said the discussion was corner #1 and #3 is where the heavier commercial use could 
be located, corner #2 would have limited commercial uses and we did not come up with a good 
concept for corner #4. 
 
Chairman Graw asked what has brought this discussion of the SR 74 and SR 8s intersection up 
again. 
 
Pete Frisina said the real estate representative that brought it up before recently spoke to me and 



said they were still trying to market the property.  He added that the Planning Commission had 
met with the property owners in this area a long time ago and they were told after SR 74 was 
completed the County would look at the land use at this intersection. 
 
Chairman Graw said the reason we are putting so much thought into this intersection is it is the 
southern entrance into Fayette County and I want the County to be prepared when someone asks 
for a rezoning at this intersection. 
 
Arnold Martin said with the film industry in our area, if we aid to that based on a plan for period 
architectural character it could even attract even more of that industry.  He added that a new  
Page 10   
July 16, 2015 
PC Meeting 
 
building can be covered in a façade that will give this period appearance. He asked how the 
County will control development to get this appearance. 
 
Al Gilbert said we will use an overlay zone of some type.  
 
Pete Frisina said Chairman Graw asked that the Limited-Commercial (L-C) Zoning District be 
given out for review as this is the zoning district we were considering for the intersection.  He 
added in terms of a convenience store it limits it to six (6) gas pumps which are 12 fueling 
stations. 
 
Chairman Graw said the L-C has not been used in the County yet. 
 
Arnold Martin asked how many gas pumps the Quiktrip had. 
 
Al Gilbert said 12 pumps which gives you 24 fueling stations.  He added that he thinks corners # 
1 and #3 should be allowed to have convenience stores because with four (4) lanes of traffic you 
want to discourage people from making turning movements across this road. 
 
Pete Frisina said there is a morning side of the road and an evening side of the road. 
 
Chairman Graw said he is not in agreement with a convenience store on these two (2) corners, 
one on #1 and one on #3.   He said he did agree with a convenience store on #1 only.  He added a 
convenience store may take up close to an acre of land and if that is correct, that would leave 
little available land to develop on #3 for other uses such as restaurant, etc. He said he would like 
to see something other than convenience stores at this intersection. 
 
Arnold Martin said the closet convenience store is located on SR 16 in Senoia. 
 
Al Gilbert said the market is going to determine if two (2) convenience store are viable at this 
intersection but I think corners # 1 and #3 should be allowed have them. 
 
Pete Frisina said there are about 8,000 cars a day on SR 74 and 10,000 to 11,000 on SR 85. 



 
Brain Haren asked if the number of cars is reason enough to say there has to be a convenience 
store on one or both of those corners. 
 
Pete Frisina said when open up these corners for commercial, a convenience store is probably 
going to be the first thing someone wants to build there.  He added that you might only see one 
convenience store at first but over time a second one may come.  He said a convenience store is a 
typical use at the intersection of major highways. 
 
 
Page 11   
July 16, 2015 
PC Meeting 
 
Al Gilbert said keep in mind that the L-C will keep the convenience store small compared to the  
larger companies because of the requirements.   
 
Pete Frisina said this is the overview of some of the ideas we had for this intersection and we 
basically need to pick up from there to complete the plan. 
 
Chairman Graw asked were we calling this a historic district. 
 
Pete Frisina said we were going to create some kind of special development district for a specific 
area located on the four corners of this intersection so the four (4) corners are regulated with 
similar architectural controls. 
 
Brian Haren asked if we need to carry something further up SR 85. 
 
Al Gilbert said he thinks we need to look at the SR 85 Connector intersection. 
 
Pete Frisina said the County has fought commercial zoning at SR 85 connector twice. 
 
Chairman Graw said he agrees that we look at the SR 85 Connector.  
 
Al Gilbert asked the Planning Commission members to drive down in the area to get familiar 
with the intersection. 
 
Pete Frisina said the uses in L-C are quite limited including  Antique shop; Art and/or crafts 
studio; Bakery; Bank and/or financial institution; Barbershop and/or beauty shop; Book, 
stationery, and/or card shop; Clothing and accessories; Dance school and/or studio; Florist shop; 
Gift shop; Home furnishings and accessories; Jewelry shop; Laundry and/or dry clean pickup 
station; Medical/dental office (human treatment); Music teaching studio; Office (business and/or 
professional); Photography studio; Restaurant/restaurant takeout (no drive-through or drive-in 
allowed); and Shoe repair. 
 
Al Gilbert said he thinks a hardware store would be a good use for the intersection. 



 
Peter Frisina said that wouldn’t be allowed in L-C 
 
Arnold Martin said remembers coming to a BOC meeting for a rezoning for a convenience store 
and people brought up the fact that a convenience store draws a certain element that will hang 
out there and the perception was they were going to cause trouble. 
 
Al Gilbert said we can limit the hours. 
 
 
Page 12   
July 16, 2015 
PC Meeting 
 
Pete Frisina said that was hard to regulate. 
 
Al Gilbert said a fitness center is a popular use. 
 
Peter Frisina said that wouldn’t be allowed in L-C 
 
Chairman Graw said the convenience store at SR 54 and Robinson Road is in character with 
what we are looking at for the intersection. 
 
Pete Frisina said we will continue to work on the plan for this area and discuss it at a future 
meeting.  
 



OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. Discussion of the SR 85 and SR 74 intersection. 
 
Pete Frisina said what was sent to the Planning Commission are drafts of text for the land use 
plan,  an Overlay Zone for the intersection, an amended version of the L-C Zoning district and a 
new proposed commercial zoning district.  He said he spoke with the County Attorney about 
some of the land use approaches Staff and the Planning Commission were considering for the 
intersection concerning restricting uses on some of the corners.  He stated that the County 
Attorney was more comfortable legally with restricting land uses through different zoning 
districts as opposed to restricting uses within a zoning district with a Special Development 
district, so these drafts are geared toward that approach.  He added that the land use text draft 
outlines this approach by listing the land use designations, Limited Commercial, Office, and Low 
Density Residential,  including a new commercial designation that will correspond to a new 
commercial zoning district that is less intense than L-C.  He said Low Density Residential is 
being considered because there is one acre zoning in place in this area that the land use plan does 
not reflect and the area around these proposed nonresidential areas are in land use designations 
of Rural Residential and Agricultural-Residential and Low Density Residential would be a better 
transition. 
 
 
Page 2   
August 20, 2015 
PC Meeting 
 
Arnold Martin said the County does not dictate property values but when the County changes 
land use and zoning there is an implied sense that the value is increased depending on the uses so 
how do we balance that on different corners. 
 
Pete Frisina said different land uses and/or zonings could have an effect on the value of property. 
 
Chairman Gilbert said the architectural requirements will be same for the entire area. 
 
Pete Frisina said the issue we have been discussing is the location and number of convenience 
stores on these four corners and whether there will be one, two, or maybe three convenience 
stores in this area and we have been leaning toward the corners on the west of SR 74 which 
would have the more intense uses and the other two corners would have less intense uses.  He 
added this is based on the location of Starrs Mill and its historical significance, so we don’t want 
to detract from Starrs Mill; we want to enhance it and the area through the requirement of a 
period architectural requirement. 
 
John Culbreth asked how much of this area is owned by the County. 
 
Pete Frisina said the County only owns Starrs Mill and it sits on about 17 acres.  He added that 
the proposed Overlay Zone contains the architectural requirements for the turn of the century 
downtown character and he thinks one of the best examples of what he thinks we are trying to 



achieve is the store fronts on the west side of the square in Fayetteville.  He said they are mainly 
one story buildings with brick façade and the brick patterns create the embellishments that are 
indicative of this architecture and while each building is similar they are not all the same which 
may be something we also want to consider.  He asked the Planning Commission if stacked rock 
walls, period fencing and/or period lighting fixtures should be required or encouraged. 
 
The consensus of the Planning Commission was they should be required. 
 
Arnold Martin asked what the sequence of this planning process is in terms of when property is 
sold or developed that is will have to be developed based on the regulations we are discussing. 
 
Pete Frisina said currently none of these corners are land used or zoned for nonresidential 
development so the first step is to amend the land use plan to reflect nonresidential development 
but these areas will still be zoned for residential.  He stated the land owners will apply to rezone 
their properties and the application will be evaluated based on the County’s Land Use Plan.  He 
added that these regulations we are discussing will be in place to control the development after 
property is rezoned.  He said he is still working on articulating the architectural requirements and 
it maybe that we will have to use pictures to illustrate the character where the other Overlay 
Zones are more quantifiably defined in terms of a certain  roof pitches and facades. 
 
Arnold Martin asked if the Development Authority is consulted when the County is making Land 
Use Plan amendments for nonresidential development. 
 
Pete Frisina said the Development Authority has been consulted when the County has amended  
 
Page 3   
August 20, 2015 
PC Meeting 
 
the Land Use Plan in the past but the type of development we are discussing at this intersection is 
not the type of development the Development Authority usually targets. He added that they 
usually work with larger manufacturing companies.  He said the County is required to do major 
reviews of its comprehensive plan every five years based on State planning standards and the 
next major review is due by June of 2017 and the County will seek the input of local 
stakeholders in this review process.  He stated the amendments to the L-C zoning district include 
the deletion of a sentence in the Intent which states “The L-C zoning district would avoid the 
development of strip commercial businesses.”  He said L-C limits the amount of square footage 
with a Floor to Area Ratio and there was an incentive that allowed more square footage if a 
developer built two (2) structures as opposed to one (1) strip, but this incentive was taken out 
sometime back.  He stated that he added “(no drive-through or drive-in allowed)” to Bakery as 
L-C is a low intensity zoning district.  He said that he added two (2) new use categories which 
include Educational/instructional/tutoring facilities and Personal services which allow these 
related uses to be grouped under “Permitted principal uses.”  He said he added a statement that 
said architectural standards in an Overlay Zone will take precedence over the architecture 
requirements in the L-C zoning district as L-C may someday be used outside of a highway 
corridor where architectural standards are not required.  He stated under the new proposed 



commercial district the only real difference with L-C is it does not allow the Convenience 
commercial business. 
 
Chairman Gilbert said he doesn’t think the new zoning district should be named as a historic 
commercial district but maybe named ”old time” in some way. 
 
Arnold Martin said even Disney has a replica of an old town. 
 
Pete Frisina asked if there are any uses that should be taken out. 
 
Arnold Martin said maybe we need to limit resale shops and protect ourselves from too many of 
these type shops. 
 
Pete Frisina said the “Antique shop” use could allow a resale shop and these districts do not 
make a distinction between retail and resale. He added that he would review the zoning 
ordinance to see if it makes this distinction in any other commercial districts. 
 
Chairman Gilbert said during the past recession there was a lot of empty commercial space and 
building owners wanted to rent the space and resale shops moved in.  
 
Arnold Martin suggested deleting a fitness center from the new zoning district.  He suggested 
that a laundry drop-off/pick-up be deleted since they usually have a drive-through window and 
they are allowed in L-C. 
 
John Culbreth asked if a spa would be allowed in these zoning districts. 
 
 
Page 4   
August 20, 2015 
PC Meeting 
 
Pete Frisina said a spa is a specific use in C-H and is related to massage and is not listed in these 
zoning districts. 
 
Arnold Martin said some beauty salons have spa services. 
 
Pete Frisina said spa services as it is defined in the Zoning Ordinance would not be allowed in 
these zoning districts.  
   
Chairman Gilbert suggested that a mailbox store or a UPS store may fit in these zoning districts.   
 
Arnold Martin asked if there is any way that someone could use the dance school use to slip in a 
strip club. 
 
Pete Frisina said it would not be possible as the County’s Adult Entertainment ordinance limits 
that type of use to M-1 zoning. 



 
Chairman Gilbert asked if we are addressing signage for this area. 
 
Pete Frisina said that would have to be addressed through the Sign Ordinance and not the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
Arnold Martin said we should consider regulating signs that are in character with this turn of the 
century area we are trying to create. 
 
Pete Frisina said we would have to create a special district in the Sign Ordinance.  He added that 
he would review the uses in these zoning districts to determine if they need to be better defined. 
 
Chairman Gilbert suggested looking at including a cellular phone store in these zoning districts. 
 
Arnold asked if a grocery store would be allowed. 
 
Pete Frisina said the closest use to a grocery store would be the Convenience commercial 
establishment Conditional Use under L-C but size restrictions would not allow a major grocery 
store. 
 
Arnold Martin said he was thinking of a boutique natural food store. 
 
Pete Frisina said the Convenience commercial establishment is limited to the sale of prepackaged 
food products, gasoline, household items, newspapers, magazines, sandwiches, and other freshly-
prepared foods for off-site consumption. 
 
Arnold Martin said he didn’t know if a small grocery store would be allowed under that list of 
uses.  
 
 
Page 5   
August 20, 2015 
PC Meeting 
 
Pete Frisina said a major grocery store would not go into these zoning districts because of the 
size limitation so it would have to be a locally owned or independent store.  He said these zoning 
districts are supposed to be low intensity so we have to be careful and probably the most intense 
use will be the Convenience commercial establishment. 
 
The Planning Commission took no official action on this item and will continue the discussion at 
a future meeting. 
 



OLD BUSINESS 
 

6.          Discussion of the SR 85 and SR 74 intersection. 
 

Pete Frisina said based on questions from the last meeting he went through the uses in the L-C zoning district 
to determine if they needed to be more defined.  He said the first use is an Antique Shop and he found some 
definitions  but he didn't  want to use them because they were based on the percentage of items that were of a 
certain age and this is too labor intensive to determine.  He stated the question  raised at the last meeting was 
does  a Vintage  store, Thrift  store,  Consignment  store,  or  Used  books/records  store  qualify as  an  Antique 
Shop.  He said he doesn't have a problem with including these uses along with an Antique Shop. 

 
Brian Haren said he would like to it limited to for-profit establishments. 

 
Pete Frisina said the next use is an Art and/or crafts studio and he found three (3) definitions that he thinks fit. 
He said theses definition are an Artist's  studio where works are created  and sold, a Studio where customers 
purchase then paint or create their own canvas, pottery, glass pieces or sculpture, and a Gallery with pieces by 
various artists, plus a studio with classes & a supply store. 

 
John Culbreth said those definitions fit well with the use. 

Chairman  Graw he agrees with the definitions. 

Pete Frisina said he would use these three (3) definitions  to craft a description  of the use.  He said a Bakery 
(no drive-through  or drive-in  allowed)  can be defined  as an establishment  engaged in the preparation  and 
production of baked goods for consumption and sale both on and off the premises. 

 
John Culbreth said that sounds good for a bakery. 

 
Pete Frisina asked would a Dunkin Donut or Krispy Kreme be a bakery or restaurant. 

Brian Haren said there are very few Dunkin Donuts where the donuts are baked in-house. 

Al Gilbert said without a drive-through window the odds of either one of those coming are remote. 

Chairman  Graw said he sees a bakery as a place that makes pastries, cakes, bread, etc. 

John Culbreth said the old traditional bakeries really don't exist anymore. 
 

Al Gilbert said most grocery stores now have a bakery. 
 

Pete Frisina said a Bank and/or financial institution  would include a bank, savings and loan, credit union, and 
mortgage office. 

 
AI Gilbert asked if we have said no drive through with a bank. 

 
Pete Frisina said the ordinance does not prohibit drive through windows with a bank. 



 
Al Gilbert said if we are going to prohibit drive through windows for other businesses we should not allow 
them with a bank. 

Pete Frisina said currently only bakeries and restaurants are prohibited from having a drive through window. 

Chairman Graw said while we are looking at L-C in context to the SR 74 and SR 85 intersection it can be 
used in other areas of the County and I don't want to limit it too much. 

 
Pete Frisina said L-C has always prohibited drive through windows with food service establishments because 
L-C was created as a less intense commercial zoning district. 

 
AI Gilbert said a restaurant can't  have a drive through window but the bank next door can have a drive 
through window and that is not treating the businesses equally. 

 
Brian Haren said but these rules were in place before you started construction of the restaurant. 

 
Chairman Graw said his opinion is if you want the restaurant with a drive through window this is not the 
zoning for you. 

 
Al Gilbert said we should prohibit all drive through windows in L-C. 

 
Brian Haren asked if a Pay Day Loan and a Title Pawn is a financial institution. 

Pete Frisina said he didn't think a pawn shop is a financial institution. 

Brian Haren said he would not like to see a Pay Day Loan or a Title Pawn in L-C. 
 

Pete Frisina said the G-B zoning District excludes pawn  establishments from  the  uses  of  Financial, 
credit, real estate,  and/or insurance establishments. 

 
Chairman Graw said he agrees that we don't want title pawns or pay day loan establishments. 
Brain Haren asked how is a pay day loan establishment classified. 

 
Pete Frisina said that would  be a financial  institution. 

 

 
Chairman Graw asked if we need to have a separate  category for a financial institution. 

 

 
Brain Haren asked if a Pay Day Loan is not included  under Bank and/or financial institution. 

 

 
Pete  Frisina  said  he  didn't feel  that  he  could  make  a  distinction that  a  Pay  Day  Loan  1s not  a 
Financial  Institution. 

 

 
Chairman  Graw asked if Brian Haren  wanted Pay Day Loans excluded. 

Brian H aren said that is correct. 



 

Page 8 
September  17, 2015 
PC Meeting 

 
Chairman Graw said can we say Pay Day Loans and Pawn Shops are excluded. 

 
Brain Haren suggested excluding Pay Day Loans, Pawn Establishments, Short Term Loan 
establishments, and Check Cashing establishments as well as no drive through windows but walk up 
ATM will be allowed. 

 
Pete Frisina said a Book, stationery, and/or card shop is the next use.   He said Stationary Store is 
defined as an establishment  which sells office-related  products to  the public at retail and products 
typically  includes  paper  products,  calendars,  pens  and  pencils,  and  may  include  small  office 
equipment,  such  as  filing  cabinets,  brief  cases,  and  calculators.  He  added  a  card  shop  usually 
includes the sale of greeting cards, wrapping paper, photo albums, picture frames, globes, maps, and 
other related products. 

 
Chairman Graw said your first sentence describes Office Depot, Office Max and Staples so would 
we permit those establishments  in L-C. 

 
Pete Frisina  said given  the size  of the typical  Office Depot, Office  Max  and Staples,  the square 
footage restrictions of L-C probably won't  be big enough for their standard store. 

 
AI Gilbert said these companies will do a market study and that area probably wouldn't support one 
of those stores. 

 
Pete Frisina said the next use is Clothing and accessories.  He said an accessory can be any piece of 
clothing  that  you  wear  or  carry  as  long  as  it  isn't  part  of  the  main  outfit,  traditional  carried 
accessories  include  purses  and  handbags,   hand  fans,  parasols  and  umbrellas,  canes,  etc,  and 
accessories  that  are  worn  may  include  jackets,  boots  and  shoes,  cravats,  ties,  hats,  belts  and 
suspenders, gloves, jewelry, watches, sashes, shawls, scarves, socks, and stockings. 

 
Brian Haren said you mentioned jewelry. 

 
Pete Frisina said a jewelry store is also a separate use in L-C.  He said the next use for discussion is a 
Gift shop.  He added a Gift Shop is retail stores where items such as art, antiques, jewelry books, and 
notions are sold and notions are small useful things (such as pins, thread, buttons, ribbon) that are 
used for sewing.   He stated another definition of a gift shop is a shop that sells souvenirs and small 
items suitable to be given as presents. 

 
Chairman Graw said a gift shop and a card shop sell a lot of similar items. 

 
Pete  Frisina  said  Home furnishings  and  accessories  is  the  next  use.    He  said  a definition  of  a 
Furniture  Store  is an establishment  for the sales for furniture  and  other domestic  articles  used  in 
readying an area (as a room or patio) for occupancy or use.  He added another definition includes 



Page  9 
September 17,2015 
PC Meeting 

 

 
furniture, home furnishings,  and home  appliances  and means a business  primarily  engaged  in the 
retail  sale  of  goods  used  for furnishing  the  home, such  as  furniture,  floor  coverings,  draperies, 
lighting fixtures, woodstoves, domestic cookstoves, refrigerators, and other household electrical and 
gas appliances. This category also includes rental of furniture, appliances, and the like, as well as the 
sale or rental of consumer electronics such as televisions and stereo equipment. 

 
Chairman Graw said that sounds like an HH Greg store. 

Brian Haren suggested excluding appliances. 

Pete Frisina asked would we also exclude floor covering,  window covering, lighting  fixtures,  and 
consumer electronics such as televisions and stereo equipment. 

 
Brian Haren said those should also be excluded.  He asked if a veterinarian would be allowed under 
Medical/dental office. 

 
Pete Frisina said they would not because Medical/dental office is limited to human treatment.  He 
said at the last meeting a mailbox/UPS store was suggested for L-C and the other proposed L-C type 
district.  He added that these uses are defined as Mail Services and consist of a commercial business 
which conducts the retail sale of stationery products, provides packaging and mail services (both 
U.S. Postal and private service), and provides mailboxes for lease. 

Chairman Graw said he thought it was a good use to add to L-C. 

Pete Frisina said another suggestion was to add a cellular phone store to L-C. 

Brain Haren said it sounds OK. 

Pete Frisina said at the last meeting it was suggested that we add a Hardware Store to L-C. 
He added  that  a Hardware  Store  is  an establishment  engaged  in  the retail  sale  of  various  basic 
hardware  lines, such as tools, builders' hardware, plumbing and electrical supplies, paint and glass, 
housewares and household appliances,  garden supplies and cutlery. 

Chairman Graw asked when you say garden supplies do you mean everything a Pikes Nursery has. 

Brain Haren said that could include lawn mowers, weed eaters, wheelbarrows, etc. and I think we’re 

referring to an old-tome hardware store not a Home Depot but how do you distinguish between the 

two. 
 

AI Gilbert said you exclude outside storage. 

Brian Haren said size limitations will also help. 



Page  10 
September 17,2015 
PC Meeting 

 

Page 10 
September 17, 2015 
PC Meeting 

 
Pete Frisina said currently L-C allows a Floor to Area Ratio (FAR) of .1 with a total of 8,500 square 
feet. 

 
Chairman Graw said the previous language in L-C provided a bonus of more square footage if the 
developer built two (2) building as opposed to one (1) building to discourage a strip commercial 
development.  He added it required the buildings to be a minimum of26 feet apart. 

 
Pete Frisina said in the previous language the maximum square footage was 10,000 square feet and 
if you built two (2) buildings you got a 15 percent square footage bonus so with 10,000 square feet 
that would be an additional 1,500 square feet for a total of 11,500 square feet. 

 
Chainman Graw said he would like to consider adding this language back in L-C. 

 
John Culbreth said can we anticipate that each building would have more than one (1) business. 

Pete Frisina said that would probably be the norm but it is not required. 

Brian Haren asked how big is 10,000 square feet. 
 

Pete Frisina said using the square root that is 100 feet by 100 feet. 
 

Chairman Graw asked on four (4) acres how much square footage could you build. 
 

Pete Frisina said under the current ordinance with a maximum square footage of 8,500 square feet 
that is all you could build on four (40 acres because with the FAR of .1 you would hit the maximum 
square footage on a little over two (2) acres. 

 
Chairman Graw asked could you build another two (2) building with four acres. 

 
Brain Haren said you could not on the same parcel.  He added that he likes the old language with the 
bonus square foot for building two (2) buildings and we should consider putting it back in L-C. 

 
Chairman Graw suggested putting the language back in L-C with 10,000 square feet. 

Al Gilbert asked if the building square footage should be based on acreage. 

Pete Frisina said the L-C concept is to create a small less intense commercial zoning district and not 
create a big sprawling development. 

 
AI Gilbert said you could start with 8,500 square feet with two acres and with three acre and add 
more square footage and so.on. 



Page  11 
September 17,2015 
PC Meeting 

 

 
Pete Frisina said with a FAR of .1 you would hit the maximum square footage of 
10,000 at about two and a half acres. 

 
Brain Haren asked what restrictions the County has to stop someone from subdividing a 
lot to get more square footage. 

 
Pete Frisina said nothing but once you subdivide the lot you get more separation 
between the developments because you would have setbacks landscaping between 
them. 

 
Chairn1an Graw asked about the squared footage limits for a 
convenience store. 

 
Pete Frisina said a convenience store is limited to 3,500 square feet.  He said the question 
from last week was does a Convenience commercial establishment i n  L-C allow a 
grocery store or natural foods store.  He added that he found a definition of a Convenience 
Store that states a small store that stocks  a  range  of  everyday  items  such  as  groceries,  
snack  foods,  beverages,  toiletries,  tobacco products, and newspapers, and may also 
provide the sale of fuel.  He said the current definition in L- C for a Convenience 
commercial establishment is a facility limited to the sale of prepackaged food products, 
gasoline, household items, newspapers, magazines, sandwiches, and other freshly-prepared 
foods for off-site consumption.  He said he prefers the new definition he read as opposed 
to the one currently in L-C because it is more general.  He added that if he used the 
Convenience commercial establishment definition currently in L-C a small grocery store 
or natural food would not be allowed as the term prepackaged food products would not 
allow the sale of produce for example. 

 
Brain Haren said he liked the new definition of Convenience commercial 
establishment. 

 
Pete Frisina said he would work it into the ordinance and we would continue the 
discussion  at a future meeting. 

 
 
 



Planning Commission October 1, 2015 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
5. Discussion of the SR 85 and SR 74 intersection. 
 

 
Pete Frisina stated last week they had a discussion on defining some of the L-C uses.  He added that he 
has crafted some definitions for the uses for review.  
 
Al Gilbert asked what he thought about a quick copy. 
 
Pete Frisina said he would look into it.  He stated the uses that he had defined were arts and crafts, bakery, 
card and stationary shop, check cashing, gift shop, mail shop, pay day loan establishment and pawn shop.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that the definition of gift shop seemed limited.  He then read the definition for gift 
shop and it stated that it was an establishment selling small decorative or amusing items that suitable with 
gifts or souvenirs.  He asked Pete Frisina would that be all they could sell.  
 
Pete Frisina said it depends on what a small decorative item and amusing item is.  He added that this was 
pulled from zoning ordinances and is a standard definition.  
 
Brian Haren said that with a gift shop we’re going to see a lot of Hallmarks. He added that this sort of 
shop is a card, stationary, and gift shop.  He stated that there can be standalone gift shops.  Brian Haren 
stated that Warm Springs’ main street is half gift shops.  
 
Al Gilbert added that gift shops can sell college memorabilia.  
 
Arnold Martin asked if amusing items can open up to adult novelty shops.  
 
Pete Frisina said that they discussed that at the last meeting.  He added that per the County’s code there is 
a special chapter for adult establishments and there are only allowed in the M-1 zoning district.  
 
Arnold Martin stated that he remembered when this was a big issue with the Commission and that they 
were only allowed in M-1.  He added that he took it as adult facilities such as bars, dance clubs, etc.  He 
asked would an adult novelty shop be included in that.  
 
Pete Frisina replied yes they would be included in that.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that gift shop is not new to L-C it’s always been in there, but never defined.  He asked 
for suggestions and stated that he pulled definitions from other sources.  
 
Al Gilbert asked would the term novelty work better than amusing.  
 
Brian Haren states that gift shop means an establishment selling small decorative or “novelty” items.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that we then have to define what a novelty item is.  He said that novelty is a term used 
in a lot of zoning ordinances.  
 
Chairman Graw asked what would be wrong with including gift shop with the card and/or stationary 
shop.  He then stated that a card and/or stationary shop means establishments which also sell products 



such as small decorative or amusing items that are suitable as gifts or souvenirs. 
  
Pete Frisina said that it is up to them.  He stated that as of right now it’s a standalone use.  
 
Chairman Graw said you are really limiting this gift shop to only a few items.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that the definition is very broad.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that when you think of a card and or stationary shop he is thinking of a Hallmark.  
He added that they sell a lot of items.  He stated that if you allowed the gift shop to be next door to the 
stationary shop they would basically be selling the same things.  He said that we should drop gift shop 
added to card and or stationary shop.  He asked the board what they thought. 
 
Arnold Martin agreed that it was a good suggestion. 
 
Pete Frisina said that card shop is the first use stated there.  He added that the definition used for 
stationary store will move away from greeting cards and wrapping paper to a more office related supplier.  
He asked does gift shop fit somewhere in the middle there.  
 
Brian Haren replied in that context no.  
 
Pete Frisina said unless you say card, gift, and/or stationary shop.  
 
Chairman Graw agreed.  
 
Pete Frisina said card, gift, and/or stationary shop and then add in there items that are suitable for gifts or 
souvenirs.  
 
John Culbreth stated that someone might want a business that’s not geared towards cards but specialty 
souvenir items.     
 
Pete Frisina said will use items that are suitable for gifts and souvenirs.   
 
Brian Haren asked have we forced ourselves to create another category to cover office supplies.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that it’s a part of the stationary shop.  He then added that office related paper 
products, calendars, pencils, pens, briefcases, calculators; desktop office supplies.    
 
Chairman Graw asked if someone wanted to start a shop with just a few of these uses they could do that.  
He added that they don’t have to have a shop with all these uses.  
 
Arnold Martin replied yes.  He added that he knows of a stationary business right across the street that 
literally only sells stationary and maybe a couple of pens, but that’s it.   
 
Brian Haren said that Pete Frisina made a good suggestion using the phrase desktop office related 
supplies.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that what those are in his opinion besides from the briefcase.  
 
Brian Haren said that this may open the door for someone to come in and start a wholesale office 
furniture business.  



 
Al Gilbert agreed and stated or a computer business.  
 
Pete Frisina stated we can say desktop office related products.  He added that paper products would be 
considered a related product.  
 
Brian Haren agreed.  
 
Pete Frisina said that the only thing we have related to furnishing is home furnishings.  He emphasized 
that we are only talking about small retail space.  He added that if someone sells a few desk chairs or a 
computer stand that shouldn’t be a problem  
 
Chairman Graw stated home furnishing and accessories could be like a Tuesday Morning. 
 
Pete Frisina said as of right now we will change card, gift, and/or stationary shop.  He then asked if the 
board was good with check cashing, mail services, pay-day loans, and pawn establishments.  He then 
stated for antique shop he added vintage store, thrift/second hand store, or consignment store.  He said 
that was the list we talked about last week.  He stated that he found a definition for antique shop that had 
to do with the percent of products or items that were a certain age.  He said using that definition would be 
a lot of work for staff to administer. He added that in this day in age not everything is antique but people 
like to buy dated things.  He stated that he’s okay with antique shop, art and/or craft studio, and bakery.  
He said the definition for banking and financial institutions incudes brokerage firm, credit union, financial 
planning, or mortgage brokerage (no Pay Day Loan, Check Cashing or Pawn Establishments).  
 
Arnold Martin asked if we wanted to include insurance agency.  
 
Pete Frisina replied he didn’t know if they would fit under financial institution or professional.  
 
Arnold Martin stated that a lot of insurance companies do financial planning.  
 
Pete Frisina said he would add insurance company to banking and/or financial institution.  
 
Chairman Graw then asked if insurance company would be considered financial institutions.  
 
Arnold Martin said absolutely that’s just what we were discussing.  He added that State Farm does 
banking and financing automobiles.  
 
Pete Frisina asked if the board was good with the cellular phone sales and service and clothing and/or 
accessories.  He listed accessories.  He said that someone could open a purse store or shoe store.  He said 
hardware store and home furnishings and accessories were added.  He stated that he would list what the 
accessories are in home furnishings and that he took out appliances and things of that nature.  He said that 
mail services store was also added.  
 
Brian Haren asked why on page seven (7) we took out no drive-thru. 
 
Pete Frisina told him he moved it to page (8) number (4).  
 
Brian replied okay.  
 
Chairman Graw asked for the board to turn back to page six (6) number seven (7) clothing and/or 
accessories.  He asked the board for clarification on the phrase “such as”, and whether or not they can 



have other things in addition to what is listed. 
 
Brian Haren replied yes. He stated that when we say “such as” that is not all inclusive.  
 
Chairman Graw then said such as but not limited to.  
 
Brian Haren said correct.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that the way the ordinance is now written there are no drive-through facilities allowed 
in L-C whatsoever.  He added that would mean no laundry /dry cleaning pickup, banks, etc.  He stated 
that certain businesses rely on the drive-through.  He added that when L-C was created it was to be a 
limited commercial district.  He stated the intent was to limit the intensity of the uses for food services 
that being fast-food type restaurant that relies heavenly on drive-through and drive-in cliental.  He said 
the discussion we had last week was only taking one (1) use out of here and saying that they cannot have 
drive-through but allowing other uses such as banks and possibly the dry cleaners to have a drive-through 
and could this be putting the County in a position to have someone challenge us.  He added that they may 
say you’re not allowing the restaurant to have a drive-through but you’re allowing the bank to have a 
drive-through.  He stated that he talked to legal and said that the intent initially was to create a limited and 
low intensity commercial. He asked legal would this put us in a legal limbo.  He stated that legal said as 
long as you have a justifiable reason for what you are doing he didn’t see it as a liability.  He added that 
legal said that the difference in the amount of traffic for a fast-food restaurant and a dry cleaner are totally 
different.  
 
Arnold Martin asked what if a dry cleaner that had a drive-through failed and the window is sitting there 
not being used and a restaurant of some type wants to lease the space; are we saying that they cannot lease 
it, or they can lease it but cannot use the drive-through.  
 
Pete Frisina said they can lease it but cannot use the drive-through.  He added that he doesn’t have a 
problem leaving it the way it is, but someday we may see some issues when a low intensity use wants to 
move in and says why can’t I have a drive-through.  
 
Brian Haren stated that banning all drive-throughs goes towards what we’re trying to create here.  He 
added that if we’re going to allow banks to have a drive-through it’s going to look like the Wells Fargo up 
the road and that’s not what we want in this environment here.  He said that he is in favor of banning that 
type of activity for all businesses and that it would make it more legally defensible.  
 
Al Gilbert asked are we going to allow walk-up to the bank. 
 
Pete Frisina replied yes.  
 
Brian Haren said and we will also allow for carry-out food services, but you can’t have a drive-through.  
 
Brian Haren stated that in the morning on Highway 85 north traffic is bad due to the Dunkin Donuts 
located near the square.  He added that the traffic is so bad that they have to rent a cop to direct traffic. 
 
Chairman Graw agreed.  
 
Al Gilbert said that traffic is also bad near the Chic Fil’A on Saturday nights at midnight.  
 
Brian Haren stated that we’re talking about an area with small retail space, very dense road network and if 
we start allowing drive-through it’s going to back up into the public space.  



 
Pete Frisina explained floor to area ratio definition for Arnold Martin.    
 
Chairman Graw said it tries to eliminate the strip/shopping center concept.  He stated that personally he 
would not like to see in strip shopping centers instead just individual buildings.  He added that he did not 
want to see them on the northeast corner of the intersection. 
 
Arnold Martin stated that has about four (4) acres or so.   
 
Chairman Graw stated that he is afraid that someone is going to build a strip shopping center and it’s 
going to look horrible.  
 
Pete Frisina said that a minimum of what we will end up with is a strip shopping center with 26 feet 
between two (2) buildings.  He said by taking that one (1) building and splitting it into two (2) you get an 
extra 1500 square feet.  
 
Chairman Graw said that is going to cost more money for somebody to do that but there going to get 
more square footage out it.  
 
Al Gilbert said he liked Pete’s approach to writing policy and how he rewards the developer instead of 
punishing them.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that developers are going to want to build in that area because of the growth.  
 
Arnold Martin asked will there be architectural standards. 
 
Pete Frisina replied yes.  He stated that on page nine (9) in the new limited commercial zoning district he 
took out the convenience commercial establishment.  He said that he forgot the new definition for 
convenience commercial but would bring it to the next meeting.   
 
Arnold Martin asked were you talking about a convenience store.   
 
Pete Frisina replied yes. He stated that at the last meeting everyone seemed to like it.  He added that based 
on Arnold’s comment it’s under the definition for what we have for convenience commercial and allows 
someone with a small natural food store or something similar to that.  He said that the way it’s reworded 
it will allow for a standalone establishment.  
 
Chairman Graw is concerned about lot number two (2) because its less than four (4) acres and the floor to 
area ratio states that the total maximum square footage for all structures combined on the site shall not 
exceed 10,000 square feet.  
 
Pete Frisina said that it is more than four (4) acres.  
 
Chairman Graw says that is a site and if you build on that four (4) acres your limited to 10,000 square feet 
and if you do individual buildings it will be 11,500.  He states that an acre is about 44,000 square feet and 
if you take and divide the 10,000 that’s 2500 square feet of building on 47,000 square feet of land.  He 
asked is that a lot of building on an acre. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that an acre is limited to 4,560 square feet.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that the four (4) acres is a site and then asked would that be a site as stated in the 



floor to area ratio.   
 
Pete said yes and that it is limited to 10,000 square feet.  
 
Al Gilbert said it might not be one (1) site.   
 
Pete said “site” means the development as a whole.  
 
Al Gilbert asked what if one (1) developer buys one (1) site and another developer buys a site; that’s two 
(2) sites right. 
 
Pete Frisina replied yes.  
 
Chairman Graw said he bets someone is going to buy that lot and it will be four (4) acres.  
 
Pete Frisina asked would it be better to call it “lot” instead of “site.” 
 
Chairman Graw asked how big a lot is. 
 
Pete Frisina replied its one (1) acre for this district, and that is the minimum size. 
 
Chairman Graw said he thinks 10,000 square feet on one (1) acre is too much. 
 
Pete Frisina replied you can’t have 10,000 square feet on one (1) acre.  He then added that Chairman 
Graw suggestion of changing “site” to “lot” was a good idea.  He added that the area was made up of four 
(4) parcels and some of them are not even an acre.  He stated that he would assume that some assembly 
would be required for that corner.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that they had discussed O-I near the subdivision.  He asked will we be requiring 
the same architectural restrictions that we had for the commercial. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that we would. 
 
Chairman Graw asked would we do the commercial first and then the O-I. 
 
Pete Frisina said we would do it all at the same time.  He stated that we would amend the land-use plan 
and the zoning ordinance to match everything. 
 
Al Gilbert asked will we have a Highway Overlay Zone.  
 
Pete Frisina replied yes, and it will be for the specific areas we want to capture and it will include the O-I.  
He asked the board if there was anything on page nine (9) they wanted to take out to be more limited than 
the L-C.  He stated that the only thing they took out was the convenience commercial.  
Chairman Graw asked what about gift.  
 
Pete Frisina said that he could make that change. He added that this district mimics everything that is in 
L-C.  He asked again if there was anything that they wanted to take out of this district to make it less 
intense. 
 
Arnold Martin asked what the difference would be between the L-C and the unnamed district.  
 



Pete Frisina said it won’t allow the convenience stores.  
 
Chairman Graw said that the unnamed district would be good to use at the 85 Connector and 85.  He 
asked Pete what he thinks the lot at the 85 Connector is going to be. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that he thinks the lot is fine as it is now.  
 
Chairman Graw said but we know that it’s not going to stay like that for long.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that property owners on multiple corners feel like they have a commercial location. 
 
Chairman Graw asked could you say that the commercial could only be in our “Historical District” that 
goes up to the 85 Connector and stops. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that right now no one could have commercial.  
 
Chairman Graw said that it’s going to eventually happen. 
 
Pete Frisina said that we are going to get challenged at every corner.  He added that it is just going to 
happen from that corner all the way up to Fayetteville.  
 
Chairman Graw asked why you can’t exclude commercial all the way up to Barnard Road.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that you can include and exclude as you see fit.  He added that he has had more 
people come into his office looking at this corridor more towards the other end of SR85.  He stated that 
we have made a special distinction for the corner of SR 74 and SR85 and that it will be very busy.  He 
said that SR74 and SR85 will both be four (4) lane roads.  
 
Chairman Graw said that at one time Rising Star was questioned, but he thinks of that corner as more 
residential.  
 
Pete Frisina said that everybody that lives on a corner sees a gold mine.  He stated that by sticking to this 
we are recognizing an area that is going to have high traffic in the future and he is not sure on whether or 
not the other corners will have the same intensity 
 
 



Planning Commission October 15, 2015 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
3. Discussion of the SR 85 and SR 74 intersection. 
 
Chairman Graw asked Pete Frisina to tell the board the unique title he has for the district. 
 
Pete Frisina stated that for lack of a better title he created two (2) zoning districts one was called limited 
commercial which was the base and the other is called more limited commercial.  He said that the original 
one will be LC-2 because normally in the hierarchy of zoning you give the heavier use the higher number.  
He added that the new district will be called LC-1. 
 
Al Gilbert said that it was similar to M-1 and M-2.  
 
Pete Frisina replied exactly.  He stated that M-1 is associated with light industrial and M-2 is associated 
with heavy industrial.  He added that he had researched other zoning ordinances for names that had 
similar C-1, C-2, and C-3 with no other title added to it, and found a limited commercial which was an L-
C and a Limited Local Commercial which was equivalent to our LC-1.  He found another zoning 
ordinance that had a category called Low Intensity Commercial. 
 
Al Gilbert stated that the local and limited are too close together and can be confusing.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that he knows and he hasn’t been able to find any good names out there.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that he liked LC-1 and LC-2.  
 
Pete Frisina said there was no distinction beyond that.  He mentioned that in the County’s zoning 
ordinance we have a title after the code.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that the only difference between the two (2) is that LC-1 (light) does not allow the 
convenience commercial and LC-2 allows it.  
 
Pete Frisina told the board if they come up with any ideas for names to let him know. 
 
John Culbreth stated that he liked LC-1 and LC-2. 
 
Al Gilbert asked what would be the possibility of LC-1 with gas convenience and LC-2 without gas 
convenience. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that it was too long of a title. 
 
Al Gilbert said we could abbreviate the title. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that he didn’t want to roll that out as the title.  
 
Brian Haren asked that when the Overlay Zone is codified that the first sentence in LC-2 is this is how it 
differentiates from LC-1.  
 
Chairman Graw asked everybody if they were up to date on why they were creating the two (2) zoning 
districts. 



 
Al Gilbert, Brian Haren, and John Culbreth all replied yes. 
 
Chairman Graw stated that the SR 74 and SR 85 intersection will be the only place in the County where 
we would use the LC-1, without the gas station.  
 
Pete Frisina replied he didn’t know about that.  He added that once the district is in place we could put it 
anywhere we wanted to.  He stated that he thinks it’s a good idea to have a commercial designation 
without the convenience use in it.  
 
Chairman Graw replied that he liked it too. 
 
John Culbreth added that it allows us to drive the planning.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that once a sign goes up in a neighborhood, the first question that is asked is if there is 
going to be a convenience store there.  He added that seems to be something that people don’t want.  He 
said people want gas they just don’t want it next to their house.  
 
Brian Haren stated that you don’t need a gas station on every corner.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that he did some work to the definitions on page six (6). 
 
Brian Haren asked if the definitions changed since the last meeting.   
 
Pete Frisina replied that he may have finessed them slightly.  He said that he did not do anything to arts 
and crafts but under cards gifts and/or stationary he added some of the terms they talked about like 
desktop office products.   
 
Brian Haren stated that he didn’t want them to sell office furniture.  
 
Pete Frisina said that we didn’t have convenience commercial the last time.  He stated that he opened it up 
for a convenience store, small natural food store, or a gourmet food store.  He added that you don’t have 
to sell gas to make it happen.  He said that Al Gilbert’s term copy and print had been added to the 
definitions.  He stated that mail stores, pay day loans, and pawn establishments have stayed the same.  He 
added that bookstore has been moved and become a term by itself without cards gifts and/or stationary.  
 
Chairman Graw asked if someone could build a store and have all of these uses in them.  He added for 
example a card gift and/or stationary with copy and print. 
 
Pete Frisina replied yes and that he frequents the one (1) on Bank Station by the Cub Foods.  He stated 
that the establishment allows you to ship packages, make copies, sells knickknacks and cards. 
 
Brian Haren asked if an antique shop can sell cell phones.  
 
Pete Frisina replied yes. 
 
Al Gilbert asked if Pete Frisina will discuss the SR 85 and SR 74 intersection with the County 
Commissioners. 
 
Pete replied that he hadn’t quite figured out how he was going to do that just yet.  
 



Al Gilbert stated that he would like the Commissioners feedback to see if they would like for them to 
expand the overlay zone.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that under our procedures he doesn’t have the opportunity to go to a meeting to 
discuss the overlay zone prior to a public meeting with the board.  He stated that he would not like to 
present the board with this much information for their consideration in a public meeting.  He added that in 
times past he had the opportunity to discuss projects with the board in a one-on-one setting or sometimes 
two (2) at a time especially when we are proposing to make a large amount of complex amendments to 
the Land Use Plan and Zoning Ordinance.  He said that he would run it through the County Administrator 
once everything has been finalized. 
 
Chairman Graw said that he had a question regarding page eight (8) D one (1).  He asked what if 
petitioners were to bring in elevation drawings that the board did not like.  He stated that the board has the 
ability to vote no, yes, or table it.  He said if we were to vote no we need to have some reasons why we 
came to that decision.  He asked the board what type of criteria should we establish or look at to base our 
decisions.   
    
Pete Frisina said that was an issue that he and Chairman Graw discussed. 
 
Pete Frisina stated he doesn’t know if anything is new within the pages six (6) – 13 other than the 
convenience commercial he added at the end. He stated that pages one (1) – five (5) discuss what 
Chairman Graw had a question on.  He said that it was on page four (4) number four (4) where they 
discuss architectural standards that relate to Chairman Graw’s question.  He read from page four (4) that 
elevation drawings must be in compliance with the following requirements and shall be submitted and 
approved as part of the rezoning public hearing procedures.  He added that this is similar to a PUD and 
it’s something that we don’t do often.  He stated that they require elevation drawings for a PUD and we 
will be following similar procedure here.  He said this district we’re creating will have architectural 
standards that aren’t in his opinion quantifiable like some of our other architectural standards.  He stated 
that the other architectural standards talked of a pitch peak roof and certain slopes, and they were all 
quantifiable.  He added that doors and windows of a residential character aren’t as quantifiable but we 
know that plate glass windows doesn’t meet those standards.  He said that it also talked about façades of a 
residential character (brick wood or stucco) and sidings that simulate the same; and even if they’re metal 
we quantify that by saying horizontal seems as opposed to vertical.  He stated that we would tell 
developers that we have photos/examples that we would like to see and we will open it up to you and see 
if you can create some design that meets our concept.   
 
Al Gilbert stated that in the Historic District of the City of Fayetteville there are building restrictions.  He 
said about four (4) years ago a developer was trying to build something, but he kept getting turned down.  
He said the developer finally asked the council, what are you looking for.  He said that one of the 
councilman replied that he didn’t know but when he sees it, he would tell him.  He stated that “we” don’t 
need to get into that.  
 
Pete Frisina showed them the architectural drawings depicting the architectural character we want for the 
area.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that we have to be able to define these things and that is the hard part.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that you define them by talking about the characteristic of the architecture.  He said 
that you basically tell developers here is an example of what we like.  He stated that we could quantify the 
movement in elevation on the roofs by a percentage of change in elevation within so many feet.  He stated 
that the Planning Commission wanted to require period lighting and fencing required.  He added that we 



need to come up with these requirements.  
 
Al Gilbert said that during that era there were no iodized aluminum windows.  He added that it takes 
away from the architecture. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that we could get the overarching architecture to follow that form but he’s not going 
to worry about window treatments.  
 
Chairman Graw asked how you define the characteristics of that building.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that building is indicative of a certain period of time of the turn of the century.  He 
states that brick was predominating during this period but not always.  
 
Brian Haren stated that we may need to emphasize wood materials or wood like treatment along the area 
surrounding Star’s Mill.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that we’re looking for buildings that follow this style of architecture and are in 
character with this period.  He said that they’re not all going to match Star’s Mill.  He added that the 
shopping center behind Arby’s is a one (1) strip building with each suite having a slightly different 
façade.  He also mentioned downtown Fayetteville having different facades for its suites which he 
believes gives character.  He stated that he likes both wood and brick for facades.  
 
Chairman Graw asked could we really define what we want to make a decision for approval or 
disapproval based on picture.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that he thinks we should say based on the pictures these are the elements and 
architectural styles that we want to see.  He added that he could define the architectural terms needed but 
also reiterated that he cannot quantify it in a sense to say how tall or wide the building must be or the 
percentage of wood and brick that has to be used.  He stated that Fayetteville and Peachtree City 
architectural standards are reviewed at the site plan stage not a rezoning.  He added that board members 
know what they’re looking for once they see it. He said that staff tries to guide them on where they need 
to be, but council approves site plans.  He stated that we want to try and find a good way of getting what 
we want and not being a total burden on someone.  
 
Pete Frisina asked the board to review a photo of a strip commercial building to see if it meets the 
requirements.   
 
Al Gilbert, Brian Haren, John Culbreth, and Chairman Graw agreed that the strip commercial building 
does not meet the requirements that they are looking for.  
 
Pete Frisina said that if we we’re to tell the developer of the strip commercial building this doesn’t meet 
the grade; we must also tell him what he can do to embellish it more.  He added that the photo shows 
some characteristics such as the period columns, period lightening, movement of the roofs, and stacked 
stoned.  He stated that the problem is with the materials the stucco finish doesn’t look right to him.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that if someone were to bring in the site plan he would tell them they need more 
accents and ask them to review the pictures that were provided to them to pull ideas. 
 
Brian Haren stated that the site plan looks like an outlet mall.  He added that the building was too 
symmetrical with its façade.  He said that he is looking for a more downtown Fayetteville or Senoia feel 
to it.  He added that during the 18th and 19th century no commercial building had that much glass on it.  



He stated that more regular windows would need to be displayed and that the stack stone used is not 
indicative of the era their trying to encompass.  He asked for wood or brick.  
 
Al Gilbert stated that his major issue is with the stucco material.  
 
Pete Frisina agreed that stucco was not indicative of that period.  
 
Chairman Graw asked Brian Haren what made the structure look like an outlet mall. 
 
Brian Haren replied that it was the symmetry, exterior finish, and the ratio of glass to structure level.   
 
Al Gilbert stated that if the windows were divided it would give them a different look.  
 
Pete Frisina agreed and said that during this period there was never glass all the way down to the base.  
He added that there was always a knee wall.  
 
Chairman Graw asked if we had stipulations for windows in our ordinance.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that we do but there for residential windows.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that we can require that knee walls be a minimum of two (2) or three (3) feet and have 
division between them.  
 
Brian Haren wanted no metal finish added anywhere except for signage. 
 
Al Gilbert asked Brian Haren what the metal finish was on. 
 
Brian Haren replied for the window frames. He said that he wouldn’t mind a treatment being added to it 
to make it look like wood.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that he didn’t want to require wood but wanted it to look period and if it has that metal 
so be it as long as it doesn’t look shiny.  
 
Pete Frisina showed the board a photo of a commercial building in downtown Cartersville. He stated that 
Cartersville has an old-town feel to it and that this commercial building was built to try and fit into the 
character that was already there.  He added that they have accents and none of the glass goes all the way 
down.  He said that they could quantify these characteristics and he mentioned that they could ask the 
developers to break the panes up with some sort of separation.  
 
Brian Haren said the structure looks modern because of the projected vestibule in the front of the 
restaurant.  He stated that they should find a way to minimize it to where it can be a flat front façade.  
 
Pete Frisina agreed.  He stated that the building is new and was built with some of the characteristics that 
we are looking for such as the windows, division between the windows, and awnings.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that we could require an awning every once in a while.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that he didn’t know if we would require a cloth awning, but if someone wanted to do 
it would be fine.  
 
Chairman Graw asked what requirements a developer would get turned down for.  



 
John Culbreth stated that if we asked for what we want and they don’t comply that’s reason to turn them 
down.  
 
Chairman Graw and John Culbreth asked if an architect could come by to give us some pointers for 
technical terms. 
 
Pete Frisina said he would get with someone on that.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that number four (4) a deals with the architectural standards/style of Starr’s Mill and he 
doesn’t want everything to look like the mill.  He said that the mill is a building of influence but he 
doesn’t want to be that specific about it.  
 
Brian Haren said that we need to add that whatever the developer comes up with cannot overwhelm the 
mill in the north corner.  
 
Pete Frisina said that mill sits way back from the corner and no one will be right on top of it.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that number four (4) which deals with stacked rock walls and period fencing should be 
required along the 50 foot landscaping area in front of a development.  He asked do we give the developer 
a choice of rock wall or period fencing.  He also asked do they want period lighting throughout the whole 
development. 
 
Chairman Graw, Brian Haren, Al Gilbert, and John Culbreth all agreed for period lightening throughout 
the whole development.  
 
Brian Haren asked if the County prohibits gas lightening/street lightening instead of electric.  
 
Pete Frisina replied he doesn’t know.  He said that he could get developers to do something similar.  He 
added that most developers want a certain amount of light on the development.  
 
Pete Frisina stated there would be a 50 foot landscaping area along the State Route and somewhere in that 
50 foot landscaping area we would want period fencing or stacked rock wall.  He asked how they like 
would to quantify that and what would be the minimum lengthwise.  
 
Brian Haren, John Culbreth, and Chairman Graw all agreed to 25% for the minimum linear footage for a 
fence.  
 
Al Gilbert stated that the number should increase because people sometime do just the minimum.  He 
asked if a fence was put around a water fountain would that count towards meeting the minimum. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that it had to be linear. 
 
Brian Haren, John Culbreth, and Al Gilbert all agreed to 50% for the minimum linear footage for a fence.  
 
Chairman Graw said he had issues with the 50% for the minimum linear footage for a fence.  He stated 
that it may be too expensive for the developer. 
 
John Culbreth stated that we could have set standards with a minimum and leave it open ended.  He added 
that we could give trade-offs if the total 100% requirement minimum is not done there needs to be 
something to compliment that.  



 
Pete Frisina stated that landscaping requirements pertaining to development will have landscaping area in 
the front.  He said that the fencing is in addition to your landscaping area to give it some character.  He 
added that this is not being done anywhere else in the County.  
 
John Culbreth stated that the board was being too technical, and that any parameters that are set 
developers must comply.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that we could encourage developers to do it and give something in return for doing it.  
 
Brian Haren asked does a fence have to be a structure or can it be a row of hedges.  
 
Pete Frisina replied hedges are landscaping.  He stated that most of the landscaping along the front is not 
to obscure the building and hedges would obscure.  
 
John Culbreth stated that any developer that goes into that area will have the understanding that money 
will need to be spent to make it look unique.  He added that if it’s not unique looking it won’t draw 
people in there. He said that this area will be the front door to the southern part of the County.  
 
Brian Haren stated that we must dangle a carrot in front of the developers because one of them will do the 
minimum standards. 
 
Pete Frisina stated that Pinewood Studios has rustic fencing around the area that gives it character and 
does nothing but give an aesthetic appeal.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that on page four (4) b they’re making it a requirement that gasoline canopies be an 
extension and attached to the building.  He said that he would back away from it as a strict requirement.  
He stated that he talked to the Fire Marshall and the he didn’t like that the canopy was attached to the 
building.  He added that it was a fire issue for them.  
 
Chairman Graw asked Pete Frisina to tell ask the Fire Marshall how close can the canopy be to the 
building. 
 
Pete Frisina said he would find out but knows that he doesn’t want it connected.  
 
 



Planning Commission November 19, 2015 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
5. Discussion of the SR 85 and SR 74 intersection. 
 
Pete Frisina said that he is trying to figure out how we’re going to control the architecture. He said 
originally he had it when people came into rezone they would have to bring in elevation drawings, and 
these drawings would have to be reviewed by Staff, the Planning Commission, and the Board of 
Commissioners to see if they meet the architecture criteria set by the Zoning Ordinance.  He stated he 
would like to craft the overlay district in such a way that allows the review to be done administratively.  
He said he would like to know their reaction to that.  He then states that the commercial structures in the 
highway overlays are to look residential.  He added that the residential look is to have a pitch roof, certain 
facades, and doors and windows with a grid pattern.  He said that the reviews are all done 
administratively.  He stated that what he is trying to do here is a little bit more specific.  
 
Pete Frisina asked the Planning Commission to turn to page 20.  He stated that transom, mullion, muntin, 
parapet wall, clapboard siding, and cornice are all terms that he will be using and will be a part of the 
requirements.  He said section four (4) Architectural Forms and Standards talks about maintaining the 
historical and aesthetic character of the area. He stated that Starr’s Mill is one (1) of the main structures 
here and it gives a little information about it. He added that he talks about two (2) other architectural 
styles that are reminiscent of this period, the One-Part Commercial Block and the Two-Part Commercial 
Block.  He said the single story could be found on the square in Fayetteville and is called a One-Part 
Commercial Block and similar with multi-stories is called a Two-Part Commercial Block; the storefronts 
being the one (1) part and the upper level being two (2) part regardless to how many floors are on top.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that Starr’s Mill will be a building of influence and one of the architectural styles that 
we would allow for somebody to build.  He said that it doesn’t have to look like Starr’s Mill, but we are 
going to pick the architectural characteristics of the mill and use them as a guide.  He stated that the under 
Architectural Forms and Standards is a subsection (a) for the Starr’s Mill that describes the structure and 
the materials used to construct it. He added that in the section it says the structure sits on a stacked stone 
pillar foundation.  He then asked the Planning Commission is that something they would like to consider 
as an option; he also mentioned that no one does stacked stone anymore and that it would be an accent.  
He said the clapboard siding would have to resemble Starr’s Mill. He asked is that something that we 
could live with for the Starr’s Mill area. 
 
Chairman Graw said that it would add to the cost.  
 
Pete Frisina said that it would not be required. He then said we would allow it. He stated that if they put 
that in as an accent around the building then we want to see it replicated in the support structures of a gas 
canopy. 
 
Chairman Graw said if someone wants to design a building with that stacked stone as an accent he doesn’t 
have a problem with it.  
 
Pete Frisina said that he would add it not as a requirement but as being allowed.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that he went with 10 inches in one (1) foot pitch roof and clapboard siding.  He 
mentioned that the color red is not a requirement and the two materials listed for the façade are wood and 
fiber-cement siding.  He asked the Planning Commission if they wanted to allow a vinyl or metal siding 
that looks similar to this.  



 
Arnold Martin asked if the metal material would be metal version of clapboard. 
 
Pete Frisina replied yes and the same for vinyl. 
 
Al Gilbert said that over a period of time the vinyl and aluminum siding starts to fade.  He added that it 
cannot be painting once it fades. 
 
Pete Frisina said he would leave it as is and not to include metal or vinyl.  
 
Arnold Martin asked about roofing styles and does corrugated mean flat.     
 
Pete Frisina replied that the new corrugated roofs and the old-timey roofs meet the intent. 
 
Pete Frisina said at Starr’s Mill all the trim and the muntins and the frames around the doors and windows 
are white and we would like to mandate that as well.  
 
Arnold Martin asked if there would be any requirements for the door and window material. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that he did not set any requirements for the windows and doors.  He said that he did 
require a bulkhead underneath the windows because they did not want the windows going down to the 
ground.  
 
Brian Haren then asked are we going to allow two (2) story commercial structures. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that they are allowed but he doesn’t know if anyone is going to do one.  
 
Pete Frisina said if they want to do a covered porch we would want them to look like the covered porch 
on Starr’s Mill but we’re not going to mandate the pitch on it, but we do want it have this support 
structure, bannister.   He added that if they put this on the front of a store we want to see a banister on that 
whole front and with a minimum opening of three (3) feet which does meet ADA. 
 
Arnold Martin asked if there are any colors that we don’t want painted in the area. 
 
Pete Frisina said architecture requirements do not regulate building color.  
 
Arnold Martin mentioned Charleston, South Carolina and the pastel color schemes used there.  He stated 
that he did not know if it was a requirement.  He then asked what if a wacky person wants to paint their 
building purple should we put something in here to protect from that.  
 
Pete said he tried to stay away from that. 
 
Patrick Stough stated that it would be a lot easier to define what colors are allowed than what colors are 
not allowed. 
 
Chairman Graw stated years ago Peachtree City had something in their sign ordinance that defined the 
color of their signs as earth tones.  He said that it’s a very broad term but people know what earth tones 
are. 
 
Pete Frisina said maybe some do and maybe some don’t.  
 



Chairman Graw asked Pete Frisina to put in some language regarding color choices.  
 
Pete Frisina said that we would have to say these are the only colors you can use.  
 
Brian Haren asked if any of the Historical Preservation documents discussed allowable color schemes. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that he wasn’t reviewing for that but he would take a look.  
 
Patrick Stough said that a lot of those Historical Preservation areas often have an architectural review 
committee and it does become a subjective decision at that point.  
 
Pete Frisina said he would try and find some color regulations.  He said he would find and describe them. 
 
Pete Frisina read part b One-Part Commercial Block: 
   

One-Part Commercial Block: A popular commercial design from the mid-19th to the 
early 20th century. The one-part commercial block is a simple, one-story box with a flat 
or shed roof. Common façade materials consist of brick with decorative block, stone, and 
concrete accents. The focal point of front facade is the entrance and windows, consisting 
of a recessed doorway and display windows with a transom resting on a bulkhead (the 
lower panels on which the windows rest) framed by pilasters.  Architectural features 
include a cornice, belt course and parapet wall. 

 
He also read Façade Material: 

 
Façade Material: Brick/brick veneer shall be utilized on all walls as the primary facade 
material comprising a minimum of 65 percent of the wall excluding doors, windows and 
associated framing.  The remaining 35 percent of the wall may have the appearance of 
rough face decorative block, stone, and/or concrete accents. 

 
Al Gilbert said that we’re going to need to be careful with brick.  He said that some of the 
old-timey brick looks good and some of the more modern brick doesn’t look good. He 
added that the brick needs to have that used brick look to it.  
 
Pete Frisina asked Al Gilbert to help him with that.  
 
Pete Frisina showed photos for the entrance doors and windows. 
 
Al Gilbert said that the windows don’t have white trim around it.  
 
Pete Frisina said that they’re not required for this section only the Starr’s Mill area.  
 
Al Gilbert said that the windows look commercial and not residential. 
 
Pete Frisina said that these will not look residential because these traditionally do not 
look residential.  He stated that the windows on the square do not look residential.  
 
Al Gilbert said that most of the windows on the square are made with wood.  
 
Pete Frisina said they might be, but we’re going to make this look the best we can.  He 
added that he doesn’t know if he wants to require them to have wood windows.  
 
Al Gilbert said that he is not saying they have to be wood windows but the beige and tan 



trim looks commercial.  
 
Pete Frisina said that he did put in there that no silver finish would be allowed.  He said 
that it would be anything but anodized silver.     
 
Pete Frisina asked Al Gilbert would we allow the thin brick veneer finish. 
 
Al Gilbert stated that there is a siding available that are sheets.  He said if it gives the 
appearance he doesn’t have a problem with it.  
 
Pete Frisina said that we don’t know if we’re going to get one (1) building or one (1) 
strip, but we’re going to try and maintain a certain characteristics.   
 
Brian Haren asked are we going to allow painted advertising on the side of buildings.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that they are allowed to have whatever the sign ordinance says they 
can have.  
 
Pete Frisina read part 2 Entrance Doors and Windows: 
 

Entrance Doors and Windows:  The entrance door and windows component shall consist 
of entrance door (s), display windows, door and window transoms and bulkhead. Door 
and window frames may be constructed with wood, metal, or vinyl.  An anodized silver 
finish shall not be allowed for metal door and window frames. Transoms shall be a 
minimum of two (2) feet high and shall be separated from the windows and door by a 
mullion with a minimum width of four (4) inches.  A minimum two foot high bulkhead 
consistent with the Façade Materials above shall be required.   

 
Pete Frisina asked Al Gilbert if there were any other window fame materials that he could think of. 
 
Al Gilbert replied that you have vinyl.  
 
Pete Frisina asked if that was structure or cover. 
 
Al Gilbert replied that your brick mold and jams are vinyl now.  
 
Pete Frisina asked should we add wood, metal, or vinyl. 
 
Al Gilbert replied yes. He added that the vinyl will cover any of brick mold or trim.  
 
Pete Frisina read part 3 Architectural Features: 
 

Architectural Features:   A cornice is required. The cornice shall be a minimum of one (1) 
foot in height with a minimum projection of four (4) inches from the main façade.  The 
projection may be gradual.  A parapet wall is required along the front and side walls of 
the structure and shall be a minimum of two (2) feet in height. 

 
Pete Frisina stated that he talked to the Building Official and one (1) foot in height can only come back so 
far with each course of bricks.  He added that four (4) inches is about the best you can do in a foot.  He 
asked the Planning Commission if they thought that was too much going gradually to four (4) inches as 
you’re coming out.  He stated that four was the max. 
 
Chairman Graw said that something less would be lost in the structure.  



 
The Planning Commission agreed to four (4) inches being the max. 
 
Pete Frisina said parapets are normally not done in the back of buildings because that’s where all your 
water drains to.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that the Two-Part Commercial Block is very similar to the One-Part Commercial 
Block.   He said that the verbiage for number one (1) Façade Material and for number two (2) Entrance 
Doors and Windows are the same as One-Part. He stated that the only difference is number three (3) 
Upper Floor Windows and they shall be symmetrically positioned.  
 
Brian Haren asked Pete Frisina you wouldn’t allow for three (3) windows a brick face and then a fourth 
window.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that each section has to be symmetrical.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that number four (4) Architectural Features are pretty much the same as One-Part 
Commercial Block.  He said that he would add a minimum projection of four (4) inches to the cornice.  
He added that this section adds a minimum projection of one (1) inch for the belt course.  He stated that a 
belt course is that one molding piece of concrete or brick that creates a line between the first and second 
floor.  
 
Chairman Graw asked if any of the projections were going to cause an issue with construction cost of the 
building. 
 
Pete Frisina replied said he would hope not and that he talked to the Building Official and a Builder and 
they did not raise that concern.  He added that the builder did have an issue with the roof pitch of 10 
inches in one (1) foot.  He said the builder told him to be cognizant if something ends up being fairly 
large that’s going to be a big roof.  
 
Pete Frisina showed the Planning Commission various period lighting styles. 
 
Pete Frisina stated that the Planning Commission talked about requiring fencing in the 50 foot front 
landscape area.  He said that 40 percent of the frontage has to have accent fencing.  He stated that it could 
be a minimum three (3) foot high stacked rock wall or a minimum four (4) foot high fence with the 
appearance of wrought iron, split rail, picket, or rail horse fence.  He asked if the Planning Commission if 
they were alright with those.  
 
Arnold Martin asked if we are going to allow one section to do wrought iron, the other split rail, and the 
other picket. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that he would assume a developer would do his own parcel and would do them all the 
same, but the one across the street may do something different. He said he would add that the fencing 
must stay consistent through the development.  
 
Chairman Graw asked if Pete was sure he wanted a minimum of three (3) feet.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that usually your rock walls fit into the ground more. 
 
Arnold Martin agreed with Pete that they are usually three (3) foot in height when running down a 
property.  



 
Pete Frisina showed the board photographs of fencing. 
 
Chairman Graw asked if they need to put a maximum height.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that if we set a minimum that usually what we are going to get.    He added that 
developers are not going to spend more than they have to; nor are they going to take away from the 
appearance of the store by blocking the view.  
 
Chairman Graw said that with stacked stone you are only going to get three (3) feet because it’s so 
expensive, but the other fences can be higher than three (3) feet. He added that the other fences they could 
make higher than three (3) feet.  
 
Brian Haren said that the fencing is only visual and that horses will not be kept in it.  He added that 
they’re going to go the minimum and keep everything proportion with everything going on in that area.  
 
Al Gilbert said that you will see split rail fencing because it is the least expensive style.  
 
Pete Frisina said that the PVC style fencing is less expensive too. He added that it’s easy to replace and 
there is no painting required.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that the language in the Gas Canopy section is similar to the other ones but it’s 
different because we have three (3) different categories of buildings. He added that we want each of those 
to reflect that building. He read part f section 1 and 2 Gasoline Canopy: 

 
1. Gasoline canopies may be attached to the principal structure as an extension of 

the structure/roof.   
2. The vertical clearance under the gasoline canopy shall not exceed a maximum 

of 18 feet in height.  The height of the gasoline canopy shall not be more than 
five (5) feet above the height of the principal structure. 

 
Pete Frisina said that he looked at the height of a building with a 12 foot interior and 10 inches in one (1) 
foot pitch with a 30 foot length. He added that puts that structure height at 24 ½ feet.  He added that if we 
go to a pitch of 10 inches in one (1) foot on the gas canopy it would be 30 feet high which would be six 
(6) feet higher than the store.  He said he didn’t want the canopy to overshadow the building. He stated 
that he lowered the pitch to four (4) inches in one (1) foot which brings the height of the gas canopy down 
to 23 feet.  He said on the one part block commercial he used a 12 foot interior and a two (2) foot parapet 
wall which is a building height of 14 feet.  A gas canopy will have an 18 foot vertical clearance and 
maybe a two (2) foot structure at the top which will equal a 20 foot height; which is a six (6) feet higher 
than the building. He suggested requiring a four (4) foot parapet wall on the building in this case so the 
difference is four (4) feet instead of six (6) feet 
 
Chairman Graw asked what we did for the RaceTrac station down at Ramah.    
 
Pete Frisina replied that we allowed the canopy roof pitch to be less than the building’s roof pitch.    
 
Chairman Graw asked why we reduced the canopy there. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that it would have overshadowed the building. He added that the canopy height 
cannot be more than five (5) feet higher than the building.  
 
Brian Haren asked why the minimum height for the interior is 18 feet. 



 
Pete Frisina replied that we spoke to some of the RaceTrac people and they told him that contractors use 
large trucks with stacked material on the top. He said they were really pushing for an 18 foot clearance for 
this particular clientele.  
 
Brian Haren asked if we expecting that level of activity down here. 
 
Pete Frisina replied yes we’re talking about a four (4) lane highway real soon.  
 
Pete Frisina reads part (f) Gasoline Canopy subsection three (3): 
 

 3. The gasoline canopy and support structure shall match the architectural 
character, materials, color and roof of the principal structure. Gasoline canopies, 
in conjunction with a convenience commercial establishment built in the 
architectural form of Starr’s Mill, shall have a minimum roof pitch of four (4) 
inches in one (1) foot.  

 
Pete Frisina stated he looked at the same pitch on larger structures. He said if you have a 40 foot building 
with 10 inches in one (1) foot roof pitch, the building would 28 feet six (6) inches high. He added if he 
went to 50 feet he would be at 32 feet eight (8) inches in height. He said he was told by a contractor that a 
lot of space is wasted when doing buildings that size. He mentioned the alternative of a mansard roof that 
would mimic the appearance of a pitch roof. He said they would look at the canopy characteristics for the 
one and two part commercial buildings.  
 
Chairman Graw asked if the Fire Marshall wanted the canopy to not be attached the building. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that at first he made that a requirement but has now worded it to say “may be 
attached”. He said that the convenience store people don’t want it attached and the Fire Marshall would 
prefer it not be attached.  
 
Chairman Graw asked what if you put a parapet and slight sloping roof behind it.  
 
Pete Frisina said he wouldn’t have a problem with that.  
 
Pete Frisina asked if they like this approach of an administrative review instead of the board reviewing 
architectural plans. 
 
Chairman Graw said he would like to take a look at the first few architectural plans that come in and that 
he hopes things come out the way he envisions it.  
 
Pete Frisina added that there will be language that says photos are on file at the Planning and Zoning 
Department to give people direction so they won’t have to guess.  
 
Arnold Martin asked for a time line. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that he would like to get it to Board of Commissioners early next year.  He said that 
this is the most intense overlay he has done. He added that this will consist of land use plan amendments, 
zoning amendments, and maps  
  
 



Planning Commission December 3, 2015 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
3. Discussion of the SR 85 and SR 74 intersection. 
 
Pete Frisina introduced Melissa Harris.  He told the Planning Commission that she has some concerns 
about the drive-thru window aspect being eliminated from the zoning districts.  
 
Melissa Harris asked the Planning Commission why they are not allowed. 
 
Al Gilbert stated that we’re trying to keep fast food restaurants from the area.  
 
Melissa Harris replied that she understood that point, but why this intersection cannot have a drive-thru. 
 
Chairman Graw stated that Planning Commission is envisioning a historical district with 1900’s type of 
structures.  He said that this period did not have any drive-thru structures.  He added that the Planning 
Commission wanted to be fair to the restaurants and they did not think drive-thru windows kept with type 
of environment they want down there.  
 
Melissa Harris asked if the Planning Commission was trying to mirror downtown Fayetteville or Senoia.  
 
Chairman Graw said that we could show you some pictures of what we envision. 
 
Pete Frisina said that architecturally we want it to look like an old time downtown. 
 
Arnold Martin stated the structures will be architecturally in keeping with the style of Starr’s Mill.  He 
said the mill is essentially driving the standards.  
 
Melissa Harris asked how we are going to design a gas station.  
 
Chairman Graw said that we have drawings of structures that we would like to have a gas station look like 
in keeping with the environment down there.  
 
Al Gilbert stated that the district will also limit the amount of pumps.  
 
Pete Frisina replied architecturally we like the look of the Flash Foods on Gingercake and Highway 54 
and the other gas station on South Jeff Davis and SR 54. 
 
Al Gilbert mentioned the gas station on Robinson Road and Highway 54 in Peachtree City.  
 
Pete Frisina said that those convenience stores architecturally are what we’re looking for.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that the gas station will be small and according to the zoning ordinance gas station 
are limited to six (6) pumps.  He said they will not be huge RaceTrac’s and if they don’t want to have six 
(6) pumps they don’t have to locate there.  
 
Melissa Harris stated that she lives in South Fayette County and the community wants gas stations, banks, 
and a Starbucks.  
 



Chairman Graw said they can have all that, but no drive-thru windows.  He said that everything Melissa 
Harris stated will be permitted down there.  
 
Melissa Harris said that she doesn’t see how the end user is going to be happy.  She added that this will 
not be an easy task, the materials will be more expensive, and people want convenience down there. She 
asked why can’t we use the same architectural standards and have a drive-through down there. 
 
Al Gilbert stated part of the reason why we don’t want the drive-through windows down there is because 
we don’t want the fast food look. He stated that fast food establishments are welcomed down there but 
they will have to meet architectural standards. He added that if fast food establishments can’t have a 
drive-thru window, how can we tell a bank they can have a drive-thru window.  
 
Melissa Harris said she understood because that was the problem they had three (3) years ago. 
 
Chairman Graw stated that the zoning category L-C Limited Commercial has been in existence for 18 
years. He added that the category has not allowed drive-through windows since it was implemented.  
 
Pete Frisina said is has not allowed drive-thru windows for restaurants. 
 
Chairman Graw said that we felt that if restaurants can’t have those then other facilities shouldn’t have 
them either.  
 
Arnold Martin said that the Starbucks in Peachtree City by the Avenue does not have a drive-thru window 
and is packed and is not hurting for business.  He added that as years are progressing banks are doing less 
walk-in traffic and drive-thru because people are doing online banking.  He mentioned that banks are 
removing brick and mortar buildings because traffic counts have gone down.  He said that we want to 
keep the character of the area and attract business such as Starbucks but in the style we’re envisioning.  
He added that we want to protect the area and if you open the door for one (1) then you have to open it up 
to the cleaners and then where does it stop.  He concluded by keeping it in the period the period did not 
have a drive-thru window.  
 
Al Gilbert stated that he has been on the Planning Commission for twenty-seven years and this is the first 
time we have been in an area that is pristine there is nothing there.  He said that it gives the Planning 
Commission the opportunity to put in what they want.  He added they are limited to what they can do in a 
lot of areas in the county because it is already developed.  He said that once things are already established 
you must go with the flow.  He stated that this is the Planning Commission’s opportunity for an entry way 
into Fayette County to set a standard that is above anywhere else we have in the county.  
 
Melissa Harris said that she loves the feel of Star’s Mill and understands what the Planning Commission 
is trying to accomplish, and will take the information she has gathered to express it to her clients. 
 
Chairman Graw said that he doesn’t think prohibiting a drive-thru will be a deal breaker for Melissa 
Harris’ client.  He added that if the Planning Commission accomplishes what they envision the area will 
be very attractive to business.  
 
Melissa Harris said that by coming to the meeting tonight she has gathered the knowledge needed to 
express the vision and sell that. 
 
Arnold Martin stated based upon the per capita income of that area is going to have more personal 
banking needs where people will have to come inside instead of using the drive-thru to do quick 



transactions.  He added that bank based upon the area could see an opportunity in the lending and 
mortgage division and could be the gateway to Fayette County. 
 
Melissa Harris stated that she has been working on the area for 10 years and has built the Starr’s Mill 
Professional Center.  She said that she is very protective of the South Gateway of Peachtree City and 
Fayette County and does not want to be argumentative.  She mentioned that she does love going through 
the drive-thru, but she thinks people will be respective of the aesthetic vision the Planning Commission is 
trying to create. 
 
Chairman Graw stated that the Planning Commission is trying to discourage strip-shopping centers down 
there and encourage individual structures.  He added that we have some incentives in the proposed 
ordinance to help do that.   He said that the lots weren’t that big; one (1) lot is four (4) acres and the other 
two (2) lots that are buildable are three (3) and a half acres.  He added that the southeast corner of the 
intersection that property belongs to the State, and there is nothing we can do about that.  
 
Melissa Harris asked if that was the one with the four (4) houses on it.  
 
Chairman Graw replied yes.  He said that we really only have three (3) lots and the one (1) that we are 
really going to watch is the northeast near Starr’s Mill because of Starr’s Mill.  He asked if that lot had 
four (4) acres. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that he didn’t know, but he thinks Melissa Harris is looking at the northwest corner 
and it’s about four (4) acres and will need to be assembled. 
 
Chairman Graw stated that the lots are numbered northwest one (1), northeast two (2), southwest three (3) 
and southeast four (4).  He asked if two was the four (4) acre lot. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that it may be four (4) plus acres.  
 
Chairman Graw said that one (1) is about four (4) acres and lot two is three (3) plus or minus. 
 
Melissa Harris said that lot one (1) has 1.99 acres plus the triangle lot behind it; so it’s about three (3) 
acres.  
 
Pete Frisina said that he thought it was four (4) acres. 
 
Melissa Harris said that the reason Pete thought it was more acres was because Fayette County Maps had 
it as four (4) acres.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that there is not a lot of land on those three (3) corners to develop structures and 
uses we would like to see down there.   
 
Melissa Harris stated that the traffic counts are not there yet.  She said that there are not a million people 
knocking down the door because the traffic count is not at 10,000.   
 
Chairman Graw asked what the acreage was for Lot 3 southwest corner. 
 
Melissa Harris said she did not have that information because she doesn’t control that lot.  She added that 
it is similar to what you have four (4) acres. 
 



Pete Frisina stated that they we’re not looking at the whole lot anyway and wanted to stop it where the 
powerline was.  
 
Melissa asked for the pictures that will be used to help guide the architectural style the Planning 
Commission wants.   
 
Pete Frisina said he would send them to her.  
 
Arnold Martin asked for her feedback on the plan. 
 
Melissa Harris replied that she loves the concept and feel.  She added that it will be accepted and is 
community friendly.  
 
Arnold Martin said that we’re trying to limit the amount of convenience stores because certain stores 
attract other stores.  He added that those stores may attract loitering something we don’t want.  He said he 
wanted it to have a boutique feel.  
 
Pete Frisina showed a picture of the architectural style the Planning Commission is trying to implement in 
the district.  
 
Melissa said that she thought it was a little modern and asked if that building would be acceptable in the 
district.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that it’s a newer building and the Planning Commission hasn’t finalized 100 percent of 
everything what they want but it’s a good portion of what we want.  He stated that the photograph 
displays the cornices at the top of the building; it’s got the old time lighting and lamppost.  He added that 
the windows on the picture are not what they want. 
  
Melissa Harris asked if the end-user’s architect would come in and staff would proof them.  
 
Pete Frisina replied yes. 
 
Chairman Graw said that Juliet, Georgia has the architectural style that the County is looking for.  He 
added that it is a perfect place to show developers for them to get ideas. 
 
Melissa Harris said that she is trying to get Dunkin Donuts or Starbucks to come in off of 74 North 
corner. She added that neither one of these establishments needs a drive-thru, but they need to be larger.  
She mentioned a Caribou Coffee on one (1) of the corners.  
 
Chairman Graw said that South Fayette County will be the next area that will be building quickly.  He 
added that it may not be as populous because a lot of land down there has a lot of water.  He said that 
when it eventually takes off it’s going to really go fast.  
 
Melissa Harris mentioned that the area boarder’s three counties: Spalding, Coweta, and Fayette. 
 
Arnold Martin said that people are now looking for convenience even when it comes to their 
neighborhood grocery store.  He added that small boutique grocery store would be appropriate for the 
style and period of the area and convenient to the shopper.  
 



Melissa Harris mentioned that there are 10,000 students within a 10 mile radius in the area.  She said that 
she thinks about what they would like and a lot have said a Starbucks.  She added that there is an 
industrial park off of 74 North that could be tapped into by the development on the four (4) corners.   
 
Arnold Martin mentioned that whoever develops the four (4) corners they need to add a small meeting 
place for students, civic organizations, churches, etc.  He said the Starbucks meeting room near Stein 
Mart is always packed.  
 
Melissa Harris said Senoia is thriving with mom and pop shops.  She added that right now the traffic 
counts are not where they need to be and it will take a unique developer and buyer to embrace that vision 
and execute that vision.  
 
Arnold Martin said that people are attracted to our County because of the architectural style we have.  He 
added that the film industry is here and will be attracted to that area. 
 
Chairman Graw asked Melissa Harris does she like the concept. 
 
Melissa Harris replied yes but it will be a little difficult to sell.  
 
 
Pete Frisina said that we’re trying to articulate the architectural standards.  He mentioned originally we 
were trying to take it through a process where the Planning Commission and the Board of Commissioners 
review it and make a final decision similar to Fayetteville and Peachtree City.  He added that we’re trying 
to write this so that it is standardized in such a way that we wouldn’t have to have a review board. He said 
if you want to do a roof it has to have a pitch of x that’s it; if you want to have a wall it’s going to be 
brick with a certain percentage; staff can look at a building as long as it has strict standards and 
quantifiably say that it meets standards.  He read email’s that he sent/received to Bill Foley: 
 

Bill, 
 
If you could please review the attached standards and provide some feedback, I would 
appreciate it. Our goal is to develop architectural standards that can be reviewed and 
approved by staff as opposed to going before the Planning Commission and Board of 
Commissioner for approval because that can delay a project. Thanks and I am meeting 
with Planning Commission next Thursday to continue the discussion.   
************************************************************************
**** 
 
Bill, 
 
Did you get a chance to review the standards? I am discussing with the PC tomorrow 
night. Thanks. 
************************************************************************
**** 
 
I did look them over. For a small area they would stand but I would label the overlay as 
the “intent” so if a developer came in you could allow a creative interpretation.  

 
 
Pete Frisina said that staff can’t do creative interpretation because it goes back to having a board review 
it.  He told the Planning Commission to have it in their minds that we may not be able to standardize it.  
He said that this is becoming difficult because of the details.  He mentioned that he looked at a Historical 
Ordinance for Montgomery, Alabama to get ideas for historical colors.  He stated that they used Benjamin 
Moore and Sherwin Williams historical paint collection. 



 
Arnold Martin stated that we included colors to protect the area and its standards.    
 
Pete Frisina showed brick suggestions to the Planning Commission.  He said that different companies 
have different colors and styles of brick; and they don’t name them same even though it’s the same brick.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that we can’t tell developers what companies to use when purchasing their paint 
colors.  
 
Pete Frisina said that we need to get a couple of the Planning Commissioners to pair with staff to get 
some of the colors down. 
 
Chairman Graw asked the Planning Commissioner’s if they would like to volunteer for the historical 
color committee.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that the Planning Commissioner members could email him back their feedback.  
 
Arnold Martin volunteered for the historical color committee. 
 
Pete Frisina stated that the Planning Commission and staff need to come up with a way to define bricks.  
 
Melissa Harris asked if they could approve the bricks as they come forward. 
 
Pete Frisina said that staff can’t really use that type of discretion.  He stated that a lot of communities 
have an architectural review board that is separate from the Board of Commissioner’s that review plans, 
but we’re not creating an architectural review board.   
 
Arnold Martin asked if re-used brick from the 1900’s is in any of our language for the area.  
 
Pete Frisina stated it’s hard to articulate that for staff to make a decision.  He said that he has seen 
websites for companies that house stockpiles of recycled bricks from historical buildings.  
 
Al Gilbert said we cannot make a true recommendation on colors for bricks unless we look at it in the 
sunlight.  
 
Pete Frisina reiterated that staff needs to have something more definitive if it is going to be a staff 
function. He said that we must find some way to define the brick.  
 
Al Gilbert said there is nothing better than a used brick to get that old look. 
 
Pete Frisina stated that there are companies that tumble bricks, so the bricks won’t have a smooth look.  
 
Melissa Harris agreed that tumble bricks give the area the look that the Planning Commissioners are 
looking for.  
 
Pete said that they now have different colors for mortar.  
 
Melissa said that she wonders if the total cost spent on the project will effect the return ratio in such a way 
that increases the prices of goods in the area.  She said that if the costs to construct the buildings are too 
high it may kill the deal.  
 



Pete Frisina said that a lot of the brick that is being purchased is not brick, but a veneer and can be bought 
by the sheet.  
 
Chairman Graw asked if any of the members would like take a look at colors in the Planning and Zoning 
office. 
 
Arnold Martin said sure. 
 
Pete Frisina said that he should look at the websites of Sherwin Williams and Benjamin Moore and email 
him the ones he likes. 
 
Melissa Harris said that she does not like the historical yellow colors represented in the Benjamin Moore 
catalogue.  
 
Pete Frisina said that he doesn’t like the historical aqua colors represented in the Benjamin Moore 
catalogue.  
 
Al Gilbert stated that we don’t have to specify name brand so much just give people the paint chips and 
have them match it at Lowes or Home Depot. 
 
Chairman Graw said that we can give the paint chips out as examples.  
 
Pete Frisina said that we must give the people something standard that they can recognize.  
 
Melissa Harris asked about a shade of blue used in a photograph during the colors presentation.  She also 
asked will that be acceptable. 
 
The Planning Commission Members all stated that they wanted earth tone colors in the area. 
 
Pete Frisina said that they wanted mainly brick, but if they wanted to paint the buildings they could.  
 
Arnold Martin said that he would review the colors first on his own and then convene with staff at a later 
date.  
 
Chairman Graw agreed to the idea of reviewing first on his own and convening with staff later.  
 
Al Gilbert asked about the brick colors. 
 
Pete Frisina said he would try to find a way to narrow it down.  He added that he has seen buildings 
where the majority of the structure was red brick and they would use white bricks as the accent.  
 
Pete Frisina said that the one thing he wanted to point out was the roof pitch.  He said that he looked at 
some of existing buildings in the County right now.  He added that they need to reduce the pitch from a 
10 in 12 to four (4) and a half and in 12. 
 
Arnold Martin asked within the pitch would we allow different styles. 
 
Pete Frisina replied no, the structures will look like Starr’s Mill.  
 
Pete Frisina referred to page two (2) (b) One-Part Commercial Block 1. Façade Material: 
 



Façade Material: Brick/brick veneer shall be utilized on all walls as the primary facade 
material comprising a minimum of 65 percent of the wall, excluding doors, windows and 
associated framing.  The remaining 35 percent of the wall may have the appearance of 
rough face decorative block, stone, and/or concrete accents. 

 
Pete Frisina referred to page four (4) (f) Gasoline Canopy: 
 

 Gasoline Canopy.  Gasoline canopies shall comply with the following requirements:   
 1. Gasoline canopies may be attached to the principal structure as an extension of 

the structure/roof.   
 2. The vertical clearance under the gasoline canopy shall not exceed a maximum 

of 18 feet in height.  The height of the gasoline canopy shall not be more than 
four (4) feet above the height of the principal structure. 

 3. The gasoline canopy and support structure shall match the architectural 
character, materials, color and roof of the principal structure. Gasoline 
canopies, in conjunction with a convenience commercial establishment built in 
the architectural form of Starr’s Mill, shall have a minimum roof pitch of four 
(4) inches in one (1) foot.  

 
Arnold Martin said the BP gas station off of S.R 54 and Veterans Parkway is a good example of what 
we’re looking for.  
  
Arnold Martin asked if we had a brick ordinance. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that what we have done in the past is that we list the materials that can be used; we 
don’t specify what kind or what color of brick can be used. 
 
Arnold Martin said that he assumed that it was an ordinance because of the many commercial brick 
buildings in the County.  
 
Pete Frisina said that it may be in the ordinance that says it’s one of the materials we want on certain 
buildings but it’s not required.  He said that it’s not a Fayette County but a Fayetteville ordinance. 
 
Pete Frisina showed various pictures of structures using brick as the main material. 
 
Pete Frisina said that they need to set something in the ordinance that makes the developer match the 
colors with your building so there won’t be any issues 10 years down the road when they want to repaint.  
 
Pete Frisina asked if they were still comfortable with trying to do this in such a way that is quantifiable so 
staff can review it.  
 
Arnold Martin said yes, because it’s a time saver instead of going back and forth; it will go directly to 
staff and a decision will be made.  He asked is this something that the Board of Commissioners will make 
a final decision on. 
 
Pete Frisina replied yes, our recommendation will be given with land use maps, ordinance, and overlay 
zone standards. He said that he will try and explain it to them individually before going to the board 
meetings.  He added that he would ask for their feedback.  
 
Chairman Graw asked what the pitch was on the RaceTrac canopy. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that it’s a three (3) in12.  He said you reduce the height of the canopy so it doesn’t 
overshadow the building. 



 
Chairman Graw asked what’s wrong with keeping the canopy at a three (3). 
 
Pete Frisina replied that he has a canopy pitch in there, and if he is going to reduce the pitch with the 
other ones he will reduce that one (1) too.  He pointed out in the ordinance that the height of the gasoline 
canopy shall not be more than four (4) feet above the height of the principal structure.  
 
Melissa Harris thanked Planning Commission Members for allowing her to speak.  
 
Pete Frisina thanked her for sharing with them the actual lot size for one (1) of the corners.   
 



OLD BUSINESS 
 

5. Discussion of the SR 85 and SR 74 intersection. 
 
Pete Frisina stated that the following designation will be added in its entirety to the Fayette 
County Comprehensive Plan, Land Use Element, Future Land Use Map and Narrative, under the 
Commercial section.  Pete Frisina said that Limited Commercial One (1) & Two (2) will be 
added as two (2) new land use designations.  He then read the designation section: 
 

This category designates properties where specifically small scale businesses which do 
not generate large amounts of traffic, noise or light are to be located. For more 
descriptive purposes, Limited Commercial land use is subdivided into “Limited 
Commercial One” and “Limited Commercial Two” categories: 
 
Limited Commercial One: This category identifies properties where the L-C-1 
(Limited-Commercial (1) District) is recommended. 
 
Limited Commercial Two: This category identifies property where the L-C-2 (Limited-
Commercial (2) District) is recommended. 

 
Pete Frisina added that Limited Commercial One (1) land use category will be tied to the Limited 
Commercial One (1) zoning district. 
 
Chairman Graw asked if Limited Commercial One (1) was the less intense district.  
 
Pete Frisina replied yes. 
 
Chairman Graw stated that the Limited Commercial One (1) district will not have the 
convenience commercial in it. He added that it will have everything else except the gas station.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that in the hierarchy of zoning your lower number has the less intensity and 
intensity increases as the numbers go up. He added that’s how the document is formatted.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that the Limited Commercial Two (2) land use category will be tied to the 
Limited Commercial Two (2) zoning district. He named the area the “Starr’s Mill Historic 
District” and wrote a synopsis about the area. He asked the Planning Commission if they were 
okay with name. 
 
By consensus, the Planning Commission agreed with the name.  
 
John Culbreth asked how Historic District was defined in the code. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that we don’t have a definition for it in the code.  He added that this was just 
an overlay that he is calling a historic district.  He stated that we do not have any historic 
regulations.   



 
Brian Haren asked if we had anything in the County that we called a historic district. 
 
Pete Frisina replied no.  
 
Arnold Martin asked if we could create one (1).  
 
Pete Frisina replied that’s what we’re doing right now.  
 
Dennis Dutton stated that this will be on the land use plan.  
 
Pete Frisina read the next section and stated the following will be added in its entirety to the 
Fayette County Comprehensive Plan, Land Use Element, Future Land Use Map and Narrative, 
under the section titled Future Development Factors.  Pete stated that section labeled Starr’s Mill 
Historic Overlay District at the SR 74, SR 85, & Padgett Road Intersection goes over all the 
existing factors of the district.  
 
Chairman Graw asked had anything change since the last time they looked over it. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that on page two (2) he changed the order of the “goals of Starr’s Mill” and 
put the Historic District first. He then read the section: 
 

The goals of the Starr’s Mill Historic District Overlay at the SR 74, SR 85, & Padgett 
Road Intersection are: (1) maintain the historic character of the area, (2) control the 
intensity and aesthetic quality of development at the intersection as it is the southern 
gateway into Fayette County, (3) maintain an efficient flow of traffic at the intersection, 
and (4) protect existing and future residential areas outside of the intersection. 

 
Pete Frisina stated the recommendations of the non-residential land use will consist of Limited 
Commercial One (1) and Limited Commercial Two (2).  He added the fringe areas will have a 
residential land use designation of Low Density Residential (1 Unit/1 to 2 Acres).  He said that 
this section was also new.  
 
Pete Frisina stated the following will be added in its entirety to the Fayette County 
Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Plan Map. He then read the section:   

 
Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District and Overlay Zone 
Overlay District (see Fayette County Comprehensive Plan, Land Use Element) 
Overlay Zone (see Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 110-174 Historic District 
Overlay Zone) 

 
He added that the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District and Overlay Zone will be added to the 
list of districts that are in the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Arnold Martin asked if this area can be created as a mixed-use development. 



 
Pete Frisina replied no.  He added that the reason is because the County does not have a sewer 
system.  He said that once you add the infrastructure (i.e. detention pond, septic systems) it 
would overload the site.  He stated that it is one of the reasons why the County has not allowed 
highly intense development because it can’t service it. 
 
Arnold Martin stated that he asked the question because of the word “historic” and was 
wondering if this designation would be given to residential property. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that all of these regulations are geared to the non-residential portions of the 
property.  He added that we are not going to control a residential area with architectural control 
of residences. 
 
Al Gilbert stated that many years ago the planning commission presented the concept of a 
merchant living above his store.  He stated that the merchant would buy his property in a 
condominium fashion and would have his business on the ground level and his residence above.  
 
Arnold Martin stated that on Edgewood Avenue downtown this concept has taken off with the 
lofts. He added that the business owner lives above his business in a loft.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that none of the zoning districts allow for that type of mix.  He added that the 
County is saying that particular use needs to be in the incorporated areas.  
 
Brian Haren asked when is a Future Land Use Plan become a Current Land Use Plan. 
 
Pete Frisina replied it is always in the future.  He added that a Current Land Use Plan is 
something that is in the Comprehensive Plan but it’s only there to give you a snap shot in time.  
He said that it’s usually there to tell you the zoning and the way that you depict current land use 
is zoning.  
 
Chairman Graw asked Pete what he meant by some areas will have a residential land use 
designation.  
 
Pete Frisina pointed to those residential land use designations of Low Density Residential (1 
Unit/1 to 2 acres) on the map.  He added that they are changing it based on the zoning 
surrounding the area.  He stated that we’re changing the corners of the intersection to a non-
residential land use which we never had before.  He said that there will an area sandwiched 
between commercial and existing one (1) acre zoning.  
 
Chairman Graw asked where the power lines were. 



 
Pete Frisina pointed to them on the map.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that we’re only looking up to the powerlines for property number three 
(3).  
 
Pete Frisina said yes we’re only looking up to the powerlines for commercial.  He stated that the 
powerline creates a very small area that is sandwiched between commercial and one (1) acre 
zoning.  He said that he believes it is appropriate to allow that to be one acre zoning as opposed 
to holding it to A-R.  
 
Al Gilbert stated that it strengthens the line on Limited Commercial.  
 
Chairman Graw asked if the buildings the church owns can be incorporated into the L-C. 
 
Pete Frisina showed the church on the map and said that it will be incorporated into the Limited- 
Commercial 1 (L-C-1).  
 
Chairman Graw asked how many houses does the Limited Commercial two (L-C-2) incorporate. 
 
Pete Frisina replied four (4).  
 
Brian Haren asked if L-C-1 was more restrictive than LC-2. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that one (1) has less uses than (2).  He added that L-C-2 will allow the 
convenience commercial and L-C-1 would not.  
 
Pete Frisina stated you put higher density residential near commercial areas.  He said that there is 
a land use designation called Transportation, Communication, and Utilities.  He added that the 
area was bought by DOT for a future use because the highway is going to be widened.  He said 
that there is a 12 to 15 inch high pressure natural gas line going through that property and the 
Transportation, Communications and Utilities designation goes well in that area.  
 
Brian Haren asked if we were going to do anything with the A-R district to the southeast.  
 
Pete Frisina replied no. He added that the subdivision over there had been platted years ago.  
 
Brian Haren asked who owns the low density residential property east of the L-C-1. 
 
Pete Frisina said he thinks the church owns that.  
 



Brian Haren asked why we don’t include that. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that there is a road which is a good dividing line.  He pointed at another 
property and said that it has a spring coming out of it and would be limited for development. 
 
Pete Frisina stated that the following will be added in its entirety to the Fayette County Zoning 
Ordinance, Section 110-3.-Definitions.  He added that nothing had changed.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that on page four (4) the following will be added in its entirety to the Fayette 
County Zoning Ordinance the L-C-1 District.  
 
Chairman Graw asked had it been changed at all since the last time they reviewed it.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that there were no substantial changes.  He stated that L-C-1 and L-C-2 were 
based on L-C. He said L-C was written back in a period of time when we didn’t have many 
overlays.  He added that they made sure to add architectural requirements within the zoning 
districts, and leaving them in there because we have overlay requirements on all of the state 
routes.  He said the reasoning behind that was because if L-C was ever put somewhere outside 
the overlay districts it would have architectural requirements tied to it.  He added that there is a 
note in there that states the overlay takes precedence over the zoning district.  
 
Arnold Martin asked if there was ever a time when overlay districts are updated or altered. 
 
Pete Frisina replied yes. He added that it’s all part of the zoning requirements. He reiterated that 
every state highway in the county has an overlay.  
 
Brian Haren read page five (5) section (d) Regulations subsection (1):  These structures shall 
maintain a residential character. 
 
Pete Frisina said that there is a note under subsection one (1) that states: properties within an 
Overlay Zone shall comply with the applicable Architectural Standards of the Overlay Zone.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that there is nothing new on page six (6).  He said that on page seven (7) the 
Limited-Commercial District will be amended as follows in the Fayette County Zoning 
Ordinance to become L-C-2 now.  He said that the red lines depict the L-C becoming L-C-2.  
 
Al Gilbert asked if walk-up ATM’s and kiosk are okay. 
 
Pete Frisina replied yes walk-up is okay.  
 
Arnold Martin asked if it were possible for a bank to put a walkable ATM on the side of their 
building that could be used for drivers as well.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that the intent is to have no drive-through. 
 
Arnold Martin said that banks could argue that a teller is not assisting any drivers. 



 
Brian Haren said that normally you can’t walk up to an ATM that is situated that you can drive 
up to.     
 
Chairman Graw said that he thinks the way it’s worded would prohibit even a drive-up to an 
ATM. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that we can always put no drive-up, drive-through, or drive-in. 
 
Al Gilbert said that on page nine (9) it says no drive-through or drive-in facilities allowed.   
 
Arnold Martin asked if we had a definition for drive-through or drive-in. 
 
Chairman Graw asked Patrick if the wording we have now would stop someone from driving up 
to an ATM. 
 
Patrick Stough replied that he wasn’t sure.  He said there could be potential for someone to say 
that it is not a drive-through.  He added that it’s not your normal drive through because you are 
not dealing with a person.  He asked Pete if we had a definition. 
 
Chairman Graw stated the only way to stop a drive-in access to an ATM would be to specifically 
state that there will be no drive-in ATM access allowed.  
 
Patrick Stough said it could be as simple as adding drive-up, drive-through, and drive-in to the 
definitions.  
 
Pete Frisina said he would add drive-up as a definition.  He said he believes drive-through means 
a service is provided to you through a window.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that the drive-through definition would take care of an ATM.  
 
Pete Frisina read the definition for drive-through: 

 
Drive-through: Means an opening in the wall of a building or structure designed and 
intended to be used to provide service to customers who remain in their vehicles. 

 
Pete Frisina said that a drive-up / drive-through ATM would be designed and intended to be used 
to provide a service to customers who remain in their vehicles.  
 
Patrick Stough said that he doesn’t believe it’s strong enough.  He said when he hears provides 
service to customers he is seeing employee’s providing service to customers.  He added that he 
does not see customers interacting with a machine. He said that someone could argue this in 
court.  
 
Pete Frisina replied that he could come up with a drive-up definition.  
 



Patrick Stough said with the drive-up definition that it should emphasize situational whether a 
person is interacting with a machine not just an employee. 
 
Pete Frisina said that the definition would be added to the list.  He added that he would send it 
out to the Planning Commission for review.  
 
Pete Frisina said that on page 10 Section 110-169 goes over the Conditional Use section of the 
convenience commercial establishment.  He stated that we took the heading portion out of the 
convenience commercial establishment to create a definition.  
 
Arnold Martin asked about the Conditional Uses on page eight (8) that addresses Single-Family 
residences. 
 
Pete Frisina replied we have that in all of our non-residential zoning districts.  He said the 
reasoning behind that was because you may have a single-family home on a one (1) acre lot that 
you have zoned to C-C to potentially sell to someone.  He stated that we have people on C-C 
property for 20 years or more; it allows the residential use to stay.  He added that the conditional 
use also says you can’t subdivide to make a residential subdivision.  
 
Dennis Dutton said we don’t allow you to do business and residential together.  
 
Pete Frisina said in the Zoning Ordinance under General Provisions it states that once you’re 
zoned non-residential it allows you to do residential but you can’t do both residential and non-
residential.  
 
Pete Frisina stated Section 110-174 Historic district overlay zone is the companion piece to the 
overlay district.  He said that these are regulations that outline the architectural controls and 
introduce two (2) new terms the brick palette and the color palette.  He added that Patrick Stough 
advised him not to put the color palette and brick palette on Municode because different screens 
will display different colors than the initial color we imported on the site.  He stated that the idea 
is to laminate the color palette and brick palette and have them in the planning and zoning 
department.  He then added the contractor would bring in their color chips and staff will see if 
the color matches up.  
 
Al Gilbert asked how a color gets added to the color palette. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that this will be approved as part the ordinance.  
 
Al Gilbert then stated that we need to develop a process.  He then asked who makes the 
determination on the colors and where does he go if he doesn’t agree. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that they would have to make an amendment to the zoning ordinance.  He 
said it would have to go back through Planning Commission and then the Board of 
Commissioners.  
 



Al Gilbert stated that he doesn’t want one (1) person determining whether a color is good or not.  
He added he would like a committee be it Planning Commission or some other entity.  He said 
that he fears someone will be turned down and would go to the Board of Commissioners about 
the matter.  He then asked Patrick Stough if he agreed with him. 
 
Patrick Stough stated that he does believe there is an issue there that needs to be addressed, and 
he doesn’t know necessarily how.  
 
Chairman Graw asked Al Gilbert if he wants the approval of colors to come through the Planning 
Commission.   
 
Pete Frisina stated if there is a disagreement we could bring it before the Planning Commission. 
 
Al Gilbert stated that it will happen at some point.  
 
Pete Frisina said that if someone comes in wanting pink it’s not on the list therefore not allowed.  
 
Al Gilbert said we could allow them to go before the Zoning Board of Appeals if they don’t 
agree with colors.  
  
Pete Frisina said that he would add the color palette and brick palette after architectural intent on 
page 11.  
 
John Culbreth asked if another area wanted to create a Historic District could they use these 
regulations as a standard. 
Pete Frisina replied this Historic District designation is only for this particular area.  He added 
that all historic districts aren’t the same, and that he doesn’t think there are that many other 
historic areas in the county.  He said that if someone does want to create another historic district 
he would write something similar but specific to that area.  
 
Al Gilbert asked if the Hopewell Church on S.R. 92 could be considered as a Historic District.  
 
Pete Frisina replied yes and we could look at that area for a Historic District in the future.  
 
Brian Haren suggested that they have three (3) people make an independent judgement on a 
submittal meets the color palette and that one (1) of the decision makers need to be a female.  He 
said his reason behind the statement was that some males have some degree of colorblindness 
and most females do not.  He added that they should also look at it outside in sunlight.  
 
Pete Frisina presented the color palette and brick palette to the Planning Commission. 
 
By consensus, Planning Commission agreed with the color choices.  
 
Pete Frisina asked Patrick Stough if we should make the color palette and brick palette a part of 
the vote.  
 



Patrick Stough replied that he thinks the original palette should be approved by the board. He 
added that he doesn’t know if he would make it an exhibit, amendment, or addendum to the 
ordinance because you will have to put it online.  
 
Pete Frisina said that he would make reference to them and make sure they are approved as a part 
of the overlay and will be on file.  
 
Patrick Stough mentioned that maybe it should be in a separate book.  
 
Al Gilbert asked when this will be taken before the Board of Commissioners.   
 
Pete Frisina replied that he would like to get together with each Commissioner on an individual 
basis to brief them and ask for their input.  He added that he would ask the Commissioner’s if 
they would like to expand the area or have suggestions for other sites.  He said he would bring 
their suggestions back before the Planning Commission to discuss to see if those are changes 
they would like to make.  He stated that they might be able to make the Public Hearings in 
March.  
 
Arnold Martin asked if we know of any Board opposition to this concept. 
 
Pete Frisina replied no because they don’t really know that we’re doing it.  Chairman Graw 
asked why they had Limited Commercial two (2) (i.e. gas stations) on sites one (1) and three (3). 
Pete Frisina replied that most of these corners operate on a morning and evening basis, and if you 
only put one (1) gas station on a corner it would cause traffic congestion for people trying to 
enter and leave the gas station and for people drive to and from their destinations.  
 
Arnold Martin stated that he goes to two (2) separate gas stations on his way to and from work.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that he doesn’t like two (2) gas stations on opposite sides of the street 
because of the aesthetics.  He added that he thinks the gas stations will detract from the area.  He 
said that he understood where Arnold was coming from about the access, but he added that there 
are gas stations on Bernhard Road, S.R. 16 and S.R. 85, and S.R. 74 at Crosstown.  He stated that 
you have three (3) gas stations within four (4) miles and none of those areas have two (2) gas 
stations on a corner.  He added that he could see one (1) but two (2) he has a problem with. 
 
John Culbreth stated that he believes that the gas station would slow down the traffic and attract 
customers to the other amenities.  He added that sometimes people won’t stop unless they have a 
direct need to stop.  
 
Arnold Martin stated that the Dunkin Donuts on S.R 85 is a traffic nightmare because there is 
only one (1), but if there was another donut shop across the street it would relieve a lot of the 
traffic in the area.  He added that he was leaning toward having the two (2) gas stations on 
opposite sides of the street because they are not your typical gas station.  He said that he believes 
the way in which we are designing the corner will make it aesthetically appealing. 
 



Chairman Graw stated that the property is not that big and a gas station will take up a lot of area 
that could be used for retail space.   
 
Pete Frisina replied that the gas stations have been limited in size to 3000 square feet.  He added 
that amount of pumps have been limited. 
 
Arnold Martin said that a lot of the residents in that area have complained about the lack of gas 
stations in the area.  He added that later on down the road the population is going to increase and 
these gas stations will be warranted. 
 
Chairman Graw reiterated that he doesn’t understand why they need to have two (2) stations in 
the area when there are so many gas stations around the area.  
 
Brian Haren asked how we would restrict gas stations in one (1) of the two (2) the areas. 
 
Chairman Graw suggested that we look at the traffic flow for one (1) station. 
 
Brian Haren asked how we can say to a developer you can have one (1) gas station on this corner 
and not on the other. 
 
Pete Frisina replied you would change the zoning designation. 
 
Brian Haren said that we discussed this earlier and decided to use restrictions in the amount of 
pumps and square footage to detract the QuikTrip’s and RaceTrac’s.  He added that it’s a risk 
we’re going have to take.  
 
Arnold Martin said that there is a possibility that a gas station won’t develop in the area.  
 
Chairman Graw asked when S.R. 85 becomes four (4) lanes will it be easier to access tracts (1) 
and (3).  
 
Pete Frisina replied it depends on whether or not a median is put in.  He said that we have made a 
demarcation of the more intense land uses and the less intense land uses.  He added that the land 
uses will get less intense as it moves toward Starr’s Mill.  He stated that the market will dictate 
whether or not you get one (1) or two (2) gas stations.  
 
Chairman Graw stated that he just wanted to voice his concerns and that he will carry his 
concerns all the way to the vote.  
 
Pete Frisina said that he will make the changes that they discussed tonight and will send them 
out. He added that he will talk with the Board of Commissioners as soon as he can.  He said it 
will give them a few more times to discuss it if the Board of Commissioners has any issues with 
it.  He told them to look for March for it to go before a Public Hearing.  
 
Al Gilbert asked if there will be a workshop.  
 



Pete Frisina said we will see depending on whether or not he gets some feedback between now 
and then. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Planning Commission February 18, 2015 
 
OLD BUSINESS   
 
4. Discussion of the SR 74 and SR 85 intersection.   
 
Pete Frisina told Jay Knight that the Planning Commission and staff are looking at the 
intersection corners of S.R 74 and S.R. 85 for non-residential development.  He said that staff 
and the Planning Commission have developed two (2) zoning districts, one (1) is existing but is 
being morphed into two (2) calling it Limited Commercial one (1) and Limited Commercial two 
(2).  He stated that the Limited Commercial (2) district does allow for a convenience commercial 
establishment but it’s limited in size and the number of pumps.  He added that the architectural 
standards will be reminiscent of turn of the century because the Planning Commission and staff 
are creating a Starrs Mill Historical District.  He said this was because of Starrs Mill’s close 
proximity to the intersection, and it being a major focal point of the County.  He stated that there 
are three (3) styles of architecture that they’re looking at: the characteristics of Starrs Mill to 
build into a commercial building, one (1) part commercial block, or a two (2) part commercial 
block.   He said that downtown Fayetteville has characteristics of both one (1) part commercial 
block and two (2)-part commercial block.  He added that South on S.R 85 and Grady there is a 
shopping center that is fairly new with a more modern aspect that is similar to what we’re 
looking at doing. He mentioned that the districts will not allow for any heavy use.  
 
Al Gilbert said it is reminiscent of downtown Senoia.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that the Planning Commission and staff were going to control the color of the 
brick and it will be the prominent material used.  He mentioned that there will be a color palate 
administered for any other painted surfaces. The Planning Commission and staff will control the 
color, bricks, landscaping, and lightening. 
 
Pete Frisina stated that he has talked to all five (5) members of the Board of Commissioners. He 
said of the five (5), two (2) Commissioners did not give him an indication on whether they like 
the idea or not.  He added that he assumed they are probably agreeable to it because they did not 
ask a lot of questions.   He stated that three (3) of them displayed some apprehension in one form 
or another about the work that is being done by the Planning Commission and staff at the 
intersection. He said the array of reaction to the project was: why are we doing anything at all, 
wanting even more limited commercial and no commercial at all. He added that two (2) would 
probably go along with it and he couldn’t say whether the other three (3) would go for it or send 
it back.  He received suggestions for the district and one (1) was that any sign structures 
associated with the business shall also have the same architectural characteristics as the principle 
structure.    
 
Chairman Graw asked will any changes need to be made to the Sign Ordinance.  
 
Pete Frisina replied no it is only the sign structure.  The other suggestion is to not allow wood 
fencing. He said they would allow fencing that look like wood because of the durability of the 
other materials were so much greater than wood.  He stated we will not get the old-timey look 



from a vinyl, aluminum or PVC.    
 
Chairman Graw asked if their issue with the fencing is geared toward the durability of the fence. 
 
Al Gilbert replied yes it’s about the maintenance and upkeep of the fence.  
 
Pete Frisina stated that you don’t have to paint it and it holds its appearance longer.  
 
Arnold Martin asked if the PVC was like a chain-link fence. 
 
Pete Frisina replied no, it’s like a white picket fence.  He said that the fence could be any color 
but it wouldn’t have the split rail look to it.  He added that only wood can give you that look.  He 
asked the Planning Commission if they wanted to stick with wood or exclude it. 
 
Brian Haren asked if the Commissioner who has the problem with the wood fencing be more 
inclined to vote for approval of the district if it is excluded. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that it’s one (1) out of five (5) chance. 
 
Brian Haren said that it’s a small concession to make for a vote for the district. 
 
Arnold Martin agreed saying if that gets us to where we want to be without changing the 
integrity of the project then let’s do it. 
 
Chairman Graw asked the Planning Commission if they wanted to wipe out the wood. The 
Planning Commission agreed to wipe out the wood from the district.  
 
Pete Frisina said that he would re-write that portion.  He stated that he has done some 
wordsmithing to the overlay district.  He asked the Planning Commission if they want to hear 
this on the 3rd of March if so, staff would need to advertise by tomorrow.  He said there was 
some suggestion from a Commissioner if we sought public input.  He stated that we have never 
had a procedure to do that for land use changes or for zoning ordinance amendments.  He added 
that there is not really a good way to seek input unless you put a sign up. He asked where you 
would put the sign up at, and would it be on all four (4) corners of the intersection.  He then 
asked if he contacted subdivisions would he also have to contact individuals. He added that we 
don’t have a procedure for that and they never have.  
 
Al Gilbert suggested contacting the local newspapers to see if they would like to put an article in 
the paper. 
 
Pete Frisina said we can do that.  
 
Brian Haren asked what the alternatives were from the Commissioners who were against the 
project. 
 
Pete Frisina replied nothing and possibly O-I. 



 
Chairman Graw stated that we have been working on this for three (3) years.  He stated that there 
are plenty of signs in the area that say potential commercial property for sale.  He added one of 
the concerns from the public is us being reactive. He said he doesn’t want us to be in a defensive 
mode if multiple residents in the area decide to sell their property near the intersection and ask 
for it to be rezoned as C-H (Commercial Highway) our most intense commercial zoning district.   
He added you don’t know what can happen if you deny someone C-C, or C-H zoning.  He said 
we want to have something in place before someone demands that we do something with it.    
 
Chairman Graw stated that one (1) of the Chairman’s tried to keep Lot two (2) 
natural/undeveloped, but it didn’t fly.  He added that they tried to make County property, but at 
that time the County didn’t have the money to buy it.  
 
Bill Beckwith said that Al Gilbert suggested contacted the neighbors east of Starrs Mill when a 
gas station wanted to come in at the intersection.   
 
Pete Frisina said that he would get in contact with the newspaper.  
 
Brian Haren asked if we should give it over to the Board of Commissioners so they can decide 
on the project.  
 
Arnold Martin asked will we have a vote on it that evening.  
 
Pete Frisina said they will have the opportunity to act on. He said they can approve, deny, or 
table. 
 
Chairman Graw asked when we have the Public Hearing on this. 
 
Pete Frisina replied March 3, 2016. 
 
Chairman Graw asked if we could delay it till the 17th of March. 
 
Pete Frisina told him it wouldn’t be on the Agenda until April.  
 
Brian Haren said he wouldn’t be here on that week. 
 
Pete Frisina said he wouldn’t be here that week.  
 
Chairman asked for the Public Hearing to be held the first of April. 
 
Al Gilbert suggested a joint workshop for the project since there was apprehension from a few 
Commissioners.  
 
Pete Frisina said that we really shouldn’t have a joint workshop because staff couldn’t turn it 
around to the Board of Commissioners within a week.  
 



Chairman Graw stated that the Board of Commissioners may say get rid of it or add a few tweaks 
to it.  
 
Arnold Martin stated that he really wants the residence of that area to voice their opinion of what 
they want or need in that area.  
 
Al Gilbert said that they needed to be careful because the first meeting they had on this project 
the residents wanted the property to be zoned C-H so they could get the highest dollar amount 
for their property.   
 
Pete Frisina said he would send a press release to the paper saying that we were working on land 
use changes in the area and will be having a Public Hearing Meeting in April. He added that if 
the public wanted to look at the plan they could contact the Planning & Zoning Department.  
 
Al Gilbert suggested that he add a picture to the article depicting the turn of the century style 
structures they would like for the area.    
 



OLD BUSINESS   
 
5. Discussion of the SR 74 and SR 85 intersection.   
 
Pete Frisina passed out to the Planning Commission a map showing the land-use and a press 
release of the proposed Starrs Mill Historic Overlay District.  He said the press release will go 
over the basics and talk about the Starrs Mill Overlay District Zone and goals.  He added that he 
would produce a link on their website where people can go and view the map, verbiage, color 
palate, and our phone number so they can call the department for more information.  He asked 
the Planning Commission if they were okay with it.  He also asked if the Planning Commission if 
they received the verbiage sent to them via email regarding the fencing portion of the overlay 
district.  He passed out pictures of plastic fences to the Planning Commission. 
 
Vice-Chairman Martin asked if we would tell the public that calls for more information to come 
to a meeting that will be more in-depth about the Historic District. 
 
Pete Frisina replied yes that is what we intend to do.  He stated that we will not have a public 
hearing on this until May due to some scheduling conflicts.   He said that it gives us an 
opportunity to have a few workshops to listen to some comments from the public.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin said he thinks that’s a great way of getting the message out there. 
 
Brian Haren asked if staff received guidance from the Board of Commissioners.  
 
Pete Frisina replied no and that the guidance he received previously was enough.  He stated that 
the guidance he got was good and has made those changes.  He said he changed the fencing 
section and added the verbiage about signs having the same characteristics architecturally as the 
building. 
 
Pete Frisina asked the Planning Commission to look at the map’s northeast corner where it is 
labeled low density residential.  He said there is an area up there that he labeled Transportation, 
Communication, and Utilities that is owned by the Water System.  He asked the Planning 
Commission if they would like to label it Parks. 
 
Vice-Chairman Martin asked if the labeling (Transportation, Communication, and Utilities or 
Parks) would affect how the land is used. 
 
Pete Frisina replied no because it’s owned by the County. 
 
Al Gilbert stated he would be concerned that if they labeled it as a park, and some people may 
think that it is a park. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that it is a passive park. 
 
Al Gilbert said that it is something that the Board of Commissioners should decide.  He asked if 
the area was recognized as a park already. 



 
Pete Frisina replied that it is not a part of the Parks and Recreation Department but it is owned by 
the Water System and there is an intake at Starr’s Mill.  He asked the Planning Commission if 
they were good with the Transportation, Communication, and Utilities designation. 
 
Planning Commission replied that they were good with the designation being Transportation, 
Commercial, and Utilities.   
 
Brian Haren asked about using the label Conservation Areas. 
 
Pete Frisina replied Conservation is only used for floodplain areas. 
 
Vice-Chairman asked if we wanted to schedule a meeting for the public to respond to the press 
release. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that you will have three (3) meetings between now and May.  He said that 
the people can come in between those times to voice their opinion.   
 
Brian Haren asked who owns the piece of property east of Waterfall Way.  
 
Pete Frisina replied the church owns that piece of property.  He said that there was a gravel road 
that goes down that line but he doesn’t think it is maintained by the County.  He added that it 
creates a good dividing line for what there trying to create.   
 
Al Gilbert asked if the property south of Waterfall Way and North of S.R. 85 is owned by the 
County.   
 
Pete Frisina stated that the church owns that property and some of the property north of Waterfall 
Way.  He added that some of the land is owned by other individuals.   
 
Al Gilbert asked if we were going to have a workshop this month. 
 
Pete Frisina replied you will have a workshop in March, a public hearing in April, and another 
workshop at the end of April. 
 
Vice-Chairman Martin asked if there were any other business that needed to be taken care of 
tonight.  Hearing none he asked for a motion. 
 



THE FAYETTE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION met on May 5, 2016 at 7:00 P.M. in 
the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue West, Fayetteville, Georgia. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Jim Graw, Chairman 
    Arnold L. Martin, III, Vice-Chairman 
 Al Gilbert 
 Brian Haren       
    John H. Culbreth Sr. 
           
STAFF PRESENT:  Pete Frisina, Director Community Services 
 Dennis Dutton, Zoning Administrator 
 Chanelle Blaine, Planning and Zoning Coordinator  
 Patrick Stough, County Attorney 
  
 
Welcome and Call to Order: 
 
Chairman Jim Graw called the Planning Commission Meeting to order.  Chairman Graw 
introduced the Commission Members and Staff. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * 
 
1. Consideration of the Minutes of the Meeting held on April 21, 2016. 
 
Al Gilbert made a motion to approve the minutes.  John Culbreth seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed 5-0.   
 
2. Consideration of amendments to the Land Use Element Text And Future Land Use 

Plan Map of the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan for the Starr’s Mill Historic 
Overlay District in the area of the Intersection of State Route 74, State Route 85 
And Padgett Road 

 
Chairman Graw stated that we have spent three (3) years on this project.  He said that staff has 
done a great job and that we have created a darn good plan.   
 
Pete Frisina stated that we actually started in July 2015 in preparing these documents.  He said 
that what we have done is look at the intersection in close proximity to Starrs Mill (S.R. 85, S.R. 
74, and Padgett Road) and come up with basic land use changes.  He stated the two (2) 
prominent changes are the limited commercial one (1) and a limited commercial (2) land use 
districts and they are also tied back to two (2) zoning districts of the same names. He added the 
only major difference is the convenience store with gasoline sales; L-C-1 does not allow it and 
L-C-2 does allow it.  He stated the land use is identified as corner one (1), two (2), three (3), and 
four (4). He said that corner one (1) is the northwest corner, corner two (2) is the northeast 
corner, corner three (3) is the southwest corner and corner four (4) is the southeast corner.  He 
added that they’re recommending Limited Commercial two (2) for corners one (1) and three (3), 
corner two (2) Limited Commercial one (1), and corner four (4) is the portion of the property that 
is still owned by the DOT. He stated that corner four (4) is bounded by the old road bed of 



Padgett Road which has been realigned, and has a gas line running through it; it has been land 
used as Transportation, Communication, and Utilities.  He said that the property west of corner 
one (1) has been land used Office Institution, and will act as a buffer for the residents to the north 
and south of it.  He added that areas north on corner two (2) and south of corner three (3) will be 
land used for Low Density Residential as they border areas currently zoned for one (1) acre 
residential.  He stated that there is a small portion of property where Starrs Mill is that will be 
land used as Transportation Communication and Utilities as it is owned by the Fayette County 
Water System.  He said that there is verbiage in the text that supports everything we talked 
about. 
 
Chairman Graw asked if anyone from the public would like to speak to the land use plan that 
they are proposing for that intersection.   
 
Hearing none Chairman Graw asked if we were going to be considering the Office section in this 
land use also. 
 
Pete Frisina replied yes.   
 
Chairman Graw said that we have not talked about the zoning of that parcel like we have the 
others. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that it will be straight Office Institutional.  He said that it would follow under 
this Historic District.   
 
Chairman Graw asked if it was going to have the same architectural standards as the L-C. 
 
Pete Frisina replied yes.  He added that the architectural standards are not contained within the 
zoning districts but within the overlay.   
 
Brian Haren asked for clarification that the dashed line represented the overlay district.   
 
Pete Frisina replied yes.   
 
Arnold Martin asked if there was a general district area for the mill and church. 
 
Pete Frisina said that only district that we are talking about controlling is the area within that 
dotted line.  He added that the historic overlay will only control those properties.   
 
Arnold Martin will there be any overflow from the Starrs Mill area and will there be any 
challenge from archeological groups based upon the history of the area. 
 
Pete Frisina replied not that I am aware of. He said that we are not creating a district for 
preservation purposes; we are creating a historic district for development purposes and we are 
saying that the mill has that historic character we are trying to maintain.   
 
Chairman Graw stated that this was just a title that we used for land use and zoning purposes.  



 
Pete Frisina said the whole idea of this is to preserve that area, because of the influence of that 
structure.  He added that it is a very important icon for the County.  He stated that this is also the 
gateway into the southern portion of the County, and we want to make sure that the front door 
looks good.   
 
Al Gilbert stated that Starrs Mill is the most photographic spot in the County.  He said that it is 
the last pristine entry way into our County.    He added that we have to protect it. He stated that 
we could leave it be and end up with things we wouldn’t like to see.  He said by being proactive 
we will be able to control what goes into that area and preserve the beauty of Starrs Mill.  He 
added that the plan isn’t perfect and they will be tweaking it over the years. He stated that staff 
and the Planning Commission have done a great job of putting this together. 
 
Chairman Graw stated that he is somewhat concerned about Limited Commercial on lot one (1) 
and three (3).  He said that he personally feels we don’t need two (2) gas stations on opposite 
corners, because there are gas stations in Senoia about four (4) miles west, Peachtree City’s gas 
station is  four (4) miles north, and there is a gas station east on McBride.  He stated that his 
second concern is safety because SR 74 has been widened and SR 85 will be widened soon.  He 
stated that the gas stations will cause a lot of traffic especially on lot one (1). He added that the 
gas station on lot three (3) will be easier to get in and out of because it can enter and exit on 
Padgett Road.  He stated that he doesn’t feel that it is severe enough right now for him to vote 
no.  He said that he thinks we have a fantastic development and he reiterated that he doesn’t want 
to vote no because of his personal opinion about a gas station on one (1) lot. 
 
Arnold Martin stated the he understood his concern, but doesn’t feel the same way. He said that 
the gas stations on opposite sides of the street will help ease the traffic with one gas station 
getting customers in the morning and the other getting customers at night.  He added that he 
finds it safer on the driver for them to pull into a gas station on their side of the road as oppose to 
using a turning lane for a gas station on the opposite side of the road.   
 
Brian Haren made a motion to recommend approval of the proposed amendments.  Al Gilbert 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed 5-0.   
 
3. Consideration of amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 

110., Article I – In General.  Sec. 110-3. –Definitions, Article IV. - District Use 
Requirements,  Sec. 110-145. and Sec. 110-146., Article V. - Conditional Uses, 
Nonconformances, Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone, and Commercial 
Development Standards, Sec. 110-169. Conditional Use Approval., Sec. 110-173. - 
Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone. (3) General State Route Overlay Zone, and 
Sec. 110-174. – Commercial Development Standards., concerning the proposed 
Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District and Overlay Zone. 

 
Pete Frisina stated that this is the follow up to the land use changes we just looked at. He said 
that this is all of the backing ordinances we created with the zoning ordinance.  He added that we 
have beefed up the definitions that we had to create for these new zoning districts.  He stated that 
we have created a new L-C-1 (Limited Commercial 1) and have taken the L-C district and 



amended it to now be Limited Commercial Two (2).  He said that under the conditional use we 
went to the convenience commercial establishment and amended it to match what we’re doing in 
the L-C-2. He added that under the Transportation Corridor Overlay State Route areas we have 
put it in as a new overlay so it was pulled out of the General State Route Overlay.  He stated that 
we have created the new Historic District Overlay with architectural standards. He said that there 
is a section under the Corridor Non-Conformance chapter which was called Commercial 
Development Standards that was written some time ago that was specific to the area north of 
State Route 54, west of Sandy Creek Road, and East of Tyrone that was a hospital overlay area.  
He added that this particular area is no longer in the County, and is in the City of Fayetteville.  
He said that section will be taken out and using the section number to create the new Historic 
District.   
 
Chairman Graw asked the public if they had any comments or suggestions regarding the zoning 
of the 74/85 intersection.  Hearing none he brought it back before the Planning Commission.   
 
Brian Haren asked if the visual representation of the standards will be provided. 
 
Pete Frisina replied yes and that we don’t want to put them in the ordinance, because the County 
Attorney has advised us not to.  He stated that we have representations and that are well known.  
He said that we have set the standards within there even though we say it’s a one (1) part 
commercial block or a two (2) part commercial block.  He added that the visual representation 
shows people the general look of it.   
 
Arnold Martin asked if there were any policies and or procedures that relate to potential 
developers that want to come forth with a rendering.   
 
Pete Frisina replied that we already review architectural standards because we have them on all 
the highways.  He said that it would follow that same procedure.  He added that when someone 
comes in to develop a piece of property and submits a site plan to us we would then review those 
renderings based on these standards.   He said we did set up something in here that allows them 
if they don’t want to follow the standards to present something and go through a public hearing 
process.  He added that it would come to us, to you, and then the board. He stated that it would 
be called the architectural option.  He said they can go administratively and submit it through the 
site plan option (normal procedure) or they can go the other route.   
 
Dennis Dutton stated that we are just recommending the amendments and not changing the 
zoning of any property.   
 
Chairman Graw asked if there were any questions or comments.   
 
Arnold Martin made a motion to recommend approval of the proposed amendments.  Brian 
Haren seconded the motion.  The motion passed 5-0.   
 
 
 



4.  Consideration of the proposed Color Palette for the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay 
District and Overlay Zone. 

 
Chairman Graw stated that we have a book with specific colors that will be allowed in the 
Historic Overlay District.    
 
Arnold Martin stated that in the original discussions of the palates we had a few renditions of the 
palate based on the copier that was used. He asked if we are using a standard and therefor being 
consistent with what we’re showing people and what they may print off at home. 
 
Pete Frisina replied that the color palate in the book is the only one and the pages were printed 
out on the same copier and then laminated.  He said that this is what we will be using when 
everybody comes in.  He added that the colors being used will be matched up to those in the 
book.   
 
Marcus Pollard stated that he was a new resident of Fayette County and went over his 
background.  He suggested using a color code for the color palate book, because light changes 
color over time.   
 
Chairman Graw stated that we have addressed that particular issue already.  He said that the 
book does not have color codes because they didn’t want to show favor towards a particular 
company (i.e. Sherwin Williams, Glidden, and Benjamin Moore). He added that if anyone wants 
to develop in that area they will have to bring in their particular color and match it up against 
those colors in the book.  He stated that staff will then make that determination on whether or not 
the color they submitted matches those in the book.   
 
Brian Haren stated that we had that very same argument in past meetings; we have come to find 
out that there is no standard industry code number for particular colors. He said hot pink in 
Home Depot’s computer may be 1234 but hot pink in Lowe’s computer may be 6724.  He added 
that we even tried embedding the CMYK values or the RGB values and that doesn’t work either.   
 
Mark Pollard stated that he and his girlfriend see colors differently and asked who would be the 
deciding authority on the colors.   
 
Al Gilbert said if you look at the wood around the television set and desk; if someone were to 
come in and that color was in the book, they would more than likely get approved.  He added 
that we are not trying to get an exact identical match, but we certainly don’t want someone to 
come in with yellow when it’s supposed to be orange.   
 
Mark Pollard said that it just came to mind when he saw the different variations of the blue and 
brown colors. 
 
Chairman Graw stated that the same has been done for the brick palate.  
      
Arnold Martin recommended printing the color palates on acid free paper, because it helps to 
preserve the paper over time.  



 
Brian Haren made a motion to recommend approval of the proposed Color Palette.  John 
Culbreth seconded the motion.  The motion passed 5-0.   
 
5. Consideration of the proposed Brick Palette for the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay 

District and Overlay Zone. 
 
Chairman Graw asked if there were any comments from the public. Hearing none he brought it 
back before the Planning Commission.   
 
Al Gilbert made a motion to recommend approval of the proposed Brick Palette.  Arnold Martin 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed 5-0.   
 



From: Pete Frisina
To: Tameca P. White
Subject: FW: LUP
Date: Wednesday, June 15, 2016 9:57:21 AM

Tameca,

Please add this e-mail to Planning and Zoning - Resolution 2016-06 Starr's Mill Histroic District - Agenda Request
BAckup

Thanks,

Pete Frisina

-----Original Message-----
From: Gene Barber 
Sent: Thursday, May 26, 2016 4:41 PM
To: Pete Frisina
Cc: 
Subject: RE: LUP

Pete,
Thank you for sending this.  Do you think the mapped Land Use Map area of Limited Commercial One on the older
church side could considered to reach further along Hwy 74 toward that side of property and maybe not as deep off
Hwy 74?  There is an extension old dirt road bed that comes from Waterfall Way out to 74 that would still be a
separation from Mill Pond S/D.
Gene

-----Original Message-----
From: Pete Frisina [mailto:pfrisina@fayettecountyga.gov]
Sent: Thursday, May 26, 2016 3:15 PM
To: 'Gene Barber 
Subject: LUP

Peter Frisina, AICP
Fayette County Division of Community Services
140 Stonewall Avenue West
Fayetteville, GA  30214
(770) 305-5160

Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum 
Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing

mailto:/O=EXCHANGELABS/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=26AE79193E4B4416B2F46DD37E196071-PETE FRISIN
mailto:twhite@fayettecountyga.gov
mailto:pfrisina@fayettecountyga.gov


COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Type of Request:

Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina

Consideration of Petition No. 1250-16, Ron Zappendorf, Owner, request to rezone 2.45 acres from C-H to M-1 to allow for an auto repair, 
paint and body shop located in Land Lots 200 and 201 of the 5th District and fronts on SR 85 North with one (1) Condition.

Staff recommends approval of rezoning petition 1250-16 with one (1) Condition. 

The Planning Commission recommends approval of rezoning petition 1250-16 with one (1) Condition.   

Al Gilbert made a motion to recommend approval of petition 1250-16 with one (9) Condition.  Brian Haren seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed 5-0.  

Approval of Petition No. 1250-16, Ron Zappendorf, Owner, request to rezone 2.45 acres from C-H to M-1 to allow for an auto repair, paint 
and body shop located in Land Lots 200 and 201 of the 5th District and fronts on SR 85 North with one (1) Condition.

Not applicable. 

Yes

Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Yes

Yes

Thursday, June 23, 2016 Public Hearing #4



 

 

Rezoning 1250-16 

One (1) Conditions 



1. That a variance for the existing building’s encroachment into 

the side yard setback and front yard setback be obtained from 

the Zoning Board of Appeals within 180 days from the 

effective date of this rezoning. If the variance is denied, the 

owner/developer agrees to take all necessary action 

consistent with the direction of the Zoning Board of Appeals.  

If the owner/developer fails to take action to obtain a 

decision from the Zoning Board of Appeals within 180 days 

and that time period has expired, the property owner agrees 

to remove that portion of the existing building encroaching 

into the side yard setback and front yard setback within 30 

days from the date of the expiration.   (This condition is 

required for compliance with the Zoning Ordinance, Section 

110-170.)  

 







4. Consideration of Petition No. 1250-16, Ron Zappendorf, Owner, request to rezone 
2.45 acres from C-H to M-1  to allow an auto repair, paint and body shop.  This 
property is located in Land Lots 200 and 201 of the 5th District and fronts on SR 85 
North. 

 
Ron Zappendorf stated that he owns the proper located at 1591 Highway 85 North which is the 
property just south of Dixie Land on the same side of the road.  He asked for consideration to 
change his zoning from C-H to M-1 to incorporate auto repair and auto body into my facility.  H 
said that his property is an island of C-H surrounded by M-1 on all corners.  He added that he has 
owned the property for approximately 10 years, and has a business in there now that has been 
there for the past three (3) in half years.    
 
Chairman Graw asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the petition.  Hearing none he 
asked if anyone would like to speak in opposition of the petition.  Hearing none he brought it 
back before the Planning Commission. 
 
Arnold Martin asked about the condition for the petition. 
 
Pete Frisina referred the Planning Commission to the report Section E “Concept Plan”.  He read 
Section 110-170. of the Zoning Ordinance and it states: 

 
A property that is improved with a legally existing structure, which would become 
nonconforming in terms of the setbacks only within the zoning district for which a rezoning 
is being sought, may be considered for rezoning, except as otherwise provided in Article 
VI. O-I. and Article VII. Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone. Upon approval of the 
rezoning request, a variance authorized by the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be necessary 
for the structure to remain within the setback (see Article IX.) Any enlargement, expansion, 
or extension of said structure which serves to increase nonconformance, either vertical 
and/or horizontal, shall only be made with the authorization of the Zoning Board of 
Appeals.  Any new structure shall comply with the dimensional minimum requirements 
herein. 

 
Pete Frisina stated that we determined the side would go from 15’ to 25’ and the front has a 100’ 
setback on it.  He said that the building is within the front setback of 100’ and the side setback of 
25’.  He added that Ron has 180 days to go before the Zoning Board of Appeals to seek a 
variance for those two (2) encroachments.   
 
Chairman Graw stated that he would read the condition, and have Mr. Zappendorf come up and 
say yes or no to the condition.   
 

1. That a variance for the existing building’s encroachment into the side yard setback 
and front yard setback be obtained from the Zoning Board of Appeals within 180 
days from the effective date of this rezoning. If the variance is denied, the 
owner/developer agrees to take all necessary action consistent with the direction 
of the Zoning Board of Appeals.  If the owner/developer fails to take action to 
obtain a decision from the Zoning Board of Appeals within 180 days and that time 
period has expired, the property owner agrees to remove that portion of the 
existing building encroaching into the side yard setback and front yard setback 
within 30 days from the date of the expiration.   (This condition is required for 
compliance with the Zoning Ordinance, Section 110-170.)  



 
Chairman Graw asked Ron Zappendorf if he agreed to the condition. 
 
Ron Zappendorf replied yes.  
 
Arnold Martin asked Ron Zappendorf what happens to the disposal of the paint for 
environmental purposes.   
 
Ron Zappendorf replied that everything will be OSHA certified and approved.  He 
stated that it is pretty difficult now to purchase wholesale paint items without the 
proper use of storage facilities and the walkthroughs done by the Fire Department.  He 
said the Fire Department checks all cabinets to make sure they are all closed with all 
items stored in containers.  He added that they have always been in compliance and 
have never had an issue.  He stated that they plan on using a waterfall down draft 
booth which is one (1) of the most efficient ways and all impurities are taken into 
water and are filter out and then it is tanker off site.  He said that this was the facility 
that had issues with the septic tank not being located in the correct area and we have 
followed that to the “t” with a total bill of $25,000.  He added that what it takes to do 
it correctly the first time we are prepared to do.   
Chairman Graw asked if there were any other questions.  Hearing none, he asked if 
anyone had a motion.   
 
Al Gilbert stated that he would make a comment then a motion.  He said that M-1 is not unusual 
up S.R. 85 North.  He added that the property on the opposite side of the road from Mr. 
Zappendorf  just north of the pavilion up to Robert’s Road is M-1 or M-2.  He reiterated that type 
of zoning is not unusual up S.R. 85 North.    
 
Al Gilbert made a motion to recommend approval of Petition 1250-16 with one (1) condition. 
Brian Haren seconded the motion.  The motion passed 5-0.  
 
 



 PETITION NO:  1250-16   
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:   C-H to M-1  
   
PROPOSED USE:  Auto Repair, Paint, Body Shop     
 
EXISTING USE:  Auto Sales     
 
LOCATION:  SR 85 North     
 
DISTRICT/LAND LOT(S):  5th District, Land Lot(s) 200 + 201    
 
OWNER:  Ron Zappendorf     
 
PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING:  June 2, 2016 
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:  June 23, 2016 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 APPLICANT'S INTENT 
 
Applicant proposes to establish an auto repair, paint, and body shop on 2.45 acres. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

APPROVAL WITH ONE (1) CONDITION 
 
 
 
 
                                                                    1.                                                       1250-16 



 INVESTIGATION 
 
A. PROPERTY SITE 
 

The subject property is a 2.45 acre tract fronting on SR 85 North in Land Lot(s) 200 + 
201  of the 5th District. SR 85 North is classified as a Major Arterial road on the Fayette 
County Thoroughfare Plan.  The subject property is currently zoned C-H. 

 
History:  On October 25, 2001 the BOC considered Petition 1085-01 requesting a 
rezoning from C-H to M-1 for the Subject Property.  A motion to approve the petition 
was made and seconded but failed by a vote of 1-3.  The BOC had concerns with 
pollution going into Morning Creek.    

 
B. SURROUNDING ZONING AND USES 
 

The general situation is a 2.45 acre tract that is zoned C-H.  In the vicinity of the subject 
property is land which is zoned M-1.  See the following table and also the attached 
Zoning Location Map. 

 
The subject property is bound by the following adjacent zoning districts and uses: 
 

 
Direction 

 
Acreage 

 
Zoning  

 
Use 

 
Comprehensive Plan 

 
North & East 

 
62.4 

 
M-1 

 
Dixie Land Fun Park 
(Floodplain area) 

 
Conservation Areas 

 
South 

 
1.7 
2.9 

 
M-1 
M-1 

 
Auto Sales/Repairs 
Lawn Mower 
Sales/Repairs 

 
Light Industrial 

 
West (across 
SR 85) 

 
3.5 

 
M-1 

 
Auto Repairs 
 

 
Commercial 

 
C. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 

The subject property lies within an area designated for Industrial & Conservation Areas.  
This request conforms to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan. 

 
D. ZONING/REGULATORY REVIEW 
 

The applicant seeks to rezone C-H from to M-1 for the purpose of developing an auto 
repair, paint, and body shop.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                                    2.                                                       1250-16 



State Route Overlay 
 

Due to the frontage on State Route 85 any further development of the property is subject 
to the requirements of the State Route 85 Overlay Zone.  The Overlay Zone requirements 
are in addition to the zoning district requirements and any Conditional Use requirements, 
and in cases where there is a conflict between requirements, the most restrictive 
regulation applies.  Overlay Zone requirements including, but not limited to, the 
following: a 100 foot setback from the right-of-way of SR 85 , a 50 foot setback for 
impervious surfaces from right-of-way of SR 85, and architectural standards for buildings 
which require a residential character including a pitched peaked roof, a residential façade, 
and doors and windows of a residential character. 
 
Access 
 
The Concept Plan submitted indicates one (1) access from SR 85 North. 
  
E. REVIEW OF CONCEPT PLAN 
 
The Concept Plan indicates that the existing building is approximately 17 feet from the 
side property line and will not meet the 25 foot side yard setback for M-1 and the existing 
building is less than 100 feet from the front property line and will not meet the 100 foot 
front yard setback. 
 
Section 110-170. of the Zoning Ordinance states: 
 

A property that is improved with a legally existing structure, which would 
become nonconforming in terms of the setbacks only within the zoning district for 
which a rezoning is being sought, may be considered for rezoning, except as 
otherwise provided in Article VI. O-I. and Article VII. Transportation Corridor 
Overlay Zone. Upon approval of the rezoning request, a variance authorized by 
the Zoning Board of Appeals shall be necessary for the structure to remain within 
the setback (see Article IX.) Any enlargement, expansion, or extension of said 
structure which serves to increase nonconformance, either vertical and/or 
horizontal, shall only be made with the authorization of the Zoning Board of 
Appeals.  Any new structure shall comply with the dimensional minimum 
requirements herein. 

 
Staff is recommending a condition that a variance for the existing building’s 
encroachment into the side yard setback and front yard setback be authorized by the 
Zoning Board of Appeals within 180 days from the effective date of this rezoning, if 
approved.  If the variance is denied, the owner/developer agrees to take all necessary 
action consistent with the direction of the Zoning Board of Appeals. If the 
owner/developer fails to take action to obtain a decision from the Zoning Board of 
Appeals within 180 days and that time period has expired, the property owner agrees to 
remove that portion of the existing building encroaching into the side yard setback and 
front yard setback within 30 days from the date of the expiration.    
 
 
 

                                                                    3.                                                       1250-16 



F. DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS 
 

Water System 
 

1250-15 is approved.  Water available. 
 

Public Works/Engineering 
 

No comments from Engineering.   
 

 Environmental Management 
 

Floodplain - The property DOES contain floodplain per FEMA FIRM panel 
13113C0106E dated Sept 26, 2008.  Per Fayette County Floodplain Management 
Ordinance Sec. 104-86 any stream with a drainage area less than 100 acres, the 
area of special flood hazard shall be determined.  The area of special flood hazard 
areas shall be determined for all manmade hazards.  The elevation of the lowest 
floor, including basement and building access of any development shall be a least 
3 feet above the base flood elevation for any lots that contain or are adjacent to a 
special flood hazard area.   
 
Wetlands The property DOES contain wetlands per the U.S. Department of 
the Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service 1994 National Wetland Inventory Map. Per 
Section 8-4 of Fayette County Development Regulations, the applicant must 
obtain all required permits from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers prior to 
issuance of any permits from Fayette County for any phase of development 
affecting wetlands. 
 
Watershed If replatted, Watershed DOES apply.   
 
Groundwater - The property IS NOT within a groundwater recharge area. 
 
Stormwater - This development is subject to the Post-Development Stormwater 
Management is any additional pervious area is permitted. 
 
Environmental Health Department 

 
Our department inspected and approved a new septic system to serve the property 
located at 1591 Hwy 85N on 2/23/16.  The system was installed to solely serve 
the existing structure and proposed business at this address.  As the septic system 
is currently functional and is considered approved by this department, there are no 
objections to the proposed rezoning at this location. 
 
Fire  

 
The bureau of fire prevention will neither approve nor deny requests that fall 
outside the scope of ISO requirements. 
 
 

                                                                4.                                                       1250-16 



 
Georgia Department of Transportation 

 
I don’t see any issues with the rezoning. 
 

     
 
 
 STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
This request is based on the petitioner's intent to rezone said property from C-H to M-1 
for the purpose of developing auto repair, Paint, and body shop.  Per Section 11-11 of the 
Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Staff makes the following evaluations: 
 
1. The subject property lies within an area designated for Industrial & Conservation 

Areas.  This request conforms to the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan. 
 
2. The proposed rezoning will not adversely affect the existing use or usability of 

adjacent or nearby property. 
 
3. The proposed rezoning will not result in a burdensome use of roads, utilities, or 

schools. 
 
4. Existing conditions and the area's continuing development as a non-residential 

district support this petition. 
 

Based on the foregoing Investigation and Staff Analysis, Staff recommends APPROVAL 
WITH ONE (1) CONDITION.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                    5.                                                       1250-16 
 

 



 RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS 
 
If this petition is approved by the Board of Commissioners, it should be approved M-1 
CONDITIONAL subject to the following enumerated conditions.  Where these 
conditions conflict with the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, these conditions shall 
supersede unless otherwise specifically stipulated by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
1. That a variance for the existing building’s encroachment into the side yard 

setback and front yard setback be obtained from the Zoning Board of Appeals 
within 180 days from the effective date of this rezoning. If the variance is denied, 
the owner/developer agrees to take all necessary action consistent with the 
direction of the Zoning Board of Appeals.  If the owner/developer fails to take 
action to obtain a decision from the Zoning Board of Appeals within 180 days and 
that time period has expired, the property owner agrees to remove that portion of 
the existing building encroaching into the side yard setback and front yard setback 
within 30 days from the date of the expiration.   (This condition is required for 
compliance with the Zoning Ordinance, Section 110-170.)  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                                    6.                                                       1250-16  



NA

C-H

NA C-HNA C-H NANANA NANA NANA

NA

NANA

M-2

NA

M-1

P-U-D M-1

P-U-D

NA
M-1

M-2

NA

NA

NA
NA

NA

M-1

NA

M-1

M-1

A-R

C-H

M-1

M-1

A-R

M-1

M-1

M-1C-H

S-Z

C-H

C-H

C-H

C-H

M-1

C-H

C-H

M-1

C-H

Roberts Road

100 S. Morning Dove Drive  

1250-16
Zoning Map

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

Fayetteville

SR
 85

Fayetteville



HEAVY
INDUSTRIAL

COMMERCIAL

LIGHT
INDUSTRIAL COMMERCIAL

LOW DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL

CONSERVATION
AREAS

LIGHT
INDUSTRIAL

COMMERCIAL

LIGHT
INDUSTRIAL

Roberts Road

100 S. Morning Dove Drive  

1250-16
Land Use Plan Map

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

Fayetteville

SR
 85

Fayetteville



Roberts Road

100 S. Morning Dove Drive  

1250-16
Aerial Map

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

Fayetteville

SR
 85

Fayetteville



R-40NANANA R-40R-40R-40R-40 R-40R-40R-40
R-40R-40

R-40
R-40

R-40R-40
R-40

R-40R-40R-40
R-40A-R R-40

R-40R-40R-40NA R-40 R-40
R-40R-40

R-40
R-40R-40

R-40
NA C-H

R-40
R-40

R-40
R-40R-40R-40

R-40R-40
R-40R-40C-H

R-40
NA

R-40
NA R-40

R-40

R-40

NA
NA NA R-40

R-40 R-40R-40 R-40
R-40

R-40
R-40

R-40

R-40R-40
R-40

R-40
R-40R-40 R-40

R-40
NA

NA
NA

NA R-40
R-40

R-40
R-40

R-40
R-40
R-40NA R-40

R-40

R-40
R-40

R-40R-40
R-40

R-40

A-R

R-40R-40
R-40NA

R-40

R-40A-R

R-40
NA R-40

R-40NA

R-40
R-40

R-40
R-40NA

R-40R-40C-H

NA
NA

NA

NA

S-Z

NA
C-H

NA C-H NA
NA

NA
NANA

NA

S-Z

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA NA

NA
NA

NANA

R-40
R-40

NA C-HNANA
C-HNA

R-40

C-HNA

NA
NA

NA
NANA NA

NA
R-40

R-40
R-40

R-40
R-40NA

R-40NA R-40
R-40

R-40
M-2

R-40
R-40 R-40

NA

R-40 R-40M-2 R-40
R-40

R-40
R-40

M-1

R-20

P-U-D

A-R

M-1

P-U-D

R-40
R-40

R-40M-2

R-40
R-40

R-40
R-40

R-40
NA

R-40M-1M-2 M-2
M-2

M-2M-2

NA

NA
R-40

NA

A-R

NA R-40
R-40

R-40
R-40

R-40
R-40

R-40
R-40

R-40

M-1

NA

R-40 R-40
R-40

R-40

M-1

M-1
A-R

C-H

R-20 R-40

R-40

A-R
A-R

S-Z
R-20
R-20 A-R

A-R
A-R

R-20
R-20

A-R

R-20
R-20 A-R

M-1

M-1

A-R
R-40

A-R
M-1

A-RC-HC-H

M-1

M-1

A-R

C-H

S-Z

C-H

M-1

C-H A-R
M-1M-1

C-H

C-H

C-H

C-H
M-1

M-1
M-1

M-1 M-1

NA
NA

S-Z

C-H

M-1
M-1

C-H

M-1 M-1A-R
M-1 M-1

A-R A-RM-1R-20 C-H

M-1

M-1
R-20

R-20 A-RM-1M-1

C-H

C-CM-1 O-I
C-HM-1 C-H A-R A-RR-20 M-1 R-72

C-HM-1
M-1

R-20 A-R
A-R

R-72
R-20 O-IO-IM-1 M-1

M-1M-1
C-H

C-H
C-HM-1

R-20

R-20 M-1

A-R

M-1M-1R-20
M-1
M-1 A-R

A-RA-R

M-1R-40 R-20 A-R R-20R-20
R-20

R-40

A-R

A-R

A-R
A-R

A-R

A-R

C-HM-1

C-H
C-H

M-1M-1M-1 C-HM-1M-1
M-1M-1 M-1

M-1 M-1
M-1

M-1 M-1M-1 M-1
M-1

R-72

R-72

M-1

M-1S-Z O-IA-RM-1R-72 A-R R-20 R-20

M-1R-20
A-RM-1M-1

M-1M-1
A-R

R-20 R-20
R-20R-20
R-20

M-1 A-R

O-I

R-20 M-1R-20 A-R

C-H

R-72
R-20

R-20
R-20

R-20R-20
R-20

R-20R-20C-HR-72 A-RM-1 C-HA-R
M-1

R-40 M-1M-1
R-20 R-20R-20R-20R-20

S-Z

A-R
A-R C-H

M-1

M-1

M-1
M-1

M-1M-1
M-1 M-1
M-1

M-1

M-1

R-20
R-20

R-20
R-20

R-20

R-40
R-40
R-40

R-40

R-40
R-72
R-72

R-20 A-R

Roberts Road

100 S. Morning Dove Drive  

1250-16
Zoning Proximity Map

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

Fayetteville

SR
 85

Fayetteville



Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum StaffingH
o
l
i
d
a
y 
M
i
n
i
m
u
m 
S
t
a
f
f
i
n
g

H
ol
id
a
y 
M
in
i
m
u
m 
S
t
a
ffi
n
g



















COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Type of Request:

Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina

Consideration of Petition No. 1256-16. Claudine B. Morris, Christine B. Thornton, & Betty S. Shubert, Owners and Randy Boyd, Agent 
request to rezone 100.967 acres from A-R to R-50 to develop a single-family residential subdivision with 68 lots located in Land Lots 104 
of the 7th District and fronts on Dogwood Trail.

Staff recommends approval of rezoning petition 1256-16. 

Planning Commission recommends denial of rezoning petition 1256-16. 

Chairman Graw made a motion to recommend denial of rezoning petition 1256-16.   John Culbreth seconded the motion. 

The motion passed 5-0.

Staff recommends approval of rezoning petition 1256-16. 

Planning Commission recommends denial of rezoning petition 1256-16.

Not applicable. 

Yes

Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Yes

Yes

Thursday, June 23, 2016 Public Hearing #5







5. Consideration of Petition No. 1256-16. Claudine B. Morris, Christine B. Thornton, 
& Betty S. Shubert, Owners and Randy Boyd, Agent request to rezone 100.967acres 
from A-R to R-50 to develop a single-family residential subdivision with 68 lots. 
This property is located in Land Lots 104 of the 7th District and fronts on Dogwood 
Trail. 

 
Randy Boyd stated that he would be presenting this petition on behalf of Claudine Morris and 
Christine Thornton who owned the 50 acres to the east on the site plan and Betty Shubert who 
owned the 50 acres to the west on the site plan.  He said that there are two (2) owners on this 
property which is currently zoned A-R and their request is R-50.  He added that this property 
back on May 7th last year went to the Phase one (1) of Annexation for Peachtree City.  He stated 
that the annexation with Peachtree City is a two (2) phase process.  He said that you submit a 
generalization to the Peachtree City Council, they look at it, and if they’re interested they will 
recommend it for phase two (2).  He added that a local developer had proposed 99 lots on this 
same piece of property of 100 acres; he was denied the Phase one (1) approval.  He stated that 
the south line of this property abuts the corporate limits of Peachtree City; to the north of the 
property about a half a land lot away (1500 sq. ft.) is Tyrone; to the west about 1500 sq. ft. or 
half a land lot away is Crabapple Lane.  He said that the property was sandwiched in between 
Peachtree City and the Town of Tyrone.  He proposed 68 lots for the 100 acres.  He stated that 
R-50 has a minimum house size of 2,100 square feet.  He asked that they considerate it and 
thinks it is appropriate for the area.  He stated that he read the minutes from the Peachtree City 
Council, and a lot of the residents from the Kedron Hills property which is zoned R-22; with a 
minimum lot area of 22,000 sq. ft. had a lot of concerns about the 99 lots on this property’s 100 
acres.  He said that we of course are one (1) acre minimum with the 68 lots; Kedron Hills would 
like to see a more step down zoning with larger lots further north.  He added that it was still 
turned down by Peachtree City Council, but believes that their concerns were satisfied.  He asked 
they approve it as submitted. 
 
Chairman Graw asked if there was anyone that would like to speak in favor of the Petition.  
Hearing none he asked if there were anyone here who would like to speak in opposition of the 
Petition.   
 
Scott Beamer President of the Kedron Hills HOA stated that he represents 200 homes in the 
subdivision.  He stated that the Kedron Hills HOA joined the Kedron Estates HOA which has 65 
homes give or take.  He said that predominately all of his neighbor’s sentiments toward the 
rezoning are negative.  He added that this has already come before Peachtree City and did not get 
any traction.  He stated that the land use is A-R and everything that surrounds it is A-R.  He said 
the developer is just trying to go around the annexation process to get the property rezoned.  He 
added that he has had this fight with Peachtree City and doesn’t understand why we are changing 
the land use plan from what it is A-R to R-50.  He stated that 2,200 square feet doesn’t even 
approximate what is built in Kedron Hills, and he hasn’t seen a house sale for less than a half 
million dollars in Kedron Hills in last few months.  He said if they are going to build 2,200 sq. ft. 
homes they will be completely dissimilar to what’s directly south of them in Peachtree City.  He 
added if they wanted to build bigger homes and increase the value of the homes that may have 
bearing on the argument.  He stated that this project has no positive impact on Kedron Hills and 
Estates.  He said if you look at the plat the north boundary is Dogwood Trail; the west boundary 



is Crabapple Lane; according to your traffic study there will be 650 (guess) additional car 
movements a day, and a large portion will come down Dogwood Trail and turn left on Crabapple 
Road and come through my subdivision and exit onto the parkway.  He added that we get more 
traffic, we get more congestion, and we get no positive out of it.  He stated that neighbors are 
concerned about what this might do to the school’s rezoning situation.  He said that they fought 
that battle long ago and now their students go to Crabapple, Booth, and Macintosh.  He added 
that by building this neighborhood will the County come back and look at the school rezoning.  
He stated that the people along Loring Lane and Astoria Lane are concerned because the project 
is going to come right down to the north border of Kedron Hills.  He said whether we see it, feel 
the impact, or how that’s going to work out; is it 2000 feet, is 1500 feet; is it woods between us 
and them; what exactly is this thing going to look like once its completed;  those are the concerns 
that people have.  He added that he has not received any positive feedback from any of the 
homeowners he represents.  He ended saying that his community would strongly request that 
they deny.   
 
Chairman Graw asked if anyone else would like to speak in opposition. 
 
Tim Going stated that he lives south of the proposed development and supported what Mr. 
Beamer said about the symmetry of the development being out of place with the neighboring 
homes.  He said that his major concern was that this development was going to be on septic.  He 
stated that normally those conditions work just fine, but we’re on a downward slope from the 
development and if there should be some sort of accident we will be unable to mitigate the 
affluent that comes on to the land.  He said it would be without barrier and would come into all 
of their yards.  He added that even though these systems are much better design than they were 
in the past there are failures; didn’t see anything in the zoning development that would mitigate 
these hazards.   
 
Chairman Graw asked if anyone else would like to speak in opposition.  Hearing none, he 
brought it back before the Planning Commission. 
 
Al Gilbert interjected saying that Mr. Boyd gets to rebut.   
 
Chairman Graw apologized. 
 
Randy Boyd stated that the first gentleman that spoke on behalf of Kedron Hills he agreed with 
him that the houses along the south line are about a half a million dollars.  He said that the 
gentleman mentioned that the 2,200 sq. ft. in our proposed zoning would not be sufficient to 
match what they have there; he reminded him that the R-22 zoning of Peachtree City that 
minimum is 1600 sq. ft.; so he thinks the standard has been set in Kedron Hills.  He added the 
Planning Commission does not need to look at the price of the land but under the price of the 
land now and development cost these lots are probably going to sell for at least $100,000; if you 
use a builders rule of thumb that product is going to end up being $500,000 because the land is 
20 percent of the cost of the product.  He stated that is not a concern for them because our 
standard is 2,100 sq. ft. and Kedron Hill’s under their present zoning is 1,600 sq. ft.; he believes 
no one is going to attempt to build that instead they will build larger houses with a nicer product.  
He mentioned the gentleman had an issue with the land use plan but did not understand what that 



was all about because the property is zoned A-R now, but it does fit the land use plan for that 
area, the land use plan suggest lots to be one (1) to two (2) acres.  He said that we have 68 lots on 
100 acres so, we are well within that realm of what the land use plan calls for.  He added that this 
school system would go to the Sandy Creek Jenkins Road school system; this would not go into 
the Peachtree City or the Macintosh area school system.  He stated that we have four lots backing 
up to that subdivision on about 1.5 acres and there is about eight (8) or 10 lots backing up 
because of their R-22 zoning which the minimum lot area is 22,000 sq. ft. and 1,600 sq. ft. 
house.  He said that the lots within there are 7/10th’s of an acre or about an acre; no, all those lots 
in there are not half an acre, but a lot of them are and the net density for that zoning is two (2) 
lots per acre.  He added that we have less than that we are not even getting one (1) lot per acre. 
He stated that to say it doesn’t fit the area is hard to believe; you can take a piece of property that 
is zoned two (2) lots per acre and then we are going to do a one (1) lot per acre which is basically 
a step down zoning; how can that be bad for the area.  He said that he has been an Engineer / 
Surveyor in the County for over 35 years and wasn’t aware of any major or massive septic tank 
failures on a number of lots; now, occasionally you will get one that fails, and even that is rare 
because we do soils analysis on the piece of property and any of the bad areas will be avoided.  
He added at this juncture we have not done soils analysis on this property so this lot number 
could get smaller.  He stated that a soils analysis level three (3) would be done and then the 
design would fit that with acceptable soils for the septic tank and drainage field on each lot.  He 
reiterated that he had never seen a mass septic tank failure; there may be an individual lot septic 
tank failure, but with the guidelines in place now that has become rarer.  He added that he has 
addressed all of the resident’s concerns and asked if the Planning Commission had any 
questions.    
 
Chairman Graw brought it back before the Planning Commission. 
 
Arnold Martin asked Randy Boyd his thoughts toward the traffic and would people be using this 
subdivision as a cut-through.  He added that there are a lot of children in the subdivision; it is a 
question for any community when there is an increase in traffic count.  He asked what Randy 
Boyd felt about the impact of the traffic. 
 
Randy Boyd replied that he couldn’t predict what someone would do, but he finds it hard to 
believe that someone is going to come out of their subdivision go 1500 ft. to the west; cut 
through an unimproved gravel road that ties into a subdivision and twist up and down that 
subdivision.    He said if he was going to Peachtree City and lived in the subdivision he would go 
west on Dogwood, past Farr Road, past   Crabapple, and hit Highway 74, turn left and go down 
toward Peachtree City. He added that if he was going to the expressway he would use that same 
route and turn to the right and go Highway 74 to Interstate 85.  He stated that if he was going to 
the City of Fayetteville he would go east on Dogwood until it hits Tyrone Road, Highway 54 and 
then turn left into Fayetteville.  He said that he is a civil engineer not a traffic engineer and 
couldn’t see why a person would do that unless they were going to go and visit someone in that 
subdivision.  He reiterated that he found it hard to believe someone would drive through that 
maze of a subdivision and because the initial road they’re getting on is gravel.  He said the road 
isn’t wide and not really a great road.   
 
Chairman Graw asked if there was anyone else with a comment.  



 
Chairman Graw stated that the zoning proximity map which includes Peachtree City that has 
zoning of R-22 which is a minimum of half acre lots (22,000 sq. ft.) and the Town of Tyrone has 
one (1) acre minimum lots.  He said that he doesn’t look at surrounding municipalities and what 
there zoning is and try to make some type of comparison on what “we” the County should be 
doing for our zoning.  He added that if you look at the zoning proximity map there are some 
spattering’s of R-70 in this area; way north there is some R-40 but there is quite a bit of R-70.  
He stated that it looks like when petitioners have come in in the past they asked for R-70 zoning 
which is a minimum two (2) acres and they received their R-70.  He said that it looks like some 
Commissions in the past are looking to set a precedent of R-70 in this area.  He added that he 
personally has a problem with one (1) acre zoning in this area; doesn’t think it’s compatible with 
the area; it’s A-R minimum five (5) acre lots; doesn’t think we would be doing the residents of 
the area who have purchased property in that area thinking they were going to have some 
compatible zoning.  He stated that A-R is not going to always be; there will always be someone 
coming in asking for a rezoning; the residents that bought are expecting something similar to 
what they have.  He said is it going to always be A-R no; will it be one (1) acre, I personally 
don’t feel it should be, that’s my position.           
 
Chairman Graw asked if there was anyone else with a comment. 
 
Brian Haren said that he thought Chairman Graw did a good job of summing up his feelings. 
 
Al Gilbert stated that when people come up and say it’s got A-R around it; you need to 
understand why it’s got A-R around it.  He said back in 1970 when the County first decided to do 
a land use map and zoning anything that didn’t have a subdivision or a business on it was put in 
A-R, it was a holding pattern.  He added that if we would have said 30 years ago when he first 
join the Planning Commission it had A-R around it; there would have never been any 
development around this County up to this day because everything was basically A-R.   He 
stated that you will hear people use this on occasion; elected officials may use it on occasion; but 
you need to understand is it truly A-R, or is it A-R because it’s in a holding pattern from back in 
the early days of zoning.       
 
Chairman Graw stated that he failed to mention if this property were to be zoned one (1) acre it 
sets a precedent.  He said this means that any developer can come in and asked for one (1) acre 
rezoning, and have a really good bench mark to make their argument.  He added that is another 
reason why he doesn’t feel one (1) acre is compatible.  He reiterated that it could establish a 
precedent and not a good precedent.   
 
Al Gilbert stated that we are starting to head in a direction that is starting to bother him.  He said 
that they have always recognized property land use one (1) to two (2) acres, and that one (1) acre 
zoning is acceptable.  He added that last month we decided that it wasn’t and this month we are 
sounding the same.  He stated that we are heading in a pattern where we can just say everything 
in the County from now on will have to be two (2) acres or greater.   
 
Chairman Graw asked is there anyone else.  
 



Chairman Graw made a motion to recommend denial of Petition 1256-16. John Culbreth 
seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0.  
 
 



 PETITION NO:  1256-16   
 
 
REQUESTED ACTION:   A-R to R-50  
   
PROPOSED USE:  Single-Family Residential Subdivision     
 
EXISTING USE:  Agricultural Residential     
 
LOCATION:  Dogwood Trail     
 
DISTRICT/LAND LOT(S):  7th District, Land Lot(s) 104    
 
OWNER:  Claudine B. Morris , Christine B. Thorton & Betty S. Shubert     
 
AGENT:  Randy Boyd   
 
PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING:  June 2, 2016     
 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:  June 23, 2016     
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 APPLICANT'S INTENT 
 
Applicant proposes to develop a Single-Family Residential Subdivision consisting of 68 lots on 
100.967 acres. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 

APPROVAL 
 
                                                                    1.                                                              1256-16 



 INVESTIGATION 
 
 
A. PROPERTY SITE 
 

The subject property is a 100.967 acre tract fronting on Dogwood Trail in Land Lot(s) 
104  of the 7th District. Dogwood Trail is classified as a Collector road on the Fayette 
County Thoroughfare Plan.  The subject property contains a single-family residence and 
is currently zoned A-R. 

 
B. SURROUNDING ZONING AND USES 
 

The general situation is a 100.967 acres tract that is zoned A-R.  In the vicinity of the 
subject property is land which is zoned A-R & R-22 (PTC).  See the following table and 
also the attached Zoning Location Map. 

 
The subject property is bound by the following adjacent zoning districts and uses: 
 

 
Direction 

 
Acreage 

 
Zoning  

 
Use 

 
Comprehensive Plan 

 
North (across 
Dogwood 
Trail) 

 
11.8 
6.0 
11.0 

 
A-R 
A-R 
A-R 

 
Single-Family Residential 
Single-Family Residential 
Undeveloped 

 
Low Density Residential (1Unit/1 
to 2 Acres) 
 

 
South (in 
PTC) 

 
Seven lots in 
Kedron Hills 
Subdivision 
(PTC) ranging 
in size from 
.69 to 1.06 
acres  

 
R-22 
(22,000 Sq 
Ft) 

 
Single-Family Residential 
 

 
SFM – Single-family Medium (.25 
to 1.0 acres) (PTC) 

 
East 

 
9.4 
9.0 
15.1 
22.3 
9.44 
1.0 

 
A-R 
A-R 
A-R 
A-R 
A-R 
A-R 

 
Single-Family Residential 
Undeveloped 
Single-Family Residential 
Single-Family Residential 
Single-Family Residential 
Undeveloped 

 
Low Density Residential (1Unit/1 
to 2 Acres) 
 

 
West 

 
44.4 

 
A-R 

 
Single-Family Residential 

 
Low Density Residential (1Unit/1 
to 2 Acres) 

 
C. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 

The subject property lies within an area designated for Low Density Residential (1 Unit/ 
1 to 2 Acres) and Conservation Areas.  This request conforms to the Fayette County 
Comprehensive Plan. 

                                                                    2.                                                              1256-16 



D. ZONING/REGULATORY REVIEW 
 

The applicant seeks to rezone A-R from to R-50 for the purpose of developing a Single-
Family Residential Subdivision.  

 
Platting 

 
Should this request be approved, the applicant is reminded that before any lots can be 
sold or building permits issued for the proposed subdivision, the subject property must be 
platted per the Fayette County Subdivision Regulations, as applicable. 

 
Access 
 
The Concept Plan submitted indicates one (1) access from Dogwood Trail. 
  

E. TRAFFIC AND TRIP GENERATION 
 
Per the Institute of Transportation Engineers’  "Trip Generation, 8th edition", the average 
trip generation of a single family residential unit is 9.57 trips in a 24 hour weekday, 0.75 
trips between 7:00am and 9:00am, and 1.01 trips between 4:00pm and 6:00pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The latest Georgia Department of Transportation Annual Average Daily Traffic estimate 
for Dogwood Trail at a point near Tyrone Road is 2,950 vehicles.   

 
F. REVIEW OF CONCEPT PLAN 

 
The applicant is advised that the Concept Plan is for illustration purposes only.  Any 
deficiencies must be addressed at the time of submittal of the Preliminary Plat, Final Plat, 
and/or Site Plan, as applicable. 
 
Deficiencies include, but are not limited to: 
 

Side yard setbacks on lots 7, 12, 24, 42, 43, 44, and 65 are shown with 30 foot 
setbacks.  Side yard setbacks in the R-50 zoning district require a 20 foot setback. 
 

                                                                    3.                                                              1256-16 
 

Rezoning Petition   1256-16 
 

ITE Trip Generation 8th edition 
    

  Weekday 
7:00 am –
9:00am 

4:00pm – 
6:00pm 

68 Dwelling 
Units  650 trips 51trips 68 trips  



G. DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS 
 

Water System 
 

Water Available. 8” Main on Dogwood Trail. 
 
Public Works/Engineering 
 
1.    If left as A-R, the parcel could be divided into 14 lots using existing road 

frontage.  Under the proposed rezoning to R-50, the amount of traffic would 
be more than four times as great but the number of curb cuts onto Dogwood 
reduced from 14 to 1. 

2.    A deceleration lane will be required at the entrance and probably some type 
of left turn lane (either full lane or turn lane with right hand passing option). 

3.    No ROW dedication is required (Dogwood is Collector with existing 80’ 
shown on survey). 

4.    Any new road shall meet minimum offset distances, which does not seem to 
be a factor for this parcel. 

 
 Environmental Management 
 

Floodplain The property DOES contain Zone A floodplain, per FEMA FIRM 
panel 13113C0079E dated Sept 26, 2008, and additional floodplain 
delineated in the Fayette County 2013 Future Conditions Flood 
Study. This development is subject to the Floodplain Management 
Ordinance. 

Wetlands The property MAY contain wetlands and a wetland determination 
will be required as part of the development submittals.  Per Section 
8-4 of Fayette County Development Regulations, the applicant 
must obtain all required permits from the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers prior to issuance of any permits from Fayette County for 
any phase of development affecting wetlands. 

Watershed This property IS subject to the Watershed Protection ordinance.  
Any state waters identified on site are subject to a 50 ft. watershed 
buffer measured from wrested vegetation and a 25 ft. setback as 
measured from the buffer.   

Groundwater The property IS within a groundwater recharge area. 

Stormwater  This development IS subject to the Post-Development Stormwater 
Management Ordinance.   

 
Environmental Health Department 

 
No Objections 

                                                                    4.                                                              1256-16 



Fire  
 
Must provide fire hydrants 600 ft. apart. 

 
 
 STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
This request is based on the petitioner's intent to rezone said property from A-R to R-50 
for the purpose of developing Single-Family Residential Subdivision.  Per Section 110-
300 of the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance, Staff makes the following evaluations: 
 
1. The subject property lies within an area designated for Low Density Residential 

(1 Unit/ 1 to 2 Acres) and Conservation Areas.  This request conforms to the 
Fayette County Comprehensive Plan. 

 
2. The proposed rezoning will not adversely affect the existing use or usability of 

adjacent or nearby property. 
 
3. The proposed rezoning will not result in a burdensome use of roads, utilities, or 

schools. 
 
4. Existing conditions and the area's continuing development as a single-family 

residential district support this petition. 
 
Based on the foregoing Investigation and Staff Analysis, Staff recommends 
APPROVAL.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                                    5.                                                              1256-16 



NANA NANANANANA NA
NA

NA

NA NANA NANANA NANA NA
NANANA NANA NA NA

NANA
NA

NA
NANANA

NA
NA

NA
NA

NA

NA
NANANANA NA

NANA
NA NA NA

NANA

NA
NA NA NANA NANANA

NANA NANA
NANA NANA NANA NA

NANA NA NANA

NA

NA
NA NA

NA

NA
NA

NA NA NA
NA NA

NANA NA NA NA
NANA NA NA NA NANA NANANANA NA

NA
NA NA NANANANANA

NA NA
NANA NA NA NANANA NA

NA

NA
NA

NANA
NANA

NA
NA

NA

NANANANANANANANANANANANANANANANANANANA
A-R

NA
NA

A-RA-R

A-RA-R

A-R

NANA

NA

A-R
NA

A-R
A-R

A-R

NA

NA NA

A-R

A-R

A-RA-R

NA
NA

NA
NA

A-R

A-R

NA

A-R

A-R

A-R

A-R

A-R

A-R

A-R

A-R

A-R

A-RA-R

NA
NA

NA

A-R

A-R
R-70

A-R
R-70

A-R
NA

NA

NANA
NA

A-R

R-70R-70

A-R

NA

A-R

NA NA NA

A-R

NA NA

NA

NA
NANANANA NANANA

NA
NA NA

NA
NA

NA
NA

NA NA
NANANA

A-R

NANA
NA

NA
NA

A-R A-R

NA
NA

NANA
NA NA

NA

NANANA
NA

NA

NA

NA

NA
NA

NA

NA

A-RA-RA-RA-RA-R
A-R

NANA NA NA NA
NA NA

NA

NANANA NANA NA NANANA
NA

NANANA
NANANA NANA

NA

NA NA
NA NA

A-R

A-R
NA A-R

A-R

A-R

NA
NA

Dogwood Trail

Cr
ab

ap
ple

 La
ne100 S. Morning Dove Drive  

1256-16
Zoning Map

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

Peachree City

Fa
rr 

Ro
ad

Peachree City

Tyrone
Ty

ro
ne

Ty
ro

ne



CONSERVATION
AREAS

LOW DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL

LOW DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL

City_Limits

City_Limits

Dogwood Trail

Cr
ab

ap
ple

 La
ne100 S. Morning Dove Drive  

1256-16
Land Use Plan Map

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

Peachree City

Fa
rr 

Ro
ad

Peachree City

Tyrone
Ty

ro
ne

Ty
ro

ne



Dogwood Trail

Cr
ab

ap
ple

 La
ne100 S. Morning Dove Drive  

1256-16
Aerial Map

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

Peachree City

Fa
rr 

Ro
ad

Peachree City

Tyrone
Ty

ro
ne

Ty
ro

ne



R-40

NANA NANA NA NANA NANA NA
NA

NA NANANA NA NA
NA NA

NANANA
NA

NA
NANA

NA
NANA

NANA
R-50NANA NA

NANA NA NA
NA

NANA NANA NA
NA NA NANA NANA

NANA NA R-50NA R-50
A-R

NANA NANA NANA NA NANA NANA

R-40

NANA NA NA R-50NA O-INANA

NA NA NA R-50
R-50

NANA
NA NA NA

R-50NA NANA NANA NANA NANANA R-50 A-RNA

NA

NANA
NA

NA NANA NA
NA NANANA NA NA

NA NANA R-50NANA NANA NA NA NA
NANANA

NA
NA

NA NA NANA NA NA NA NANA NANA

NANA
NA

R-50 R-50

NA

R-50NANANA
NA

NA NA
NA

NA NA
NA NANA NA R-40NA

NA R-40NA R-50
NA R-50

R-50
NANA NA NANANA

NA
NANANA NA

NA R-40NA
NA R-40NANA NANA NANANA NA

NANA NANANA NANA NA NA NA NANA NA
R-50

R-50

NANA R-40 R-40NA
NA

R-40NA R-50R-50R-50NANA NA
R-40R-40NA NANANA

NA NA R-40NANANANA NA
NA R-40NA NA

NA NA
NA

NA

NANA NA R-40R-40
R-40

NA

NA

NA NANANA NA

NA

NANA NA
NA NANA NANA

NA NA
NA

R-40

NA
NA R-40NANANA NANANA NA

NANA

NA R-40
R-40

NA
NA R-40NA NANA NA R-40NA R-40NANANA

NA
R-40NA R-40R-40NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA NA NA R-40 R-40NA R-40NANA NA

NANANA
NA NANANA NA NA NA NA
NA NA

NA
NA

NA
NA

R-40

NANA R-40NA

NA

NA
NA R-40NA R-40

NA

NA

NA NANA R-40 R-40NA NANANANANA
R-40

NA R-40
R-40NA R-40NA

R-40

NANANA NA NANANA NA
NA NA

NANA
NANA

NANA
NANANA NA NANA

NA
NANANA NANA NANA NA

NA

NA
R-40

NANA NA

NA NANANA NA
NA

NA

NA
NA

NANA NA NANA R-40NA R-40NA
R-40 R-40NANANANA

NA

NA

NA NA
NA

NA
NANA NA NA

NANA NA
NA NA NA NA NANANA NANA NANANA NANA NANANA NA

R-40 R-40
R-40

R-40 R-40
NANA R-40

R-40

NA

NA
R-40

NA NA
R-40R-40NANA

NA
R-40

NA

R-40NANA
NANA

NA
NA NANANANA NA NANANA NA NANA NANANA NA

NANA NANA NA NA
NA

NA NA NANANA

NA

NANA NANANA NA

NA

NA NANA
R-40

NA NANANA
NA

NANA
NA

NA
NA

NA
NANANA

NANANANANANA
NA

NA
NA

NA
NA

NANANA
NANA

NA

NA A-RNA
NA

A-RA-R
A-RA-R

A-R

NANA

NA
NA

NA
A-R

A-RNA
A-RA-R

A-R

A-R
A-R

NA
NA NA

A-R

A-R A-R

A-RA-R
A-R

A-RNA NANANA

NANA

A-R

A-R

A-R

NA
NA

NA A-R

R-70
R-70

S-Z

R-70

R-70

A-R

A-R

A-R

A-R

A-R
A-R

A-R
NA

NA

A-R

A-R

A-R

A-R

A-RA-R

A-R

A-R

A-R

A-R

A-R

A-RA-R

NANA

NA
NANA NA

R-70

A-RNA
NA

A-R
A-R R-70A-R R-70

A-R

NA

NA
NA
NA NA

NA
A-R

NA
R-72

NANA R-72

A-R

NA

A-R

NA

A-R

R-70
R-70

A-R

NA

A-R

NA NA

A-R

NANA NA

A-R
NA

NANA
NA

NA
NA NA R-70NANANA

NA
NANANA

NA
NA

NA
NA

NA
NA

NA

NA NA NANANANANA
NA

NA R-70
NANA

NA
A-R A-R

NA R-70
NA

NA A-RNA

A-R A-R
A-R

NA

NA
NA

NANA
NA

NA
NA

NA NANANA NANA
NA

NA
NA

NA A-RNA
NA NA

NA
A-RNA

NA R-70
R-70

A-R

A-R
A-RA-RA-R

A-R
A-R

A-R
A-R

NA

NA

NA
NA NA

NA NANA NA
NA

NA
NA

NA A-R
A-R

NA

NANA NANA NA NA
NA NANA NANA

NA
NA

NA
NA

NANA NA
NA

NANA A-R
NA R-40

R-40NANA
NA

NA
NA

NANA
NA

NA
R-70NA

NA
NA

NA
NA

NA
NA

R-40
NA

A-R
A-R A-R

NA
NANA NANANANA NA

NANA
NA NA

NA NANA NA NANA
NA

NA NA
NANANA NA NANA NANANA

NANA NANA NA
NA

NANA

R-40
R-40

R-40R-40
R-70

NA R-40
NA NA R-40NA

NA
NA NANA

NA
NA

NANA

A-R
NA R-40 R-70NA R-70R-40NA R-40NA

NA R-20NA R-40R-70R-40
NA
NA R-40

R-40R-40R-70NA

NANA NANA
NA

NA NA NANA NANANA NANA NANA NA NANANA NA NANA NA
NANA NANA

NANANA NA

R-70
R-70

R-40
R-70

R-40A-R R-40
R-70

R-40R-20 R-40
R-40
R-40

R-40A-R R-20
R-40R-40

A-R
A-R

NA
NANA NANA

NANA
NA

NANA
NA

NA
NANANA NANA

NA
NA NANANANA NA

NA NA NANA NA R-40
R-40R-40

R-40R-40
R-40R-40

R-40

A-RA-R
NA

NA

NA

R-40

A-R

A-RA-R A-R
NA

NANANA
NANANANA

NA
NANA

NA
NANANA NA

R-40

A-R

R-40

A-R

R-40
R-40

R-40
R-40

R-40R-40A-R

R-70
A-R

A-R NA
NA A-RNANA R-70A-RNA NA

NA

NA
NANA

NANA
R-40

O-I

NA NA

NA
NA

R-40
R-40R-40R-40NANA R-40

R-40
R-40

R-40

NA
NA

NA

NA
NA NA NA

NANA NA

R-40
R-40

R-40

A-R

A-RNA

R-40
R-40

R-40

NA

A-RA-R

A-R

NA NA
NA

NANA
NA

A-R

R-40NA
NA

R-40NANA
NA

NA
NA

NA
NA
NA

NA
NA NANA NA

Dogwood Trail

Cr
ab

ap
ple

 La
ne

100 S. Morning Dove Drive  

1256-16
Zoning Proximity Map

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

Peachree City

Fa
rr 

Ro
ad

Peachree City

Tyrone

Ty
ro

ne
Ty

ro
ne

Ell
iso

n R
oa

d



Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing



Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing

















COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Type of Request:

Fire and Emergency Services David J. Scarbrough, Fire Chief

Approval of the appointment of Peachtree City Battalion Chief Chad Matheny and re-appointment of Peachtree City Assistant Chief Kevin 
Baggett to the Office of Emergency Medical Services Regional 4 Council for a two (2) year term expiring on June 30, 2018.

Fayette County is designated within Region 4 of the Office of Emergency Medical Services (OEMS) regional system. Region 4 is 
comprised of 12 counties located south of Atlanta. Each county has designated seats on the regions professional services council, of 
which Fayette County has 4 seats. This council is tasked with the oversight of the 911 zoning systems and the regional communication 
plan. Appointees to the council meet quarterly to address issues regarding response systems and to disseminate region wide information. 

We were recently notified that Fayette County had been allocated the fourth seat on the council. These council seats are filled from 
appointees recommended by the Fire Chief's of Fayette County Fire & Emergency Services and Peachtree City Fire-Rescue and will 
serve a two-year term. This request is to appoint Peachtree City Battalion Chief Chad Matheny to the newly allocated seat and to re-
appoint Peachtree City Assistant Chief Kevin Baggett to the existing seat. 

Currently representing Fayette County on the regional council are Fayette County Deputy Fire Chief Tom Bartlett and Fayette County 
Division Chief Steve Folden with terms expiring in 2017. 

Approval of the appointment of Peachtree City Battalion Chief Chad Matheny and re-appointment of Peachtree City Assistant Chief Kevin 
Baggett to the Office of Emergency Medical Services Regional 4 Council for a two (2) year term expiring on June 30, 2018.

No

No

Yes

Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable Yes

June 23, 2016 Consent #6



From: Joseph O"Conor
To: David Scarbrough
Subject: RE: EMS Region Council
Date: Friday, May 06, 2016 9:28:01 AM
Attachments: image001.png

I would like to renew Kevin and add Operations Officer Chad Matheny. Please let me know if you
 need bios for each.
 
Joe O’Conor,
Fire Chief
Peachtree City Fire - Rescue
 

From: David Scarbrough [mailto:davids@fayettecountyga.gov] 
Sent: Monday, May 02, 2016 3:01 PM
To: Joseph O'Conor
Subject: EMS Region Council
 
Joe,
I need a confirmation from you to present to our Board of Commissioners for Chief Kevin Baggett to
 continue for another term on the council.
I also need a second person from your organization to be placed on the council. That would mean
 you have 2 positions and we would have two positions.
Let me know as soon as you can. I think we have a deadline in June.
 
David J. Scarbrough, Fire Chief
Fayette County Department of Fire & Emergency Services
davids@fayettecountyga.gov
770.305.5174

 

mailto:joconor@peachtree-city.org
mailto:davids@fayettecountyga.gov
mailto:davids@fayettecountyga.gov

davids
Highlight

davids
Highlight



COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Type of Request:

911 Communications Bernard J. Brown, Director

Approval of staff's recommendation of the maintenance agreement between Fayette County and Motorola for the 800 MHz ASTRO 
Simulcast System and to authorize the Chairman to sign the renewal contract, in the amount of $539,196.47 for the term of July 1, 2016 
through June 30, 2017.

This annual Service Agreement and Contract Renewal provides for the ongoing maintenance of the Fayette County, Georgia 800 MHz 
ASTRO Simulcast System.  Motorola is the "proprietary source" of these services due to the nature of the equipment. Motorola's service 
technicians not only maintain the system, but they have an intimate knowledge of the system since they installed it. The original contract 
was approved with the implementation of the Simulcast System, and this contract identifies the costs for the 2016-2017 term. 

The total of the original contract is $567,575.23.   

Account #21530800-522231 includes $53,634.70 for the Airbus Telephone System. 
Account #21530800-522232 includes $513,940.53 for the radio system.   

After the 5% prepay discount of $28,378.76, the total due is $539,196.47. 

Approval of staff's recommendation of the maintenance agreement between Fayette County and Motorola for the 800 MHz ASTRO 
Simulcast System and to authorize the Chairman to sign the renewal contract, in the amount of $539,196.47 for the term of July 1, 2016 
through June 30, 2017. 

Funds for this renewal are included in the Fiscal Year 2017 M&O budget (account  numbers 21530800-522231 & 522232).

No

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes Yes

Thursday, June 23, 2016 Consent #7



 
 
To:   
 
From:   
 
Date:   
 
Subject: 
 
The count
various te
support fo
system, a
compatib
support se
 
A display 
attached.
However,
included. 
 
911 Comm
2017.  Spe
 

C
V

  C
   

A
   

   

 
Attachme

Steve 

Ted L. 

June 8

Contra

ty entered int
echnology sys
or the radio s
nd 911 phone
ility and cont
ervices. 

showing the 
  Maintenanc
 a new, upgra
 The price is 

munications r
ecifics of the 

ontract Name
endor  
ontract Amou

vailable Budg
Projec
Organ
Object

 
 

ent 

Rapson 

Burgess 

8, 2016 

act #1122‐S: M

to maintenan
stems within t
system, uninte
e system.  Be
tinuity, the co

system comp
ce services fo
aded phone s
increasing to 

recommends 
proposed con

e     
   

unt    

get:   
ct Code    
ization Code 
t Code   

   

Motorola Ma

nce and suppo
the 911 Comm
errupted pow
cause of the 
ounty does no

ponents cover
r the 911 pho
system was in
reflect expira

renewal of th
ntract are as f

1122‐S: 
Motoro
$539,19

Included
N/A
2153080
522231 
522232
    Total

 

intenance Ag

ort agreemen
munications 
wer source, ta
nature of em
ot routinely so

red by the ag
one system ap
nstalled on Fe
ation of the w

he agreement
follows: 

Motorola Ma
la Solutions
96.47 after pr

d in the FY 20
   
00   911 Syste
Office Equip.
Operating Eq
 

greement for 

nts in 2004 wi
Department. 
alk‐around ch
mergency com
olicit bids fro

greement, and
ppear to be in
ebruary 27, 20
warranties. 

t with Motor

aintenance A

repayment di

017 budget pr

em 
. Services    
q. Services   

   $

Fiscal Year 20

ith Motorola 
 The agreem

hannel, weath
mmunications,
m other vend

d their histori
ncreasing sign
015 and warr

rola Corporati

Agreement 

scount 

roposal, as fo

 $67,703 
 526,941 
$594,644 

017 

Corporation 
ments include 
her warning s
, and the nee
dors for the 

ical costs, is 
nificantly.  
ranties were 

ion for Fiscal 

ollows: 

for 

siren 
ed for 

Year 



Attachment

FY 2017

Proposed Change Budget
Maintenance Component FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY16‐17 Account

SmartZone 4.1. System 
Infrastructure Maint:
     Radio system*

$447,446.46  $460,869.85  $463,174.87  0.5% 21530800‐522232

UPS Maintenance:
     Uninterrupted power source

        23,674.48          24,384.71          25,603.94  5.0% 21530800‐522232

ITAC Maintenance:
     Talk around channel

          8,830.06            9,094.94            9,549.68  5.0% 21530800‐522232

MOSCAD / Sirens Maintenance:
     Weather warning siren system

        14,435.55          14,868.61          15,612.04  5.0% 21530800‐522232

Cassidian Services Maintenance:
     911 phone system**

        37,830.60          12,903.32          53,634.70  315.7% 21530800‐522231

     Sub‐Total $532,217.15  $522,121.43  $567,575.23  8.7%

     Prepayment Discount       (26,610.86)       (26,106.07)       (28,378.76)

    Total Maintenance Charges $505,606.29  $496,015.36  $539,196.47  8.7%

*Includes network monitoring, dispatch service, onsite infrastructure response, technical support, infrastructure repair,

and network preventative maintenance.

** A new, upgraded phone system was installed on February 27, 2015, which included warranties.  The price of maintenance

was lower during the warranty period.

Fayette County, Georgia
9‐1‐1 Communications

Motorola Maintenance Agreement
Contract #1122‐S

P:\Ted B\911\1122‐S Motorola Maint FY 17\Price History

















































































COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Type of Request:

Public Works Phil Mallon

Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into a $312,500 Subgrant Agreement with the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) for an 
update to the Fayette County Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) and to authorize the Chairman to sign the agreement. 

The ARC offers assistance to Counties within the Atlanta region for updating Comprehensive Transportation Plans (CTP). These are 
essential documents for transportation projects to be eligible for federal funding. In addition, the CTPs are the primary tools for identifying 
and prioritizing local transportation needs. 

Fayette County's most recent CTP is dated November 2010. They are typically updated every four to six years.  Attached as back-up is 
the Subgrant Agreement which includes the scope of work and the budget estimate. Major project tasks are: 1) Project Management; 2) 
Public Engagement; 3) Inventory; 4) Assessment; 5) Recommendations; and 6) Documentation. When Fayette County hires a consulting 
team to develop the CTP, we can adjust the scope to meet specific needs as long as ARC's required deliverables are satisfied. 

Public input is critical for a successful plan update. We envision the County's Transportation Committee will play an integral role in the 
project.   

The project's budget is $312,500, with 80% from ARC and 20% local.

Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into a $312,500 Subgrant Agreement with the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) for an 
update to the Fayette County Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP); and authorizing the Chairman to sign the agreement.  

The project has a budget estimate of $312,500, of which Fayette County's responsibility is $62,500 (20%).  Funding is available in 
Account 37540220-521316-6220K.  

No

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Not Applicable Yes

Thursday, June 23, 2016 Consent #8



 
 
 

06/13/2016 15:21    |FAYETTE COUNTY, GA |P      1
9597mpar            | YEAR TO DATE BUDGET REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2016 13
 

ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET   YTD ACTUAL ENCUMBRANCES BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

6220K ROAD DEPT-TRANSPORTATION  STUDY    
_________________________________________

 
37540220 334219 6220K GRANTS      -96,000    -154,000    -250,000            .00            .00    -250,000.00     .0%*
37540220 390100 6220K TRANSFER FROM      -24,000           0     -24,000     -24,000.00            .00            .00  100.0% 
37540220 390375 6220K TRANSFER FROM            0     -38,500     -38,500     -38,500.00            .00            .00  100.0% 
37540220 521316 6220K TECHNICAL SER      120,000     192,500     312,500            .00            .00     312,500.00     .0% 

 
TOTAL ROAD DEPT-TRANSPORTATION  STUD            0           0           0     -62,500.00            .00      62,500.00  100.0%

 
TOTAL REVENUES     -120,000    -192,500    -312,500     -62,500.00            .00    -250,000.00
TOTAL EXPENSES      120,000     192,500     312,500            .00            .00     312,500.00

 
GRAND TOTAL            0           0           0     -62,500.00            .00      62,500.00  100.0%

 
                                          ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Mary Parrott **                                           

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://yvwlndash03.tylertech.com:20105/sites/mu9597/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=xklRdpC0u0I0xHyIvOkCvcske3kjYtvdmTM0Ui4s5CDrngctE4dAyJnjOHeDS6RfrjTfiQFi79sGxWiw8hGxZw==&
https://yvwlndash03.tylertech.com:20105/sites/mu9597/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=oR9mFOXveIzsOLfF/jJ/UaHa0mc04Jk9BEK%2BWp%2BDEt5r7u64rRC2GE1q6BZlGF5iu4BPsLa8CPwg3AvG3Hzfmw==&
https://yvwlndash03.tylertech.com:20105/sites/mu9597/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=MUM5mMwRtmYu34M4dEj%2BQkxo5R7qauwQUlG7/N5Ye3Ivctu6%2BQTkW4m56f6ZCd3oQM2BDRTzUhY6EjTr979Fjw==&
https://yvwlndash03.tylertech.com:20105/sites/mu9597/Live/Views/PassThru.aspx?-E=ES5AfAPLwwWN%2BQdt1lTqriezDUrO4JOYk%2B6O6G/9g4UPbc7XndwTJEzDQ6tjj9rRC00vtVDJEnEa/8IV8BN/tQ==&


















































COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Type of Request:

Public Works Phil Mallon

Approval of a request from Peachtree City to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement with Fayette County to share costs, not to exceed 
$14,987.50, for maintenance work on the pedestrian bridge along Redwine Road near the entrance of the Preserves Subdivision and to 
authorize the Chairman to sign the agreement.

The timber bridge was constructed as part of the Safe Routes to School path project and is now over four years old.  The bridge needs to 
be sealed and some boards replaced.  Peachtree City recently solicited bids for similar work on multiple projects and included this 
location as "additional work".   

Although Holbrook Waterproofing has the overall low price, they are not the low bid for the "additional work" at $29,975 (see table on 
page 1 of Agreement).  However, none of the bidders would honor their quote for the additional work without award of the base bid.  Both 
County and City staff have evaluated the bids and believe, if bid independently, the quotes would be considerably above JHC's low bid of 
$16,000.  Given the time required to re-bid this work, both County and City staff recommend the work be awarded with the base bid and 
the cost split.   

The IGA was signed by Peachtree City's Council on June 16.  The City is ready to issue a Notice To Proceed for the work upon the 
Board's approval of the Agreement.   

The IGA is attached and a photograph of the bridge is provided on the last page of the backup file.

Approval of a request from Peachtree City to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement with Fayette County to share costs, not to exceed 
$14,987.50, for maintenance work on the pedestrian bridge along Redwine Road near the entrance of the Preserves Subdivision and to 
authorize the Chairman to sign the agreement.

If approved, the work will be paid from the Road Department's Bridge Maintenance Services under Technical Services 10040220-521316 
for the proposed FY2016-2017 budget.

No

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Not Applicable Yes

Thursday, June 23, 2016 Consent #9



1 
 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF FAYETTE 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

 This Agreement entered into this _______ day of _______________________between 

the CITY OF PEACHTREE CITY, a municipal corporation lying wholly or partially within 

Fayette County, Georgia, hereinafter referred to as “The City”, and FAYETTE COUNTY, 

GEORGIA, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia hereinafter referred to as “The 

County”. 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

 WHEREAS, the County had constructed a multi-use path bridge partially in the City and 

partially in the County, located on Redwine Road near the entrance of the Preserves Subdivision, 

hereinafter referred to as “the Bridge”; and, 

 WHEREAS, a location map of the Bridge is attached as Exhibit “A”; and, 

 WHEREAS, the City had bid out repair and maintenance work to various City bridges 

and included the Bridge as a potential add to the base bid; and, 

 WHEREAS, the City received bids as follows; and,  

 

 WHEREAS, City Staff is recommending approval of Holbrook Waterproofing as the 

lowest responsive bidder due to fact that the two lowest bidders for the additional work will not 

do the additional work separate from also being awarded the Base Bid.  



2 
 

  NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises contained herein, it 

is hereby agreed as follows: 

1. 

 Should the City select Holbrook Waterproofing as the lowest responsive bidder, the 

County will pay the City 50% of the Additional Work line item from Holbrook Waterproofing in 

the not to exceed amount of $14,987.50 upon the satisfactory completion of the Additional Work 

by Holbrook Waterproofing. 

2. 

 The City and the County will jointly inspect the work on the Bridge performed by 

Holbrook Waterproofing.  If the County has any issues with the work performed by Holbrook 

Waterproofing the County will advise the City and the City will work with the contractor to 

resolve the issues.  In no event shall the County be responsible for paying an amount exceeding 

$14,987.50. 

3. 

 After the City and County have inspected and approved the work on the Bridge, the City 

will invoice the County for their share of the work as stated above.  The County shall submit the 

payment due within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice from the City. 

4. 

 This intergovernmental agreement is a full and complete statement of the agreement of 

the parties as to the subject matter hereof and has been authorized by proper action of the 

respective parties. 

5. 

 Should any provision of this agreement or application thereof to any person or 

circumstance be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this agreement or the application 



3 
 

of such provision to any person or circumstance, other than those to which it is held invalid or 

unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each provision of this agreement shall be valid 

and enforceable to the full extent permitted by law. 

 

 
        
       FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

       By:  ______________________________ 
        Charles W. Oddo, Chairman 
        Board of Commissioners 
Attest: 
 
______________________________ 
        
        
        
        

 
CITY OF PEACHTREE CITY 

 

       By:  ______________________________ 
        Vanessa Fleisch, Mayor 

Attest: 

______________________________ 

 

        



Google Maps photo of Redwine Road Pedestrian Bridge over 

Camp Creek.  Looking towards Fayetteville.  Camp Creek is the 

boundary between Peachtree City and the unincorporated 

County. 

 

 

 

 



COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Type of Request:

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Street Lights Phil Mallon

Approval of staff's recommendation to add Flowers Field subdivision to Fayette County's Street Light Program.

The property owners in the subdivision known as Flowers Field are petitioning the Board of Commissioners to add Flowers Field into the 
Fayette County Street Light Program. 

The Board of Commissioners created Fayette County Street Light Districts in September 1983. The street light ordinance was amended 
in November 2014 to require a $100 application fee and prepayment of two years worth of street light bills to cover the expenses incurred 
by Fayette County until the charges could be recouped with the tax bills. Flowers Field has paid Fayette County the required amounts 
and presented a petition representing 100% of the homeowners in Flowers Field. 

There are six street lights located inside Flowers Field. The estimated monthly charge is $73.50. Flowers Field has paid the $100 
application fee and the first 2 years prepayment for street lights. Each parcel will be assessed $89 per year once it is added to the 
Property Tax Bill.

Approval of staff's recommendation to add the Flowers Field subdivision to Fayette County's Street Light Program.

These additional lights will cost $73.50 per month per Coweta Fayette EMC. Flowers Field  has prepaid the amounts required to become 
a street light district until the cost may be added onto the property tax bill and the county reimbursed. 

No

No

Yes

Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable Yes

ConsentThursday, June 23, 2016 #10



FAYETTE COUNTY 
PETITION FOR STREET LIGHTING 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, ALL BEING PROPERTY OWNERS OF THE STREET LIGHT 

DISTRICT t=°\o~\', f,~dd, DO HEREBY PETITION THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS FOR THE PLACEMENT OF STREET LIGHTS THROUGH OUR SUBDMSION 

OR STREET(S). 

EACH OF US DOES HEREBY PLEDGE AND CONSENT TO THE LEVYING OF A LIEN BY 

FAYETTE COUNTY AGAINST PROPERTY WE OWN FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYMENT OF THE 

COST OF AND OPERATING THE STREET LIGHTS. THERE ARE J Ql NUMBER OF LOTS 

CURRENTLY EXISTING IN STREET LIGHT DISTRICT flower? fie<J ' AND EACH OWNER AS 

SHOWN ON THE TAX RECORDS HAS AFFIRMATIVELY SIGNED TIDS PETITION OR 

INDICATION FOR DISAPPROVAL IS NOTED HEREIN. 

TIDS PETITION REPRESENTS AFFIRMATIVE VOTES, OR 

\DD % OF TIDS DISTRICT TO BE EFFECTED IN TIDS REQUEST. YOUR SIGNATURE 

ON TIDS PETITION INDICATED THAT YOU HAVE READ AND FULLY UNDERSTAND THE 

REQUIREMENTS FOR APPROVAL OF A STREET LIGHT DISTRICT. 

PERSONALLY APPEARED BEFORE ME~ A NOT ARY PUBLIC~ THE UNDERSIGNED 

AFFIANT, WHO SAYS ON OATH THAT HE, SHE IS ONE OF THE SUBSCRIBING WITNESSES TO 

THE WITHIN INSTRUMENT; THAT EACH OF SAID WITNESSES SAY THE EXECUTION AND 

Oli'T TVli'DV 01? Tllli' ~A Mlf RV Ji' AC'JI t:D A NTOD Tllli'Dli'TN ~OD Tllli' PTTDPO~l? ~l?T Ji'ODTJI • A Nn ---........ . --·- -- --~ _ ............. .-..- - -- -...--- -..-.-.-... .. .-.--... -~-..-........ ---- -~ .... ----- --- --- ... ----.-..-.,. ........... ·-
THAT EACH OF SAID WITNESSES SIGNED THE SAME AS PURPORTED. 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME, 

TIDS d.'1."" DAYOJ' ~""'b0..l:::') ~-j..~\i..__ 

(SUBSCRIBING WITNESS) 

FAYETTE COUNTY, STATE OF GEORGIA 



Lot #(s) 

FAYETTE COUNTY STREET LIGHTING PROGRAM 
SIGNATURE SHEET 

Pr~Ow:;~r~~~. ,,~j:~f.•s, ·~.1QS/1S, .t•~· ~·< 
GI\ <AJ.ol ( tSSL~O~ Su(\f10\>!1ts: 9--, Yes No (Check yes or no for each Address 

(Street & No.) signature) 

D D 
Signature Witness 

Lot #(s) 

Property Owner(s) 

Yes N 0 (Check yes or no for each Address 
(Street & No.) signature) 

D D 
Signature 

D D 
Signature Witness 



LOT 10 

LOT9 

EIM. FLOWER FIELD 
(01,cta-fa)'cttc 
[ltttrte Mffilbtf"ihip Corporat10n 
-.---~ ...... -,,., ___ 

LEGEND 

EXISTING POWER -PROPOSED POWER -PROPOSED SERVICE -PROPOSED LIGHTS -

LOT4 

LOT3 

Note: 

PROPOSED 
6 TRANSFOMERS 
6LJGHTS 

t 
~ 



COWETA-FAYETTE EMC 
OUTDOOR LIGHTING AGREEMENT 

Ar.Rl=l=Ul=NT m~ thic:. 'J'Jrui ri::lv nf ~nti:>mh&>r 'Jn1i:\ h&>twi:>i:>n r..t\wi:>t.::i-i=.::ivi:>tti:> l=li:>Mrir .. ·-·--····--· ···--- -·-- -·- --, -· --r·-···--·, -- ·-, --···--·· ------ .. -,--- -'"--···-
Membership Corporation (hereinafter called the lessor), and Scarlbrough Group. Inc. 
(hereinafter called the lessee). The lessee desires to have lighting equipment installed in 
Fayette county, at Flowers Field. 

WITNESSETH: The lessor agrees to lease to the lessee and the lessee agrees to lease from 
the lessor exclusively the lighting equipment as agreed upon by both parties but initially 
consisting of only one pole and service wire. If additional poles are needed, the lessee 
agrees to pay for same. 

CONDITIONS OF SERVICE: 

1. Lamp replacements will be made by the lessor. Lamps will be replaced at earliest 
convenient time. 

2_ The lessor shall assume the resoonsibilitv for ordinarv maintenance of ooles and 
- -- - - - . " " . 

equipment but replacement of poles, wires and fixtures caused by automobile or truck 
collisions or damage caused by vandalism will be re-placed by the lessor and billed to the 
lessee as a separate item on the monthly bill for service. 

3. The lessee shall be a member in good standing of the Corporation and be bound by the 
provisions of the articles of incorporation and bylaws of the lessor and by such rules and 
regulations as may from time to time be adopted by the lessor. 

4. This agreement shall become effective of the date service is first delivered hereunder by 
the lessor to the lessee, and shall remain in effect for a period of one ( 1) year and 
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other three months notice in 
writing. 

5. PLEASE NOTE: The LESSEE shall be very careful in placing the light. The light cannot 
be changed to a new location without the LESSEE paying the extra cost for necessary 
changes. Based on the initial installation as specified in this agreement and for service 
from dusk to dawn the monthly charge including energy charge shall be: 

With a contribution in aid of construction of $225.00 per luminaire, for a total cost of 
$1 .350.00 the cost of service will be: 
Number of Luminaries§ at $12.25 per month 

TOT.AL MONTHLY CHARGE---

MEMBER COWETA-FAYETIE EMC 



MINUTES 
June 7, 2016 
7:00 p.m. 

Call to Order 

Chairman Oddo called the June 7, 2016 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 6:59 p.m.  Commissioner Brown and Chief 
Deputy Clerk Tameca White were absent from the meeting. 

Invocation by Vice Chairman Randy Ognio 

Vice Chairman Ognio offered the Invocation. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Chairman Oddo led the Board and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Acceptance of Agenda 

Commissioner Ognio moved to accept the Agenda.  Commissioner Rousseau seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4-0 with 
Commissioner Brown being absent. 

PROCLAMATION/RECOGNITION: 

There were no proclamation / recognition items on the Agenda. 

PUBLIC HEARING: 

1. Public Hearing on the County's proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year 2017 which begins July 1, 2016 and ends
June 30, 2017.

Chief Financial Officer Mary Parrott gave a six-minute PowerPoint presentation on the county’s proposed annual budget for
Fiscal Year 2017.  She explained that the presentation included information providing a comparison of the recommended
budget for Fiscal Year 2017 compared to the current Fiscal Year 2016 budget.

No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to the proposed annual budget.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Charles W. Oddo, Chairman 
Randy Ognio, Vice Chair 
David Barlow 
Steve Brown 
Charles D. Rousseau 

FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 
Steve Rapson, County Administrator 

Dennis A. Davenport, County Attorney 
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 

Tameca P. White, Chief Deputy County Clerk 

140 Stonewall Avenue West 
Public Meeting Room 

Fayetteville, GA 30214

Consent #11



Minutes 
June 7, 2016 
Page Number 2 

 

County Administrator Steve Rapson stated this is the second year that Fayette County is doing a full rollback in the General 
Fund.  He explained that from the taxpayers’ perspective that is equivalent to not getting tax bills for $1.4 million.  He further 
explained that over the course of the last four budget cycles the county has rolled back about $3 million to the taxpayers.   
 
Commissioner Ognio pointed out that challenges to the budget included the Fair Labor Act.  Mr. Rapson replied that it 
included about $92,000 for the labor act that is currently under consideration.  Commissioner Ognio added that another issue 
challenging the budget was the Title Ad Valorem Tax resulting in less money coming to Fayette County.  Mr. Rapson replied 
that the expected shortfall was also incorporated in the proposed budget.   
 
Commissioner Ognio stated that it was a challenge to balance the budget due to certain challenges beyond anyone’s control 
and he commended staff for doing a good job.  Chairman Oddo agreed. 
 
This was the first Public Hearing and the Board did not vote on the proposed budget, but is expected to vote on the proposed 
budget after the second Public Hearing concludes on June 30, 2016. Copies of the request and PowerPoint presentation, 
identified as “Attachment 1,” follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Commissioner Barlow moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  Discussion followed.  
The motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner Brown being absent. 
 
2. Approval of staff's recommendation to provide funding of $75,000.00 from General Fund Contingency for Fayette 

County's Criminal Justice Center's sidewalks to ensure compliance with Title II of the American Disabilities Act; and 
to award Mallett Consulting $10,000.00 for project construction management and construction oversight, for an 
aggregate amount of $85,000.00. 

 
Commissioner Ognio said it bothered him that sidewalks were not already connected when they built the Justice Center, and 
he said it was like backing up and working on issues that were not addressed in the past.  County Administrator Steve 
Rapson agreed with that assessment and added that it was an issue due to findings based on the American Disabilities Act.  
It is noted that there were no sidewalks along Jimmie Mayfield Boulevard or along Lee Street at the time the Justice Center 
was constructed meaning there was no reason to construct sidewalks from the Justice Center to those public right-of-ways 
since neither Jimmie Mayfield Boulevard nor Lee Street had pedestrian facilities at that time.  A copy of the request, identified 
as “Attachment 2,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof. 
 

3. Approval of staff's recommendation to award Fiscal Year 2017 property and casualty insurance coverage to 
OneBeacon in the amount of $532,856.00,  and to award both the Sheriff's Office accidental death and 
dismemberment insurance and Commissioners' travel accident insurance to The Hartford in the amount $2,785.00, 
at an aggregate amount of $535,641.00.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3,” follows these minutes 
and is made an official part hereof. 

 

4. Approval of staff's request to apply for a Georgia Emergency Management Agency  grant in the amount of 
$776,698.00 to mitigate the flooding of Antebellum Way and potential damage to surrounding homes and property.   

 
Commissioner Ognio stated he had visited the site on Antebellum Way and it definitely needs repair.  He said the county is 
fortunate to get help in making the repair.  He asked if the site was on the county’s stormwater list and he was informed that 
it is on the stormwater list.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 4,” follows these minutes and is made an official 
part hereof. 

 

 

 



Minutes 
June 7, 2016 
Page Number 3 

 

5. Approval of staff's request to renew the contract with Midwest Employers Casualty Company in the amount of 
$98,121.00, as outlined in "Option 1," for a one-year period beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017, and 
authorization for the Chairman to sign the contact and any associated documents.  A copy of the request, identified 
as “Attachment 5,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof. 

 

6. Approval of staff's recommendation for the Fayette County Library to accept a Maintenance Repair Renovation 
Grant, in the amount of $75,000.00, for converting outdoor globe lights to LED lighting, to utilize up to $37,500.00 
from the LED CIP project budget for the grant's 50 / 50 required match, and to authorize the County Administrator to 
signed the grant documentation and any related documents. 
 
Commissioner Ognio stated that there was a lot of money requested for outdoor LED lighting at the Library.  He said he 
understood that the request was bid out but it was still very expensive. A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6,” 
follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof. 

 
7. Approval of the disposition of tax refunds, in the aggregate amount of $2,640.46, as recommended by the Tax 

Assessor's Office.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7,” follows these minutes and is made an 
official part hereof. 

 

8. Approval of the May 26, 2016 Special Called Meeting Minutes. 
 

9. Approval of the May 26, 2016 Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
There was no Old Business item on the Agenda. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
10. Consideration of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Commissioners David Barlow and 

Charles D. Rousseau, to appoint Stephen Cox and Bradley Klinger to the Fayette County Recreation Commission for 
four-year terms each beginning April 1, 2016 and expiring March 31, 2020. 

 
Commissioner Barlow spoke about the qualifications of both Mr. Klinger and Mr. Cox to serve on the Recreation Committee.   
 
Commissioner Rousseau moved to approve the recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of 
Commissioners David Barlow and Charles D. Rousseau, to appoint Stephen Cox and Bradley Klinger to the Fayette County 
Recreation Commission for four-year terms each beginning April 1, 2016 and expiring March 31, 2020.  Commissioner 
Barlow seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner Brown being absent.  A copy of the request, 
identified as “Attachment 8,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
No one spoke during Public Comment. 
 
ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS: 
 
A. Notice to Proceed for Bid #1123-A (Mid State Construction and Striping, Inc.):  County Administrator Steve Rapson 

briefed the Board on the Notice to Proceed for Bid #1123-A.  He mentioned that this bid pertained to a Fiscal Year 2016 
LMIG project.  A copy of a letter pertaining to Invitation to Bid #1123-A, identified as “Attachment 9,” follows these minutes 
and is made an official part hereof. 

 



Minutes 
June 7, 2016 
Page Number 4 

 

Second Public Hearing of the Fiscal Year 2017 Budget to be Held on June 30, 2016:  County Administrator Steve Rapson 
reminded the Board that the second Public Hearing prior to adopting the proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Budget will be held on 
Thursday, June 30, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  He mentioned that the meeting was going to be held on an off-week from the regularly 
scheduled meetings and, therefore, it would be a Special Called Meeting.   
 
Hot Air Balloon Festival to be Held on Saturday, June 11, 2016:  County Administrator Steve Rapson stated that the Hot Air 
Balloon Festival would be held at McCurry Park on Saturday, June 11, 2016.  He stated that Recreation Director Anita Godbee 
anticipates a large number of participants based on the numbers of calls she is receiving from people wanting to attend from 
other states. 
 
ATTORNEY’S REPORTS: 
 
Notice of Executive Session:  County Attorney Dennis Davenport notified the Board that he had one item of Pending Litigation 
and review of the May 26, 2016 Executive Session Minutes for consideration in Executive Session. 
 
COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS: 
 
Chairman Oddo mentioned that Commissioner Brown was on vacation with his family and that he had sent a memo to the Board 
to that effect. 
 
Commissioner Barlow: 
 
Hot Air Balloon Festival:  Commissioner Barlow thanked everyone for coming to the meeting.  He said he was looking forward 
to the Hot Air Balloon event beginning at 10:00 a.m. on Saturday, June 11.  He thought it would be a tremendous event and 
wanted to get the word out for everyone to participate.  He asked who did the design and graphics for the event since the work 
was excellent, and he was informed that the work was done in-house.  Commissioner Barlow anticipated that many people would 
attend and he said he would be there with his camera making a video.   
 
Commissioner Ognio: 
 
Voters Encouraged to Vote in July 2016 Runoff Elections:  Commissioner Ognio reminded the audience that a runoff election 
was upcoming for a state seat, a federal seat, and the District Attorney.  He stated that Fayette County could make the selections 
if the citizens turn out to vote,  He explained that these are multi-county elections and if Fayette County turns out in high numbers 
then it can select who it wants in the offices.  He stated that Fayette County had the highest voter turnout in the State of Georgia 
in 2014 and it would be nice to have that kind of turnout once again.  He said he believed in the Fayette County voters and he 
informed the audience that early voting begins on July 5 with voting day being held on July 26, 2016. 
 
Commissioner Barlow agreed with Commissioner Ognio stating that Judge Hankinson won three counties in the recent election 
but due to the large voter turnout in Fayette County, Judge Hankinson lost the election to Judge-elect Scott Ballard.   
 
Commissioner Rousseau: 
 
Compliments to Staff:  Commissioner Rousseau gave kudos to the Finance Department for its work on the Fiscal Year 2017 
budget.  He further commended the various departments for working to provide quality services to Fayette County’s citizens. 
 
Remembrance of the Passing of Two Individuals:  Commissioner Rousseau asked everyone to remember two people who 
recently passed away.  He stated one person was a child who lived in Fayette County and he asked everyone to lift up the family 
during their prayers and moments of reflection.  He also asked everyone to remember Muhammad Ali who served the nation in a 
different capacity by challenging the status quo based on his particular beliefs.  Commissioner Rousseau stated that Muhammed 
Ali’s actions should give everyone the courage to stand by their beliefs and to stand tall in the midst of adversity.  He recognized 
the icon’s legacy and his work for the country as a whole.  



Minutes 
June 7, 2016 
Page Number 5 

 

Chairman Oddo:   
 
Recognition of the Anniversaries of D-Day and the Battle of Midway:  Chairman Oddo stated that June 6, 1944 marked the 
Allied-invasion of Europe.  He added that June 7, 1942 was the final day of the Battle of Midway that turned the tide in the Pacific 
resulting in the eventual defeat of Japan.  He honored all the past veterans and thanked them for their service. 
 
New Chairs for the Commissioners:  Chairman Oddo stated that if it appeared that the Commissioners were sitting straighter, 
were more alert, and were talking faster then it had to do with their new, comfortable chairs.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 
Pending Litigation and Review of the May 26, 2016 Executive Session Minutes:  Commissioner Barlow moved to recess into 
Executive Session.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner Brown being absent. 
 
The Board recessed into Executive Session at 7:22 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 7:35 p.m. 
 
Return to Official Session and Authorization to Sign the Executive Session Affidavit:  Commissioner Ognio moved to 
return to Official Session and for the Chairman to sign the Executive Session Affidavit.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner Brown being absent.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as 
“Attachment 10,” follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof. 
 
Approval of the May 26, 2016 Executive Session Minutes:  Commissioner Ognio moved to approve the May 26, 2016 
Executive Session Minutes.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner Brown 
being absent. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Commissioner Ognio moved to adjourn the June 7, 2016 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioners Barlow seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner Brown being absent. 
 
The June 7, 2016 Board of Commissioners meeting was adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
   
__________________________________            
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk      Charles W. Oddo, Chairman   
    
 
The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, held 
on the 23rd day of June 2016.  Referenced attachments are available upon request at the County Clerk’s Office. 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk  
 
 



COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Type of Request:

Selection Committee Commissioners Barlow and Brown

Consideration of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Commissioners David Barlow and Steve Brown and Mr. 
Scott Wolfe to nominate Donald Sission, Taya Scott and Dr. Loida Bonney to the Fayette County Hospital Authority for appointment.

The Fayette County Hospital Authority was established by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners on February 2, 2000 when it was 
determined that a Hospital Authority would serve the citizens through financing projects as provided by the Hospital Authorities Law. 
While the Hospital Authority has no operational or oversight authority it does provide the ability to issue tax-free bonds and is able to offer 
the hospital a low-cost opportunity for capital funding. The Hospital Authority is comprised of five volunteer members who serve for four-
year terms. Appointments to the Hospital Authority comprise a distinguished blend of business and community leaders willing to serve 
voluntarily in support of the community through service on the authority.   

Three potential appointees are nominated by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners for each vacant position. There are currently 
three vacant position. This nomination is one (1) of the three (3). Upon receiving the nominees, the Hospital Authority will either select a 
nominee or decline the nominees. 

The Selection Committee, comprised of Commissioners David Barlow, Steve Brown and Scott Wolfe, interviewed nine (9) applicants to 
fill one(1) of three (3) vacancies on the Hospital Authority. If approved, the applicants will be provided to the Hospital Authority for 
possible appointment.

Approval of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Commissioners David Barlow and Steve Brown and Mr. 
Scott Wolfe to nominate Donald Sission, Taya Scott and Dr. Loida Bonney to the Fayette County Hospital Authority for appointment.

Not applicable. 

Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable Yes

Thursday, June 23, 2016 New Business #12



Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing





Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing







Holiday 
Minimum 
Staffing

Holiday 
Minimum 
StaffingHoliday Minimum 

Staffing









Holiday Minimum Staffing







Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing



Holiday Minimum Staffing









Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum 
Staffing

Holiday Minimum 
Staffing

































COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Type of Request:

Selection Committee Commissioners Barlow and Brown

Consideration of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Commissioners David Barlow and Steve Brown and Mr. 
Scott Wolfe to nominate Dr. Mark Morehart, Therol Brown and James Oliver, Jr. to the Fayette County Hospital Authority for appointment.

The Fayette County Hospital Authority was established by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners on February 2, 2000 when it was 
determined that a Hospital Authority would serve the citizens through financing projects as provided by the Hospital Authorities Law. 
While the Hospital Authority has no operational or oversight authority it does provide the ability to issue tax-free bonds and is able to offer 
the hospital a low-cost opportunity for capital funding. The Hospital Authority is comprised of five volunteer members who serve for four-
year terms. Appointments to the Hospital Authority comprise a distinguished blend of business and community leaders willing to serve 
voluntarily in support of the community through service on the authority.   

Three potential appointees are nominated by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners for each vacant position. There are currently 
three vacant position. This nomination is two (2) of the three (3). Upon receiving the nominees, the Hospital Authority will either select a 
nominee or decline the nominees. 

The Selection Committee, comprised of Commissioners David Barlow, Steve Brown and Scott Wolfe, interviewed nine (9) applicants to 
fill one(1) of three (3) vacancies on the Hospital Authority. If approved, the applicants will be provided to the Hospital Authority for 
possible appointment.

Approval of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Commissioners David Barlow and Steve Brown and Mr. 
Scott Wolfe to nominate Dr. Mark Morehart, Therol Brown and James Oliver, Jr. to the Fayette County Hospital Authority for appointment.

Not applicable. 

Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable Yes

Thursday, June 23, 2016 New Business #13



Holiday Minimum StaffingHoliday 
Minimu
m 
Staffing



Holiday 
Minimum 
StaffingHoliday 
Minimum 
StaffingHoliday Minimum Staffing







Holiday Minimum Staffing





Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing





Holiday 
Minimum 
StaffingHoliday 

Minimum 
StaffingHoliday Minimum 

Staffing





COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Type of Request:

Selection Committee Commissioners Barlow and Brown

Consideration of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Commissioners David Barlow and Steve Brown and Mr. 
Scott Wolfe to nominate Timothy Etson, Sr., Lavonia Stepherson and Charles Oddo to the Fayette County Hospital Authority for 
appointment.

The Fayette County Hospital Authority was established by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners on February 2, 2000 when it was 
determined that a Hospital Authority would serve the citizens through financing projects as provided by the Hospital Authorities Law. 
While the Hospital Authority has no operational or oversight authority it does provide the ability to issue tax-free bonds and is able to offer 
the hospital a low-cost opportunity for capital funding. The Hospital Authority is comprised of five volunteer members who serve for four-
year terms. Appointments to the Hospital Authority comprise a distinguished blend of business and community leaders willing to serve 
voluntarily in support of the community through service on the authority.   

Three potential appointees are nominated by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners for each vacant position. There are currently 
three vacant position. This nomination is three (3) of the three (3). Upon receiving the nominees, the Hospital Authority will either select a 
nominee or decline the nominees. 

The Selection Committee, comprised of Commissioners David Barlow, Steve Brown and Scott Wolfe, interviewed nine (9) applicants to 
fill one(1) of three (3) vacancies on the Hospital Authority. If approved, the applicants will be provided to the Hospital Authority for 
possible appointment.

Approval of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Commissioners David Barlow and Steve Brown and Mr. 
Scott Wolfe to nominate Timothy Etson, Sr., Lavonia Stepherson and Charles Oddo to the Fayette County Hospital Authority for 
appointment.

Not applicable. 

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Thursday, June 23, 2016 New Business #14



Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing





Holiday Minimum Staffing

















Holiday Minimum Staffing





Holiday Minimum 
Staffing

Holid
ay 
Minim
um 
Staffi
ng







Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing







Holiday Minimum 
Staffing

Holiday Minimum 
Staffing





Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing







COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Type of Request:

Board of Commissioners Commissioners Oddo and Rousseau

Consideration of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Chairman Charles Oddo and Commissioner Charles 
Rousseau to nominate Charlie Cave, Robert Johnson, Samuel Patton, Heather Cap and Donna Rosser to the Fayette County Public Arts 
Committee to serve a term of one (1) year beginning June 1, 2016 and expiring May 31, 2017.

The Public Arts Committee was established in 2014 with the purpose of finding ways to use art to enhance the County's reputation, to 
contribute to the civic environment, and to enrich the lives of citizens and visitors through the involvement of amateur and professional 
artists.  

On March 10, 2016 the Board of Commissioners approved an ordinance to provide for an advisory committee to be known as the Fayette 
County Public Arts Committee, to provide for terms of office, the initial membership, the filling of vacancies, the taking of an oath, the 
requirement of regular meetings, the removal of members, and compensation and qualifications of officers. 

The PAC position was posted and twenty-two applicants applied. Interviews for the 11 positions were conducted and the Selection 
Committee is recommending these applicants for appointment to this committee in accordance to the ordinance; to serve a term of one 
(1) year expiring May 31, 2017. 

Approval of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Chairman Charles Oddo and Commissioner Charles 
Rousseau to nominate Charlie Cave, Robert Johnson, Samuel Patton, Heather Cap and Donna Rosser to the Fayette County Public Arts 
Committee to serve a term of one (1) year beginning June 1, 2016 and expiring May 31, 2017.

Not Applicable.

No

No Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable Yes

Thursday, June 23, 2016 New Business #15



Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing





Holiday Minimum 
Staffing

Holiday 
Minimum 
StaffingHoliday Minimum Staffing





Holiday 
Minimum 
Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing





Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing





Holiday Minimum 
Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing







Holiday Minimum Staffing



Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum 
Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing



Holiday 
Minimum 
Staffing

Holiday Minimum 
StaffingHoliday Minimum Staffing























COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Type of Request:

Board of Commissioners Commissioners Oddo and Rousseau

Consideration of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Chairman Charles Oddo and Commissioner Charles 
Rousseau to nominate Jeffrey Mellin, Roshier Sbaja, Tina Brown, Donna Thompson, Vicki Turner and Richard Brown to the Fayette 
County Public Arts Committee to serve a term of two (2) years beginning June 1, 2016 and expiring May 31, 2018.

The Public Arts Committee was established in 2014 with the purpose of finding ways to use art to enhance the County's reputation, to 
contribute to the civic environment, and to enrich the lives of citizens and visitors through the involvement of amateur and professional 
artists.  

On March 10, 2016 the Board of Commissioners approved an ordinance to provide for an advisory committee to be known as the Fayette 
County Public Arts Committee, to provide for terms of office, the initial membership, the filling of vacancies, the taking of an oath, the 
requirement of regular meetings, the removal of members, and compensation and qualifications of officers. 

TThe PAC position was posted and twenty-two applicants applied. Interviews for the 11 positions were conducted and the Selection 
Committee is recommending these applicants for appointment to this committee in accordance to the ordinance; to serve a term of two 
(2) years expiring May 31, 2018. 

Approval of a recommendation from the Selection Committee, comprised of Chairman Charles Oddo and Commissioner Charles 
Rousseau to nominate Jeffrey Mellin, Roshier Sbaja, Tina Brown, Donna Thompson, Vicki Turner and Richard Brown to the Fayette 
County Public Arts Committee to serve a term of two (2) years beginning June 1, 2016 and expiring May 31, 2018.

Not Applicable.

No

No Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable Yes

Thursday, June 23, 2016 New Business #16



Holiday Minimum 
Staffing







Holiday 
Minimum 
Staffing

H
ol
id
a
y 
M
in
i
m
u
m 
St
af
fi
n
g

Holiday Minimum Staffing







Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing



Holiday Minimum Staffing



Holiday Minimum StaffingH
oli
d
a
y 
M
ini
m
u
m 
St
af
fi
n
g









Holiday Minimum 
Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing









Holiday Minimum 
Staffing

Holiday Minimum 
Staffing





Holiday Minimum 
Staffing

Holiday Minimum 
Staffing











Holiday Minimum Staffing







COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 

Department: Presenter(s):

Background/History/Details:

Wording for the Agenda:

What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?

If this item requires funding, please describe:

Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?

Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*

Administrator's Approval

Backup Provided with Request?

Approved by Finance

Approved by Purchasing

Reviewed  by Legal

County Clerk's Approval

Staff Notes:

Meeting Date:

* All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also
  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.

Type of Request:

Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina

Consideration of the Fayetteville  annexation of  29.63 acres east of Price Road Estates Subdivision, and the rezoning of said property 
from R-40 (Single-Family residential) to RTHC-PUD (Residential Townhouse Condominium). 

The City of Fayetteville has notified Fayette County of an application to annex 29.63 acres east of Price Road Estates Subdivision. The 
City has also notified the County of its intention to rezone the property from R-40 (Single-Family District) to to RTHC-PUD (Residential 
Townhouse Condominium). 

The county's governing authority may either  "object" to the annexation, by majority vote, or choose not to object to the annexation 
request. 

Per Section 36-36-113 of the Georgia Code, Fayette County must deliver their objection to the annexation by certified mail or statutory 
overnight delivery not later than the end of the thirtieth calendar day following receipt of the notice. The deadline for delivery of an 
objection is June 28, 2016. 

On June 17, 2016 the City submitted a reconfigured layout for the subject property reducing the number of lots (sees attached memo and 
concept plans). 

Based on the reconfigured concept plan,  Staff recommends that the County not object to the proposed annexation.

No

Yes Yes

Not Applicable

Not Applicable Yes

Thursday, June 23, 2016 New Business #17



1 
 

To: Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Pete Frisina 
 
Date: June 8, 20156 
 
Re: Fayetteville Annexation Request for Highland Properties, LLC - Parcel 05-17-025 – 29.5 
acres.  
 
Fayetteville has received a request for annexation of the above-referenced.  The annexation 
notice from Fayetteville indicates the intent to annex and rezone 29.5 acres from R-40 in 
unincorporated Fayette County to Residential townhouse-condominium district (R-THC) in the 
City of Fayetteville.  The letter of Intent states that there are approximately 54 lots/homes 
planned on the subject property.  
 
History 
 
The subject property is included in the Preliminary Plat for the Price Road Estates Subdivision. 
This section of the preliminary plat indicates 20 lots. 
 
General Description   
 
The subject property is 29.5 acres east of the Price Road Estates Subdivision.  The proposed 
annexation would not create an island.  The subject property abuts the following: 
 

Direction Acreage Zoning  Use Comprehensive Plan 

North (City of 
Fayetteville) 

32.53 C-3 Undeveloped Neighborhood Mixed Use (City of 
Fayetteville) 

 

East (City of 
Fayetteville) 

(Fayette 
County -
Kingswood 
Subdivision) 

11.1 
 

2.585 

1.262 

1.256 

1.19 

1.01 

R-THC 
 

R-40 

R-40 

R-40 

R-40 

R-40 

Undeveloped 
 

Undeveloped 

Single-Family Residence 

Single-Family Residence 

Single-Family Residence 

Single-Family Residence 

Neighborhood Mixed Use (City of 
Fayetteville) 

Low Density Residential ( 1Unit/ 1 to 2 
Acres) 

 

 

South 2.99 
1.00 

11.0 

A-R 
A-R 

A-R 

Undeveloped 
Undeveloped 

Single-Family Residence 

Low Density Residential (1 Unit/1 to 2 
Acres) 

 

 
 

 

    



2 
 

Direction Acreage Zoning  Use Comprehensive Plan 

West 
(Price Road 
Estates 
Subdivision –
Phase 1) 

1.86 
1.40 

1.41 

1.43 

1.67 

1.83 

1.01 

1.58 

1.50 

1.25 

R-40 
R-40 

R-40 

R-40 

R-40 

R-40 

R-40 

R-40 

R-40 

R-40 

Single-Family Residence 
Single-Family Residence 

Single-Family Residence 

Single-Family Residence 

Single-Family Residence 

Single-Family Residence 

Single-Family Residence 

Single-Family Residence 

Single-Family Residence 

Single-Family Residence 

Low Density Residential (1 Unit/1 to 2 
Acres) 

  

 
Current County Land Use  
 
The subject property is designated as Low Density Residential (1 Unit/1 to 2 Acres) on the 
Fayette County Future Land Use Plan map.      
 
DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS  
 
Planning and Zoning: The letter of Intent states that there are approximately 54 lots/homes 
planned on the subject property.  It appears on the Concept Plan that some of these lots are split 
between the annexation area and the City.  As previously mentioned, the preliminary plat for 
Price Road Estates Subdivision indicates twenty R-40 lots.   As the subject property is currently 
zoned R-40 and is proposed for R-THC zoning in Fayetteville, the annexation and rezoning will 
result in a substantial change in the density/intensity of the property (see State Law below).   
 
Fire/EMS: Opposed the annexation due to the loss of Fire/EMS Tax revenues. 
 
Water System: This is the City of Fayetteville’s service area. 
 
Public Works/Engineering:   
 
The parcel proposed for annexation is land locked except for a small amount of road frontage on 
Tributary Way.  Connecting to this road, however, requires crossing Perry Creek which has 
significant environmental and economic challenges.  As proposed, access would be across City 
property and connect to State Route 92.  GDOT would review and approve the conditions for 
ingress and egress. 
 
Although outside the limits of the annexation parcel, Engineering offers the two comments for 
the larger Concept Plan: 
 

*         The western-most entrance should instead be connected to the Ingles parking lot and use 
the existing driveway.  The parking lot is stubbed for future connection to the parcel and 
the exiting drive is properly aligned across from an entrance on the north side of 92.  



3 
 

*         Sidewalks or multi-use path should be considered as part of the development to further 
path connection already established in the area.   

 
 
Environmental Health:  Environmental Health has no objections to the proposed 
annexation.   If approved, it is assumed based on proposed concept density that the project would 
be served by public sewer. 
 
Environmental Management:   
 
Floodplain The property DOES contain floodplain and FLOODWAY per FEMA 

FIRM panel 13113C0112E.  

Wetlands The property MAY contain wetlands.   

Watershed There ARE State Waters subject to the County watershed protection 
buffers and setbacks.  Perry Creek has a minimum watershed buffer of 200 
feet from wrested vegetation or 100 feet from the base flood elevation, 
whichever is greater and an additional 50 foot setback from the buffer.  
This also applies to the unnamed stream that joins Perry Creek for 1000 
feet from the confluence.  From that point this tributary would be subject 
to a minimum watershed buffer of 100 feet from wrested vegetation or 50 
feet from the base flood elevation, whichever is greater, and an additional 
50 foot setback from the buffer. 

 

Groundwater The property IS NOT within the groundwater recharge area, as delineated 
on the Georgia Department of Natural Resources’ 1992 Ground-Water 
Pollution Susceptibility Map of Georgia (Hydrologic Atlas 20).   

 

Stormwater The development of this property is subject to all stormwater best 
management practices for new development. 

 

Sheriff=s Office:   
 
STATE LAW 
 
TITLE 36.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT   
PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO MUNICIPAL CORPORATIONS ONLY   
CHAPTER 36.  ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY   
ARTICLE 7.  PROCEDURE FOR RESOLVING ANNEXATION DISPUTES  
 
36-36-113. Objection to annexation; grounds and procedures 
 

 (a) The county governing authority may by majority vote to object to the annexation because 



4 
 

of a material increase in burden upon the county directly related to any one or more of the 
following: 
 
(1) The proposed change in zoning or land use; 

 
(2) Proposed increase in density; and 

 
(3) Infrastructure demands related to the proposed change in zoning or land use. 
 

(b) Delivery of services may not be a basis for a valid objection but may be used in support 
of a valid objection if directly related to one or more of the subjects enumerated in 
paragraphs (1), (2), and (3) of subsection (a) of this Code section. 

 
(c)  The objection provided for in subsection (a) of this Code section shall document the 

nature of the objection specifically providing evidence of any financial impact forming 
the basis of the objection and shall be delivered to the municipal governing authority by 
certified mail or statutory overnight delivery to be received not later than the end of the 
thirtieth calendar day following receipt of the notice provided for in Code Section 36-36-
111. 

 
(d) In order for an objection pursuant to this Code section to be valid, the proposed change in 

zoning or land use must: 
 

(1) Result in: 
 
(A) A substantial change in the intensity of the allowable use of the property 

or a change to a significantly different allowable use; or 
    
    (B) A use which significantly increases the net cost of infrastructure or 

significantly diminishes the value or useful life of a capital outlay project, 
as such term is defined in Code Section 48-8-110, which is furnished by 
the county to the area to be annexed; and 

 
(2) Differ substantially from the existing uses suggested for the property by the 

county’s comprehensive land use or permitted for the property pursuant to the 
county's zoning ordinance or its land use ordinances. 

 
36-36-114.  Arbitration panel; composition and membership  
 
   (a)  Not later than the fifteenth calendar day following the date the municipal corporation 

received the first objection provided for in Code Section 36-36-113, an arbitration panel 
shall be appointed as provided in this Code section. 
 

(b)  The arbitration panel shall be composed of five members to be selected as provided in 
this subsection. The Department of Community Affairs shall develop three pools of 
arbitrators, one pool which consists of persons who are currently or within the previous 



5 
 

six years have been municipal elected officials, one pool which consists of persons who 
are currently or within the previous six years have been county elected officials, and one 
pool which consists of persons with a master's degree or higher in public administration 
or planning and who are currently employed by an institution of higher learning in this 
state, other than the Carl Vinson Institute of Government. The pool shall be sufficiently 
large to ensure as nearly as practicable that no person shall be required to serve on more 
than two panels in any one calendar year and serve on no more than one panel in any 
given county in any one calendar year. The department is authorized to coordinate with 
the Georgia Municipal Association, the Association County Commissioners of Georgia, 
the Council of Local Governments, and similar organizations in developing and 
maintaining such pools. 
 

(c)  Upon receiving notice of a disputed annexation, the department shall choose at random 
four names from the pool of municipal officials, four names from the pool of county 
officials, and three names from the pool of academics; provided, however, that none of 
such selections shall include a person who is a resident of the county which has 
interposed the objection or any municipal corporation located wholly or partially in such 
county. The municipal corporation shall be permitted to strike or excuse two of the names 
chosen from the county officials pool; the county shall be permitted to strike or excuse 
two of the names chosen from the municipal officials pool; and the county and municipal 
corporation shall each be permitted to strike or excuse one of the names chosen from the 
academic pool. 
 

(d)  Prior to being eligible to serve on any of the three pools, persons interested in serving on 
such panels shall receive joint training in alternative dispute resolution together with 
zoning and land use training, which may be designed and overseen by the Carl Vinson 
Institute of Government in conjunction with the Association County Commissioners of 
Georgia and the Georgia Municipal Association, provided such training is available. 
 

(e)  At the time any person is selected to serve on a panel for any particular annexation 
dispute, he or she shall sign the following oath: "I do solemnly swear or affirm that I will 
faithfully perform my duties as an arbitrator in a fair and impartial manner without favor 
or affection to any party, and that I have not and will not have any ex parte 
communication regarding the facts and circumstances of the matters to be determined, 
other than communications with my fellow arbitrators, and will only consider, in making 
my determination, those matters which may lawfully come before me." 

 
36-36-115. Meetings of arbitration panel; duties; findings and recommendations; 

compensation  
 

(a)  (1) The arbitration panel appointed pursuant to Code Section 36-36-114 shall meet as 
soon after appointment as practicable and shall receive evidence and argument from the 
municipal corporation, the county, and the applicant or property owner and shall by 
majority vote render a decision which shall be binding on all parties to the dispute as 
provided for in this article not later than the sixtieth day following such appointment. The 
meetings of the panel in which evidence is submitted or arguments of the parties are 



6 
 

made shall be open to the public pursuant to Chapter 14 of Title 50. The panel shall first 
determine the validity of the grounds for objection as specified in the objection. If an 
objection involves the financial impact on the county as a result of a change in zoning or 
land use or the provision of maintenance of infrastructure, the panel shall quantify such 
impact in terms of cost. As to any objection which the panel has determined to be valid, 
the panel, in its findings, may establish reasonable zoning, land use, or density conditions 
applicable to the annexation and propose any reasonable mitigating measures as to an 
objection pertaining to infrastructure demands. 
 
(2) In arriving at its determination, the panel shall consider: 
 
      (A) The existing comprehensive land use plans of both the county and city; 
 
      (B) The existing land use patterns in the area of the subject property; 
 
      (C) The existing zoning patterns in the area of the subject property; 
 
      (D) Each jurisdiction's provision of infrastructure to the area of the subject property; 
 
      (E) Whether the county has approved similar changes in intensity or allowable uses 

on similar developments in other unincorporated areas of the county; 
 
      (F) Whether the county has approved similar developments in other unincorporated 

areas of the county which have a similar impact on infrastructure as complained 
of by the county in its objection; and 

 
      (G) Whether the infrastructure or capital outlay project which is claimed adversely 

impacted by the county in its objection was funded by a county-wide tax. 
 
(3) The county shall provide supporting evidence that its objection is consistent with its 

land use plan and the pattern of existing land uses and zonings in the area of the 
subject property. 

 
(4) The county shall bear at least 75 percent of the cost of the arbitration. The panel shall 

apportion the remaining 25 percent of the cost of the arbitration equitably between the 
city and the county as the facts of the appeal warrant; provided, however, that if the 
panel determines that any party has advanced a position that is substantially frivolous, 
the costs shall be borne by the party that has advanced such position. 

 
(5) The reasonable costs of participation in the arbitration process of the property owner 

or owners whose property is at issue shall be borne by the county and the city in the 
same proportion as costs are apportioned under paragraph (4) of this subsection. 

 
(6) The panel shall deliver its findings and recommendations to the parties by certified 

mail or statutory overnight delivery. 
 



7 
 

(b)  If the decision of the panel contains zoning, land use, or density conditions, the findings 
and recommendations of the panel shall be recorded in the deed records of the county 
with a caption describing the name of the current owner of the property, recording 
reference of the current owner's acquisition deed and a general description of the 
property, and plainly showing the expiration date of any restrictions or conditions. 
 

(c)  The arbitration panel shall be dissolved on the tenth day after it renders its findings and 
recommendations but may be reconvened as provided in Code Section 36-36-116. 
 

(d)  The members of the arbitration panel shall receive the same per diem, expenses, and 
allowances for their service on the committee as is authorized by law for members of 
interim legislative study committees. 
 

(e)  If the panel so agrees, any one or more additional annexation disputes which may arise 
between the parties prior to the panel's initial meeting may be consolidated for the 
purpose of judicial economy if there are similar issues of location or similar objections 
raised to such other annexations or the property to be annexed in such other annexations 
is within 2,500 feet of the subject property. 

 
36-36-116. Appeal  
 

The municipal or county governing authority or an applicant for annexation may appeal 
the decision of the arbitration panel by filing an action in the superior court of the county 
within ten calendar days from receipt of the panel's findings and recommendations. The 
sole grounds for appeal shall be to correct errors of fact or of law, the bias or misconduct 
of an arbitrator, or the panel's abuse of discretion. The superior court shall schedule an 
expedited appeal and shall render a decision within 20 days from the date of filing. If the 
court finds that an error of fact or law has been made, that an arbitrator was biased or 
engaged in misconduct, or that the panel has abused its discretion, the court shall issue 
such orders governing the proposed annexation as the circumstances may require, 
including remand to the panel. Any unappealed order shall be binding upon the parties. 
The appeal shall be assigned to a judge who is not a judge in the circuit in which the 
county is located. 
 

36-36-117. Annexation after conclusion of procedures; remedies for violations of 
conditions  

 
If the annexation is completed after final resolution of any objection, whether by 
agreement of the parties, act of the panel, or court order as a result of an appeal, the 
municipal corporation shall not change the zoning, land use, or density of the annexed 
property for a period of one year unless such change is made in the service delivery 
agreement or comprehensive plan and adopted by the affected city and county and all 
required parties. Following the conclusion of the dispute resolution process outlined in 
this article, the municipal corporation and an applicant for annexation may either accept 
the recommendations of the arbitration panel and proceed with the remaining annexation 
process or abandon the annexation proceeding. A violation of the conditions set forth in 



8 
 

this Code section may be enforced thereafter at law or in equity until such conditions 
have expired as provided in this Code section. 
 

36-36-118. Abandonment of proposed annexation; remedies for violations of conditions  
 
If at any time during the proceedings the municipal corporation or applicant abandons the 
proposed annexation, the county shall not change the zoning, land use, or density 
affecting the property for a period of one year unless such change is made in the service 
delivery agreement or comprehensive plan and adopted by the affected city and county 
and all required parties. A violation of the conditions set forth in this Code section may 
be enforced thereafter at law or in equity until such period has expired. After final 
resolution of any objection, whether by agreement of the parties, act of the panel, or any 
appeal from the panel's decision, the terms of such decision shall remain valid for the 
one-year period and such annexation may proceed at any time during the one year 
without any further action or without any further right of objection by the county. 
 

Summary 
 
As the subject property is currently zoned R-40 in the County and is proposed for R-THC zoning 
in Fayetteville with 54 lots, the annexation and rezoning will result in a substantial change in the 
density/intensity of the property.  Staff and two (2) of the Board of Commissioners met with the 
Fayetteville City Manager and Director of Community Development concerning the change in 
the density/intensity of the property associated with this annexation.  It was suggested to the City 
that a reduction in density should be considered.  On June 17, 2016 a revised concept plan was 
submitted to the County by the City indicating a reduction in the number of lots from 54 to 39 
lots (developer indicated to staff that 15 lots were eliminated)  which still results in an increase in 
the density/intensity of the property.  However his reduction in lots also resulted in a greater 
portion of the annexed area being included in an undeveloped Common Area providing a better 
buffer to existing lots in the Kingswood Subdivision to the east and eliminated a portion of a 
street crossing a stream.    Given the reduction in the number of lots, an increase in the amount of 
the annexed area being included in an undeveloped Common Area, the elimination of a street 
crossing a stream, and the difficulty in accessing the annexation area from the County (see Public 
Works/Engineering comments above), Staff recommends that the County not object to the 
annexation.  Please note that Fire/EMS is opposed due to the loss of revenue. 
 



 

    

___________________________________________________________________ 

 
June 17, 2016                                                                               

 

Director of P&Z - Fayette County 

Attn: Pete Frisina 

140 Stonewall Avenue W. Suite 202 

Fayetteville, GA 30214 
 

Dear Mr. Frisina: 

 

The City of Fayetteville has recently received a revised submittal plan for the annexation/rezoning of 

parcel 0517 025 currently zoned R-40 (Single Family Residential) in Fayette County.  The applicant is 

still seeking RTHC-PUD (Residential Townhouse Condominium) zoning for this property, but has 

reconfigured the layout and reduced the proposed number of lots for the parcel.   

 

 The revised submittal was verified for accuracy and officially accepted by City staff on June 17, 2016.  If 

accepted by the County, the City of Fayetteville will ensure the property is developed according to the 

revised configuration submitted. 

 

I have enclosed a copy of the revised plan for your review.   

 

Please direct any comments or questions concerning this application to Brian Wismer, Director of 

Community Development. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Julie Brown 

Senior Planner 

 

Cc:  Mayor, City Council 

        Ray Gibson, City Manager 

        Brian Wismer, Director of Community Development 

        Chris Hindman, Director of Public Services 

City of Fayetteville 
240 Glynn Street South • Fayetteville, Georgia  30214 

Telephone (770) 461-6029 • Facsimile (770) 460-4238 

www.fayetteville-ga.gov 
 

 

MAYOR 

Edward J.Johnson, Jr. 
 

COUNCIL 

Scott Stacy, 
Mayor Pro Tem 

Kathaleen Brewer 

Paul C. Oddo, Jr. 
Harlan Shirley 

James B. Williams 

 
CITY MANAGER 

Ray Gibson 

 
CITY CLERK 

Anne Barksdale 

 

http://www.fayetteville.ga.gov/






R-45 R-45 R-40 R-40R-40R-45R-45 R-45 R-45R-45
R-45 R-40R-45

R-45 R-40R-45

R-40 R-40R-40
R-40

R-45
R-45

A-R
R-40

R-40R-40
R-40R-45

R-45A-R A-R
R-40R-45

R-40R-40
R-45 R-40

R-45

R-40
A-R

R-40
R-40R-40R-45

R-40
A-R

R-40

R-45

R-40
R-40

R-40
R-40

R-45 R-40
R-45

R-40

R-40

R-40

R-40

R-45R-45
R-45

R-45

R-40A-R
R-40

R-40

A-R

A-R R-40R-40
R-40R-40

R-45

R-40 R-40R-40
R-40 R-40

R-45R-45
R-45

R-40
R-40

R-40R-40 R-40A-RA-R

R-40

A-R

A-R
R-40

R-40

R-45

R-40

R-40

R-40
A-R

R-40 R-40

R-40

R-40 R-40

A-R

R-40
R-40

R-40
R-40

S-Z
R-40

R-40
R-40R-40 R-40

R-40
R-40

R-40 R-40

R-40
R-40

R-40
A-R

S-Z

R-40

R-40R-40
A-R

R-40
R-40

R-40
A-R

R-40 R-40
R-40
R-40

R-40

R-40

R-40

R-40

R-40

C-H

A-R R-40 R-40 R-40
R-40

NA
R-40 R-40C-H

A-R

NA

NA

NAC-H

NA
NA

R-40

NA

NA

NA

A-R

NANA

NA

C-H

C-H

NA

NANA NA

NANA
NA

NA

NA

NA

NA NA

NA
NANA NA

NANA
NA

NA
NA

NA

NA
NA

NA
NA NA

NANA
NA NA

NA

NANA NANA

NA

NA
NA

NA
NA NANA

NA
NA NANA

NA
NANA

NA

NANA NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA NA

NA

NA

NA

R-40A-R

R-40
R-40

A-R

NA

NA

NA

R-40

Helen Sams Parkway/SR 92

Fayetteville
100 S. Morning Dove Drive  

Zoning Map

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

R-40

SR
 85 Jimmy Mayfield Blvd/SR 92

Fay
ette

vill
e



COMMERCIAL

LOW DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL

CONSERVATION
AREAS

Helen Sams Parkway/SR 92

Fayetteville
100 S. Morning Dove Drive  

Land Use Plan Map

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

SR
 85 Jimmy Mayfield Blvd/SR 92

Fay
ette

vill
e



Helen Sams Parkway/SR 92

Fayetteville
100 S. Morning Dove Drive  

Aerial Map

SUBJECT
PROPERTY

SR
 85 Jimmy Mayfield Blvd/SR 92

Fay
ette

vill
e







Holiday Minimum Staffing

Holiday Minimum Staffing














	06-23-2016 Agenda
	Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2016-07 Starr's Mill Histroic District File w Backup-email
	Planning and Zoning- Ordinance 2016-07 Starr's Mill Histroic District - File
	Planning and Zoning- Zoning Ordinance Amendment Redline
	Planning and Zoning- Zoning Ordinance Amendment  Draft

	Planning & Zoning - Color & Brick Palette for the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District File w Backup-email
	Planning & Zoning - Color & Brick Palette for the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District Agenda Request File
	Planning and Zoning- Color and Brick Palette Resolution Backup
	Planning and Zoning- Color & Brick Palette for the Starr’s Mill Historic Overlay District -  Backup

	Planning and Zoning- Land Use Plan Resolution 2016-06 Agenda Request File w Backup-email
	Planning and Zoning- Land Use Plan Resolution 2016-06 Agenda Request File
	Planning and Zoning- Land Use Comp Plan Resolution Backup
	Planning and Zoning - Resolution 2016-06 Starr's Mill Histroic District - Agenda Request BAckup
	Planning and Zoning - Resolution 2016-06 Starr's Mill Histroic District - Backup
	ADPC971.tmp
	Arnold Martin asked if there was ever a time when overlay districts are updated or altered.
	Pete Frisina replied yes. He added that it’s all part of the zoning requirements. He reiterated that every state highway in the county has an overlay.
	Brian Haren read page five (5) section (d) Regulations subsection (1):  These structures shall maintain a residential character.
	Pete Frisina said that there is a note under subsection one (1) that states: properties within an Overlay Zone shall comply with the applicable Architectural Standards of the Overlay Zone.
	Arnold Martin asked if we had a definition for drive-through or drive-in.
	Chairman Graw asked Patrick if the wording we have now would stop someone from driving up to an ATM.
	Patrick Stough replied that he wasn’t sure.  He said there could be potential for someone to say that it is not a drive-through.  He added that it’s not your normal drive through because you are not dealing with a person.  He asked Pete if we had a de...
	Chairman Graw stated the only way to stop a drive-in access to an ATM would be to specifically state that there will be no drive-in ATM access allowed.
	Patrick Stough said it could be as simple as adding drive-up, drive-through, and drive-in to the definitions.
	Pete Frisina said he would add drive-up as a definition.  He said he believes drive-through means a service is provided to you through a window.
	Chairman Graw stated that the drive-through definition would take care of an ATM.
	Pete Frisina read the definition for drive-through:
	Drive-through: Means an opening in the wall of a building or structure designed and intended to be used to provide service to customers who remain in their vehicles.
	Pete Frisina said that a drive-up / drive-through ATM would be designed and intended to be used to provide a service to customers who remain in their vehicles.
	Patrick Stough said that he doesn’t believe it’s strong enough.  He said when he hears provides service to customers he is seeing employee’s providing service to customers.  He added that he does not see customers interacting with a machine. He said t...
	Pete Frisina replied that he could come up with a drive-up definition.
	Patrick Stough said with the drive-up definition that it should emphasize situational whether a person is interacting with a machine not just an employee.
	Pete Frisina said that the definition would be added to the list.  He added that he would send it out to the Planning Commission for review.
	Pete Frisina said that on page 10 Section 110-169 goes over the Conditional Use section of the convenience commercial establishment.  He stated that we took the heading portion out of the convenience commercial establishment to create a definition.
	Arnold Martin asked about the Conditional Uses on page eight (8) that addresses Single-Family residences.
	Pete Frisina replied we have that in all of our non-residential zoning districts.  He said the reasoning behind that was because you may have a single-family home on a one (1) acre lot that you have zoned to C-C to potentially sell to someone.  He sta...
	Dennis Dutton said we don’t allow you to do business and residential together.
	Pete Frisina said in the Zoning Ordinance under General Provisions it states that once you’re zoned non-residential it allows you to do residential but you can’t do both residential and non-residential.
	Pete Frisina stated Section 110-174 Historic district overlay zone is the companion piece to the overlay district.  He said that these are regulations that outline the architectural controls and introduce two (2) new terms the brick palette and the co...
	Al Gilbert asked how a color gets added to the color palette.
	Pete Frisina replied that this will be approved as part the ordinance.
	Al Gilbert then stated that we need to develop a process.  He then asked who makes the determination on the colors and where does he go if he doesn’t agree.
	Pete Frisina replied that they would have to make an amendment to the zoning ordinance.  He said it would have to go back through Planning Commission and then the Board of Commissioners.
	Al Gilbert stated that he doesn’t want one (1) person determining whether a color is good or not.  He added he would like a committee be it Planning Commission or some other entity.  He said that he fears someone will be turned down and would go to th...
	Patrick Stough stated that he does believe there is an issue there that needs to be addressed, and he doesn’t know necessarily how.
	Chairman Graw asked Al Gilbert if he wants the approval of colors to come through the Planning Commission.
	Pete Frisina stated if there is a disagreement we could bring it before the Planning Commission.
	Al Gilbert stated that it will happen at some point.
	Pete Frisina said that if someone comes in wanting pink it’s not on the list therefore not allowed.
	Al Gilbert said we could allow them to go before the Zoning Board of Appeals if they don’t agree with colors.
	Pete Frisina said that he would add the color palette and brick palette after architectural intent on page 11.
	John Culbreth asked if another area wanted to create a Historic District could they use these regulations as a standard.
	Pete Frisina replied this Historic District designation is only for this particular area.  He added that all historic districts aren’t the same, and that he doesn’t think there are that many other historic areas in the county.  He said that if someone...
	Al Gilbert asked if the Hopewell Church on S.R. 92 could be considered as a Historic District.
	Pete Frisina replied yes and we could look at that area for a Historic District in the future.
	Brian Haren suggested that they have three (3) people make an independent judgement on a submittal meets the color palette and that one (1) of the decision makers need to be a female.  He said his reason behind the statement was that some males have s...
	Pete Frisina presented the color palette and brick palette to the Planning Commission.
	By consensus, Planning Commission agreed with the color choices.
	Pete Frisina asked Patrick Stough if we should make the color palette and brick palette a part of the vote.
	Patrick Stough replied that he thinks the original palette should be approved by the board. He added that he doesn’t know if he would make it an exhibit, amendment, or addendum to the ordinance because you will have to put it online.
	Pete Frisina said that he would make reference to them and make sure they are approved as a part of the overlay and will be on file.
	Patrick Stough mentioned that maybe it should be in a separate book.
	Al Gilbert asked when this will be taken before the Board of Commissioners.
	Pete Frisina replied that he would like to get together with each Commissioner on an individual basis to brief them and ask for their input.  He added that he would ask the Commissioner’s if they would like to expand the area or have suggestions for o...
	Arnold Martin asked if we know of any Board opposition to this concept.
	Pete Frisina replied no because they don’t really know that we’re doing it.  Chairman Graw asked why they had Limited Commercial two (2) (i.e. gas stations) on sites one (1) and three (3).
	Pete Frisina replied that most of these corners operate on a morning and evening basis, and if you only put one (1) gas station on a corner it would cause traffic congestion for people trying to enter and leave the gas station and for people drive to ...
	Arnold Martin stated that he goes to two (2) separate gas stations on his way to and from work.
	Chairman Graw stated that he doesn’t like two (2) gas stations on opposite sides of the street because of the aesthetics.  He added that he thinks the gas stations will detract from the area.  He said that he understood where Arnold was coming from ab...
	John Culbreth stated that he believes that the gas station would slow down the traffic and attract customers to the other amenities.  He added that sometimes people won’t stop unless they have a direct need to stop.
	Arnold Martin stated that the Dunkin Donuts on S.R 85 is a traffic nightmare because there is only one (1), but if there was another donut shop across the street it would relieve a lot of the traffic in the area.  He added that he was leaning toward h...
	Chairman Graw stated that the property is not that big and a gas station will take up a lot of area that could be used for retail space.
	Pete Frisina replied that the gas stations have been limited in size to 3000 square feet.  He added that amount of pumps have been limited.
	Arnold Martin said that a lot of the residents in that area have complained about the lack of gas stations in the area.  He added that later on down the road the population is going to increase and these gas stations will be warranted.
	Chairman Graw reiterated that he doesn’t understand why they need to have two (2) stations in the area when there are so many gas stations around the area.
	Brian Haren asked how we would restrict gas stations in one (1) of the two (2) the areas.
	Chairman Graw suggested that we look at the traffic flow for one (1) station.
	Brian Haren asked how we can say to a developer you can have one (1) gas station on this corner and not on the other.
	Pete Frisina replied you would change the zoning designation.
	Brian Haren said that we discussed this earlier and decided to use restrictions in the amount of pumps and square footage to detract the QuikTrip’s and RaceTrac’s.  He added that it’s a risk we’re going have to take.
	Arnold Martin said that there is a possibility that a gas station won’t develop in the area.
	Chairman Graw asked when S.R. 85 becomes four (4) lanes will it be easier to access tracts (1) and (3).
	Pete Frisina replied it depends on whether or not a median is put in.  He said that we have made a demarcation of the more intense land uses and the less intense land uses.  He added that the land uses will get less intense as it moves toward Starr’s ...
	Chairman Graw stated that he just wanted to voice his concerns and that he will carry his concerns all the way to the vote.
	Pete Frisina said that he will make the changes that they discussed tonight and will send them out. He added that he will talk with the Board of Commissioners as soon as he can.  He said it will give them a few more times to discuss it if the Board of...
	Al Gilbert asked if there will be a workshop.
	Pete Frisina said we will see depending on whether or not he gets some feedback between now and then.



	Planning and Zoning- Land Use Resolution Email Backup

	Planning and Zoning- Rezoning 1250-16 Agenda Request File w Backup-email
	Planning and Zoning- Rezoning 1250-16 Agenda Request File
	Planning and Zoning- Rezoning 1250-16 Backup_Redacted
	ADP47F1.tmp
	PETITION NO:  1250-16
	PROPOSED USE:  Auto Repair, Paint, Body Shop
	EXISTING USE:  Auto Sales
	LOCATION:  SR 85 North
	OWNER:  Ron Zappendorf
	PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING:  June 2, 2016
	BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:  June 23, 2016
	UAPPLICANT'S INTENT
	USTAFF RECOMMENDATION
	UINVESTIGATION
	A. PROPERTY SITE
	History:  On October 25, 2001 the BOC considered Petition 1085-01 requesting a rezoning from C-H to M-1 for the Subject Property.  A motion to approve the petition was made and seconded but failed by a vote of 1-3.  The BOC had concerns with pollution...
	B. SURROUNDING ZONING AND USES
	C. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
	D. ZONING/REGULATORY REVIEW
	UState Route Overlay
	UAccess
	E. REVIEW OF CONCEPT PLAN
	F. DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS
	UWater System
	UPublic WorksU/UEngineering
	UEnvironmental Health Department
	UFire
	UGeorgia Department of Transportation
	USTAFF ANALYSIS
	URECOMMENDED CONDITIONS



	Planning and Zoning- Rezoning 1256-16 Agenda Request File w Backup-email
	Planning and Zoning- Rezoning 1256-16 Agenda Request File
	Planning and Zoning- Rezoning 1256-16 Backup_Redacted
	ADP301C.tmp
	PETITION NO:  1256-16
	PROPOSED USE:  Single-Family Residential Subdivision
	EXISTING USE:  Agricultural Residential
	LOCATION:  Dogwood Trail
	OWNER:  Claudine B. Morris , Christine B. Thorton & Betty S. Shubert
	AGENT:  Randy Boyd
	PLANNING COMMISSION PUBLIC HEARING:  June 2, 2016
	BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PUBLIC HEARING:  June 23, 2016
	UAPPLICANT'S INTENT
	USTAFF RECOMMENDATION
	UINVESTIGATION
	A. PROPERTY SITE
	B. SURROUNDING ZONING AND USES
	C. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
	D. ZONING/REGULATORY REVIEW
	UPlatting
	UAccess
	E. TRAFFIC AND TRIP GENERATION
	The latest Georgia Department of Transportation Annual Average Daily Traffic estimate for Dogwood Trail at a point near Tyrone Road is 2,950 vehicles.
	F. REVIEW OF CONCEPT PLAN
	G. DEPARTMENTAL COMMENTS
	UWater System
	UPublic WorksU/UEngineering
	1.    If left as A-R, the parcel could be divided into 14 lots using existing road frontage.  Under the proposed rezoning to R-50, the amount of traffic would be more than four times as great but the number of curb cuts onto Dogwood reduced from 14 to 1.
	2.    A deceleration lane will be required at the entrance and probably some type of left turn lane (either full lane or turn lane with right hand passing option).
	3.    No ROW dedication is required (Dogwood is Collector with existing 80’ shown on survey).
	4.    Any new road shall meet minimum offset distances, which does not seem to be a factor for this parcel.
	UEnvironmental Health Department
	UFire
	Must provide fire hydrants 600 ft. apart.
	USTAFF ANALYSIS

	1256-16 - Concept Plan no Topo.pdf.pdf
	15002 - Concept Plan no Topo



	Fire-ES- Regional Council Appointment  Agenda Request File w Backup-email
	Fire-ES- Regional Council Appointment  Agenda Request File
	Fire-ES- Regional Council_2016 Backup

	911- Motorola Contract Agenda Request File w Backup-email
	911- Motorola Contract Agenda Request File
	911 Motorola Contract - Purchasing Backup 1
	911 Motorola Contract - Purchasing Backup 2
	911- Motorola Contract Backup

	Public Works - ARC Subgrant Agreement for CTP Agenda Request2File w Backup-email
	Public Works - ARC Subgrant Agreement for CTP Agenda Request2File
	Public Works - ARC Subgrant Funding
	Public Works - ARC Subgrant Agreement for CTP Backup

	Public Works - Timber Bridge Maintenance Agenda Request 2File w Backup-email
	Public Works - Timber Bridge Maintenance Agenda Request 2File
	Public Works - Timber Bridge Maintenance Backup
	IGA w County_Redwine Bridge Sealant_FINAL
	Document1


	Street Lights- Flower Field Subdivision Agenda Request File w Backup-email
	Street Lights- Flower Field Subdivision Agenda Request File
	Street Lights- Flower Field Subdivision Backup
	Petition
	Street Light Schematic


	06-07-2016 Minutes-email
	Selection Committee- Hospital Authority (1) Agenda Request File w Backup-email
	Selection Committee- Hospital Authority (1) Agenda Request File
	Selection Committee- Hospital Authority Resumes (1)_Redacted

	Selection Committee- Hospital Authority (2) Agenda Request File w Backup-email
	Selection Committee- Hospital Authority (2) Agenda Request File
	Selection Committee- Hospital Authority Resumes (2)_Redacted

	Selection Committee- Hospital Authority (3) Agenda Request File w Backup-email
	Selection Committee- Hospital Authority (3) Agenda Request File
	Selection Committee- Hospital Authority Resumes (3)_Redacted

	Selection Committee-Public Art Committee Appointments (1 yr term) Agenda Request File w Backup-email
	Selection Committee-Public Art Committee Appointments (1 yr term) Agenda Request File
	Selection Committee- Public Arts Committee Resumes (1 yr)_Redacted

	Selection Committee-Public Art Committee Appointments (2 yr term) Agenda Request file w Backup-email
	Selection Committee-Public Art Committee Appointments (2 yr term) Agenda Request file
	Selection Committee- Public Arts Committee Resumes (2 yr)_Redacted

	Planning & Zoning-Fayetteville Annexation-Price Road Estates-Agenda Request File w Backup.pdf
	Planning & Zoning-Fayetteville Annexation-Price Road Estates-Agenda Request File
	Planning and Zoning- Fayetteville Annexation- Jimmy Mayfield Backup_Redacted
	SKM_C554e16053115130
	SKM_C554e16053115131
	SKM_C554e16053115140


	Planning & Zoning-Fayetteville Annexation Price Road Estates Agenda Request File 6-17-16 w Backup.pdf
	Planning & Zoning-Fayetteville Annexation Price Road Estates Agenda Request File 6-17-16
	Planning and Zoning- Fayetteville Annexation- Jimmy Mayfield Backup_Redacted_6-17-16
	SKM_C554e16053115130
	SKM_C554e16053115131
	SKM_C554e16053115140
	ADPE3EE.tmp
	Fayetteville has received a request for annexation of the above-referenced.  The annexation notice from Fayetteville indicates the intent to annex and rezone 29.5 acres from R-40 in unincorporated Fayette County to Residential townhouse-condominium di...
	UHistory
	The subject property is included in the Preliminary Plat for the Price Road Estates Subdivision. This section of the preliminary plat indicates 20 lots.
	UPlanning and ZoningU: The letter of Intent states that there are approximately 54 lots/homes planned on the subject property.  It appears on the Concept Plan that some of these lots are split between the annexation area and the City.  As previously m...






